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Armscor believes that its values constitute the building blocks of the manner in which it conducts 
its business. We believe in the highest standards and are committed to equal opportunities, 
transparency and accountability.

We pledge commitment to the following values:
§ Leading by example
§ Results driven
§ Customer focus
§ Care and respect for others
§ Excellence
§ Teamwork
§ Integrity

vision

mission

Armscor’s vision is to become the premier technology and acquisition agency 
for the South African Government and Governments of the SADC region.

Armscor’s mission is to meet the defence 
matériel, defence technology, research, 
development, analysis, tests and evaluation 
requirements of the Department of Defence 
and other organs of state effectively, efficiently 
and economically. 

values
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WHO WE ARE

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Limited (Armscor) 

derived its mandate in terms of the Armaments Corporation of 

South Africa, Limited Act (Act 51 of 2003), as amended (called 

the Armscor Act). It is therefore a state-owned company (SOC) 

as contemplated in the Companies Act, 2008. Furthermore, it is 

listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance 

Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended (the PFMA). 

Armscor is further regulated by the Regulations issued in terms of 

the PFMA and those of the Companies Act, 2008.

The Minister of Defence and Military Veterans is the executive 

authority responsible for Armscor.

WHAT WE DO

The Armscor Act provides that

1. The Corporation must: 

a. acquire such defence matériel on behalf of the 
Department of Defence as the Department may 
require; 

b. manage such technology projects as may be 
required by the Department of Defence; 

c. establish a programme management system in 
support of the acquisition and technology projects 
contemplated in paragraphs (a) and (b);

d. provide for a quality assurance capability in 
support of 

 – the acquisition and technology projects 
contemplated in paragraphs (a) and (b); 
and 

 – any other service contemplated in this 
section required by the Department of 
Defence; 

e. mantain a system for tender and contract 
management in respect of defence matériel 
and, if required in a service level agreement or if 
requested in writing by the Secretary for Defence, 
the procurement of commercial matériel; 

f. dispose of defence matériel in consultation with the 
entity that originally manufactured the matériel; 

g. establish a compliance administration system for the 
Department of Defence as required by applicable 
international law, the National Conventional Arms 
Control Act, 2002 (Act 41 of 2002), and the Non-
Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction Act, 
1993 (Act 87 of 1993); 

h. support and maintain such strategic and essential 
defence industrial capabilities, resources and 
technologies as may be identified by the 
Department of Defence;

i. provide defence operational research; 

j. establish a defence industrial participation 
programme management system; 

k. provide marketing support to defence-related 
industries in respect of defence matériel, in 
consultation with the Department of Defence and 
the defence-related industries in question; 

l. manage facilities identified as strategic by 
the Department of Defence in a service level 
agreement; and 

m. maintain such special capabilities and facilities 
as are regarded by the Corporation not to be 
commercially viable, but which may be required by 
the Department of Defence for security or strategic 
reasons. 

2. a. The Corporation may, with the approval of the  
 Minister:

 – exploit such commercial opportunities as 
may arise out of the Corporation’s duty to 
acquire defence matériel or to manage 
technology projects; 

01 CORPORATE PROFILE
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 – procure commercial matériel on behalf of 
any organ of state at the request of the 
organ of state in question; and 

 – subject to the National Conventional 
Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act 41 of 
2002), the Regulation of Foreign Military 
Assistance Act, 1998 (Act 15 of 1998), 
and the Non-Proliferation of Weapons of 
Mass Destruction Act, 1993 (Act 87 of 
1993), perform any function which the 
Corporation may perform for or on behalf 
of the Department of Defence in terms 
of the Armscor Act or on behalf of any 
sovereign State.

b. The Minister may impose such conditions in 
respect of the performance of a function as may 
be necessary in the national interest.

OuR OBjECTIVES 

The objectives of the Corporation are: 

a) to meet the defence matériel requirements of the 
Department of Defence effectively, efficiently and 
economically; and

b) to meet the defence technology, research, development, 
analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the Department 
of Defence effectively, efficiently and economically.

The Corporation must adhere to accepted corporate governance 

principles, best business practices and generally accepted 

accounting practices within a framework of established norms 

and standards that reflect fairness, equity, transparency, economy, 

efficiency, accountability and lawfulness. 

GOVERNANCE 

Armscor adheres to the principles of good corporate governance 

enshrined in the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) 

as amended (the PFMA). The observance of these principles 

ensures that Armscor maintains the integrity of its operations, 

thus gaining credibility from and the confidence of its important 

stakeholders. 

Good corporate governance and stakeholder confidence are 

fundamental elements in determining the nature of the relationship 

between Armscor, its shareholder represented by the Minister 

of Defence and Military Veterans, the defence industry, and the 

South African public as a whole.

INTERNAL AuDIT

Internal Audit is a critical pillar of governance and it leads the 

implementation of combined assurance model to coordinate the 

assurance efforts to ensure adequate coverage of key strategic 

risks facing the organisation.

The objective of Internal Audit is to provide independent, objective 

assurance and consulting services designed to add value and 

improve the organisation’s operations. It helps the organisation 

accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance processes. In this regard, 

Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit and Risk Committee of 

the Board of Directors.
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ORGANISATIONAL REPORTING STRuCTuRE 
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Department of Defence
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Support Functions

Corporate
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DevelopmentAcquisition Dockyard
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of Directors
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Secretary CEO

THE BOARD

The management and control of Armscor resides with the Board of Directors, led by a non-executive chairman and the deputy chairperson. 

To execute its responsibilities effectively and maintain accountability, the Board established a number of committees:

§ Acquisition Committee

§ Audit and Risk Committee

§ Marketing and Industry Support Committee 

§ Research and Development Committee 

§ Finance, Business Development and Investment Committee

§ Human Resources, Social and Ethics Committee
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF THE ACQUISITION COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD | Dr Ralph Radebe Mgijima

Dr Mgijima was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ Cambridge International Health Leadership Programme
§ Senior Public Service Management Studies
§ Diploma in Health Services Management (unaccredited)
§ Diploma in Tropical Medicine
§ MBChB

He has held various professional and leadership roles within the medical and public spheres, having 
also chaired South Africa’s Public Service Commission. He has held many fiduciary positions in South 
Africa and abroad. He currently works as a business consultant and also serves as the deputy chairman 
National Health Laboratory Services (NHLS) and is a board member of the City of johannesburg (PAC)

other nominations: SANDF Service Commission

CHAIRPERSON OF THE ARMSCOR BOARD |Lt Gen (Ret) Maomela Moreti Motau

Lt Gen (Ret) Motau was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications 
include:

 § Master of Business Administration
 § Post-Graduate Diploma in Management Studies
 § Post-Graduate Certificate in Management Studies
 § Bachelor of Law (LLB)
 § Executive course in Defence Management
 § Diploma in Technical Education (Business Studies)
 § joint Staff course (Strategic Management Programme)
 § Senior Command Staff Course
 § Operational Intelligence and Advance Defence Intelligence Courses

He has vast experience in consulting and he also has experience in non-statutory forces and was 
instrumental in the negotiations towards democratic rule in South Africa. Lt Gen Motau was previously 
Chief of Military Intelligence and a special advisor to the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans. 
He is currently working as a business consultant.

Lt Gen Motau was relieved of his duties as chairperson of the Armscor Board on 08 August 2013.

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON OF THE ARMSCOR BOARD | Ms Refiloe Mokoena

Ms Mokoena was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. Her academic qualifications include:

 § Bjuris
 § LLB

She is an experienced attorney with a strong background in commercial law and practice. She is 
currently employed as the Executive Corporate Compliance. She held various board positions and she 
currently serves on the Board of Bathopele Mining Investment (Pty) Ltd.

Ms Mokoena was relieved of her duties as deputy chairperson of the Armscor Board on 08 August 
2013.
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRPERSON OF THE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
COMITTEEE OF THE ARMSCOR BOARD | Mr Leku Winston Mosiako

Mr Mosiako was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ Business Diploma
§ Management Development Programme (MDP)

He is an entrepreneur with a strong background in information technology. He has earned various 
accolades within the information and technology environment and held various positions at IBM. He 
also serves on other boards which are Lechabile Investment Holdings and Knowledge Dimension.

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRPERSON OF THE MARKETING AND INDUSTRY 
SUPPORT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD | Dr Pumza Patricia Dyantyi

Dr Dyantyi was appointed to this position on 01 May 2012. Her academic qualifications include:

§ Master’s in Business Administration
§ Diploma in Management Studies
§ Degree in Medicine
§ Diploma in Midwifery
§ Diploma in General Nursing

She has held the position of Mayor of Mbhashe Local Municipality, conducted a private medical 
practice for her own account and held various professional medical positions within the public sector. 
She currently works for a private medical practice. She also serves on various boards including Mida 
Private School, Ntinga Development Agency, Government Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS) and 
Nelson Mandela Museum.

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES, SOCIAL AND 
ETHICS COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD | Mr Sifiso Aubrey Msibi

Mr Msibi was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ B.Sc. Chemical Engineer
§ MDP (Management Development Programme)

He has extensive engineering, management and leadership experience obtained through his twenty 
five year working career at a number of leading South African companies. He is currently the Chief 
Operations Officer of Pamodzi Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd.   Mr Msibi serves on various boards 
including FoodCorp Holdings Limited, BMW Auto Bavaria, Pamodzi Industrials (Pty) Ltd and Pamodzi 
Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd.

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD | Mr Elias Likobo Borole

Mr Borole was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ Master of Business Administration
§ Licensed International Financial Analyst
§ Management Advance Programme
§ Higher Certificate in Accounting

He has served as a member of executive management and board of directors of companies for a 
period of sixteen years and has also served on finance, audit and facilities committees. He is currently 
the Director of BDM GROuP (Pty) Ltd.
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN OF THE FINANCE, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD | Dr John Leonard Job

Dr job was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ PhD with Honours
§ BSc (Hons)
§ International Programme for Senior Executives
§ Seminar for Senior Executives

He is a widely experienced executive and director in industry, particularly the Chemical and Forest 
Products industries, both in South Africa and internationally. He also is knowledgeable about military 
matters having served for many years in various capacities in the Defence family of South Africa. He 
is currently a Director of Companies. He also serves at various boards including Group 5 Ltd, Reserve 
Force Council and job Family Holdings (Pty) Ltd.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER AND ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER | Mr JS Mkwanazi

Mr Mkwanazi was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer in November 2009. Before his 
appointment to this position, he was General Manager: Acquisition.

He possesses the following academic qualifications:

§ MBL
§ Total Quality Management (TQM) Programme 
§ MSc (with specialisation in Project Management)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Operations Management, Project Management, Quality 
Management, and Acquisition.

His appointment is linked to his position as Acting Chief Executive Officer.

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER | Mr JG Grobler

Mr Grobler was appointed to his current position on 1 August 2008. His academic qualifications 
include:

§ CA (SA)
§ MBL
§ MCom (Tax)

areas of expertise: Financial Management and Corporate Governance.

His appointment is linked to his position as Chief Financial Officer.

COMPANY SECRETARY | Adv. B Senne

Advocate Senne was appointed to this position on 01 May 2011. His academic qualifications include:

§ Bjuris 
§ LLB
§ Bar Exam (Society of Advocates)

areas of expertise: Governance, Legal and Strategy.
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ARMSCOR NEW BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
FROM 1 MAY 2014

CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
Vice Admiral (Ret) RJ Mudimu

DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
Ambassador T Skweyiya

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE ACQUISITION 

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD | Mr  MBF Mobu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT AND RISK 

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD | Dr M Khanyile

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES, 

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD | Adv  VL de la Hunt

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Mr RM Vokwana

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Adv S Baloyi

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Mr NM Tyibilika
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EXECuTIVE MANAGEMENT 

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER | Mr JS Mkwanazi 

Mr Mkwanazi was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer in November 2009. Before his 
appointment to this position, he was General Manager: Acquisition.

He possesses the following academic qualifications:

 § MBL
 § Total Quality Management (TQM) Programme 
 § MSc (with specialisation in Project Management)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Operations Management, Project Management, 
Quality Management, and Acquisition.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER | Mr JG Grobler

Mr Grobler was appointed to his current position on 1 August 2008. His academic qualifications 
include:

 § CA (SA)
 § MBL
 § M.Com (Tax)

areas of expertise: Financial Management and Corporate Governance.

ACTING GENERAL: MANAGER ACQUISITION | Mr D Griesel

Mr Griesel was appointed as Acting General Manager: Acquisition in November 2009. His 
academic qualifications include:

 § BSc Eng. (Electronic)
 § BSc Eng. (Hons) (Electronic)
 § Pr. Eng.
 § AEP (unisa)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Acquisition Process, Telecommunications and Systems 
Design.

GENERAL MANAGER: RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT | Mr TC Raman

Mr Raman was appointed to this position on 01 April 2014. His academic qualifications include:

 § BSc Eng. (Hons.) (Mechanical)
 § MBA Aerospace
 § Armscor Leadership Development Programme

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Programme Management, Technology Management 
and Analysis, and System Design.
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GENERAL MANAGER: DOCKYARD | Mr TT Goduka

Mr Goduka was appointed on 1 April 2003. His academic qualifications include:

 § B Eng. (Mechanical)
 § Post-Graduate Diploma in Business Management

areas of expertise: Operations Management, Engineering Management, and Strategic Management.

ACTING GENERAL MANAGER: QUALITY | Ms RH Ramgolam

Ms Ramgolam was appointed as Acting General Manager: Quality on 27 May 2011. Her academic 
qualifications include:

 § BSc Chemical Engineering
 § MSc in Management (Defence Acquisition)
 § MSc in Software Engineering
 § Executive National Security Programme (ENSP 20/09)

areas of expertise: Acquisition Management, Software Engineering, and Chemical Engineering.

GENERAL MANAGER: CORPORATE COMPLIANCE | Adv. CVV Ramphele

Advocate Ramphele was appointed to this position on 01 March 2013. Her academic qualifications 
include:

 § Bjuris
 § LLB
 § Bar Examination (Society of Advocates)

areas of expertise: Corporate Compliance and Risk Management, Corporate Law, and Corporate 
Governance.

GENERAL MANAGER: HUMAN RESOURCES | Mr S Mbada 

Mr Mbada was appointed on 01 September 2009. His academic qualifications include:

 § Bjuris
 § BA Hons
 § MAP
 § LLB

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, HR Management, IR Management, and Training 
Management.
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CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER | Mr L Keyise

Mr Keyise was appointed on 01 February 2013. His academic qualifications include:  

§ Master in Computer Science
§ BSc (Hons) Computer Science
§ EDP

areas of expertise: ICT Leadership and Management, Strategic Management and Program and 
Project Management.

He resigned from this position on 3 February 2014.

GENERAL MANAGER: MARKETING AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT | Ms JL Mzili

Ms Mzili was appointed on 01 March 2013. Her academic qualifications include:

 § Master in Business Administration
 § BCom (Hons) Business Management 
 § BCom
 § Certificate in Strategic Management
 § Certificate in Financial Performance Measurement and Control

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Strategic Marketing, Business Development and 
Financial Management.
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CHAIRmAn’S REPORT
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It is my duty and honour to present the Chairman’s Report for the 
year ended 31 March 2014. 

Although the report relates to the period preceding my assumption 
of office on 01 May 2014, it gives me the opportunity to map new 
areas and possibilities for Armscor, to fortify and defend what has 
been achieved, and to forge ahead in pursuance of the mandate 
given to us by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans 
Honourable Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula and the Government of 
South Africa.

In this regard, I wish to thank the minister for the confidence she 
has shown by designating me as Chairperson of this important 
state institution. I am ably assisted by Ambassador Thuthukile 
Skweyiya as Deputy Chairperson.

Together we are supported in this important task by a dozen of 
competent fellow Board members, with vast experience covering 
such diverse fields as engineering, law, public administration, 
procurement and commerce, military and state security.

I am not a newcomer to the defence environment, as I was the 
Chief of the SA Navy until March 2014 when I retired. For this 
reason, I am acutely aware of the strategic importance of Armscor 
within the defence family and the need for Armscor to work closely 
and cooperatively with the many role players that are involved 
in the provision of state of the art equipment to the South African 
National Defence Force. 

The Board is also aware of the important role of Armscor and has 
already begun to acquaint itself with all of Armscor’s operations, to 
meet the staff, and generally to spread the message of hope and 
cooperation amongst all our stakeholders. 

We have been amazed by the unique competencies and world 
class facilities that Armscor enjoys within the defence environment. 
We are humbled by the warm reception we have received from 
Armscor staff and the goodwill displayed towards us by the 
industry as a whole. 

Our primary mandate is to meet the defence matériel requirements 
of the SANDF in time and on time. If we cannot do this, there 
would be no basis for us to serve on the Armscor Board, or even 
for the very existence of Armscor. 

We come in at a time when we are all called upon to put our 
heads together and conjure up ways and means of supporting 

the noble government initiatives and plans, such as the National 
Development Plan, the New Growth Path and the Industrial Action 
Plan. 

We are called upon to accelerate the creation of jobs, to bring 
in new entrants into the defence industry, to include marginalised 
members of our society such as women, the disabled and our 
military veterans in an effort to bring back dignity to our people.

The Defence Review maps the way for the defence environment 
in which we are called upon to play our part in support of 
the mandate of the SANDF. This mandate of the SANDF is to 
defend and protect South Africa, to safeguard its borders and 
infrastructure, to promote peace and security in Africa, and to 
perform developmental and other tasks assigned to it. We intend to 
play our supportive role with patriotism, diligence and enthusiasm. 

We will work towards this in partnership with industry and all 
relevant role players with zeal and zest, ensuring that all that we 
seek to do and achieve is done on time and in time. This is the 
only way we can create hope and stability in the defence industry 
environment.

We want to assure our people that we shall not be found wanting 
in scripting a new chapter that will transform our industry to achieve 

new heights.

Vice Admiral (ret) J mudimu

CHAIRmAn

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
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ACTInG CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S REPORT 
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When Armscor looks back at the 2013/2014 reporting period, 
my belief is that it will be with a sense of pride. Regardless of 
the challenges and turbulences that Armscor was faced with, the 
Corporation managed to rise above the challenges and focus on 
delivering on its mandate. We can look back at the preceding year 
and be proud that we were successful in turning the challenges we 
faced into opportunities.

Armscor is a national asset and retains capabilities that are 
strategic to the South African National Defence Force (SANDF) 
specifically, and to the defence industry generally. However, 
Armscor continues to face a number of challenges, such as 
financing of the organisation, sustaining the required research 
strategic capabilities, transforming the organisation’s race and 
gender composition, rejuvenation of the organisation, as well as 
improvement of stakeholder relationships.

Restructuring of the organisation and filling of five executive 
management vacancies was completed, which resulted in 
establishing a leadership team that had to steer the ship through 
stormy waters to successfully achieve the results of the period under 
review. In order to optimise performance and improve efficiency, 
we reviewed our policies and processes.

We continue to tackle the challenges head on by transforming 
Armscor into a world class organisation that focuses on excellent 
client service through the highest standards of quality, efficiency 
and effectiveness.

Armscor is, however, committed to ensuring that being mean and 
lean does not compromise the quality of the service and products 
that we provide to the SANDF.  During the year under review 
Armscor continued to demonstrate its commitment to support the 
Department of Defence (DOD) and the defence-related industry 
at large as we embarked on key activities, which are summarised 
below.  

performanCe revieW 

highlighTs and Challenges

Armscor performed satisfactorily in the 2013/2014 financial 
year. I am delighted to report some of the developments that took 
place and the achievements that were registered in the year under 
review.

CorporaTe goals aChievemenT
In the main, Armscor achieved most of its strategic corporate goals, 
while those not achieved were achieved later than planned.  In 
some instances the goals had to be reviewed.

On the Armscor functions Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
objectives, all the acquisition projects objectives were met and 
exceeded, Research and Development objectives were achieved 
and exceeded, and for the Dockyard all objectives except for one 
were achieved. Armscor performed exceptionally well on the SLA 
objectives.

finanCe
 Armscor has been experiencing strain on its budget for years.  The 
Corporation has regarded this as a challenge and has developed 
appropriate strategies to emerge from this situation as a strong 
service provider, not only to the DOD but also to other government 
departments such as South African Police Service (SAPS) and 
Correctional Services.  

The net financial result from operations of the group (excluding 
gains on property valuation) shows a surplus of R103,3 million 
compared to R109,9 million during the previous year. The surplus 
was, however, influenced by the inclusion of the medical benefit 
fund during the current year which was excluded during previous 
reporting periods. If the impact thereof is excluded the group 
shows a surplus of R76,1 million, compared to a R40,4 million 
budgeted surplus, which was influenced by factors such as 
reduced personnel costs due to later than planned recruitment of 
suitable candidates, additional allocation of operational funding 
by the DOD to compensate for cost incurred of required services, 
and other income as reflected in the financial report.

aCQuisiTion
While Armscor is faced with the challenge of retaining required 
skills and expertise, capabilities to execute its primary mandate of 
acquisition for the Department of Defence through strategic initiatives 
such as rejuvenation, succession planning and skills development, the 
risk is being mitigated. 

The trend of acquisition for the DOD is showing an increase of 
programmes of support and maintenance as all the strategic 
packages are delivered. During the period under review, the value of 
work relating to maintenance and support has grown to R5,2 billion, 
representing approximately 53% of the total value of contracts placed 
and managed by Armscor. 

Armscor managed contracts relating to capital equipment acquisition 
(acquisition projects) to the value of R4,8 billion, representing 
approximately 47% of the total acquisition portfolio that is managed 
and executed for the Department of Defence.

In ensuring improvement of on time delivery and minimising delays of 
projects, which has always troubled the organisation and the client, 
the joint action plan of Armscor and DOD was implemented. These 
actions sought to resolve the following factors causing delays within 
the acquisition process: 

•	 Misalignment of Armscor and DOD acquisition process.

•	 Insufficient funding of the requirements.

•	 Poor performance of some of the companies of the defence 
industry.

We reviewed and streamlined acquisition processes to be more 
responsive to client requirements.

As part of improving inefficiencies in the acquisition process, the 
misalignment of Armscor acquisition and DOD acquisition processes 
which caused delays was addressed. 

CHIEF EXECuTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
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The Armscor Acquisition Policy was updated to include alignment with 
the DOD’s processes. A computerised process was also designed 
to track requirements and monitor the time taken to convert the 
requirements to orders placed.

In addressing the insufficient funding, prioritisation by DOD was done 
and an agreement was reached to implement a strategy of partial 
acquisition that provides a capability and adds on to that capability 
as soon as the funds are available.

In order to improve poor performing suppliers, regular meetings are 
held and if necessary intervention at high-level management is done 
early enough to be pro-active.

The financial and scheduled performances of all the acquisition 
projects, as agreed on in the Service Level Agreement (SLA) are 
starting to yield results.

Capital projects performance against the objective of 90% of orders 
to be placed as soon as the requirements are received from the 
DOD, achieved 99,9% which is the same as the previous year. For 
the objective of 90% cash paid after placing the orders, 108,6% was 
achieved. 

Support and Maintenance projects (operational funds) performance 
against the objective of 90% of orders to be placed as soon as the 
requirements are received from the DOD, achieved 99% compared 
to 88,8% the previous year. For the objective of 90% cash paid after 
placing the orders, 100,3% was achieved.

The objective of the average time taken from receipt of requirement 
to placement of contract is 90 days, while the actual performance 
achieved was 62,5 days. While the objective was exceeded, the 
challenge is still to reduce the spread of those projects delayed for 
longer periods.

As regards the financial performance of acquisition projects, Armscor 
achieved the best results for the last five years for the percentage of 
cash paid against the orders placed. In the last four years the trend 
has been upwards, with an improvement of 6% for the 2013/14 
financial year compared to the previous year.

researCh and developmenT
Armscor Defence Institutes (Pty) Limited was successfully incorporated 
into Armscor SOC Ltd as the Research and Development (R&D) 
department with effect from 1 April 2013. The R&D department is 
mandated to operate, manage, support and maintain strategic 
defence facilities and essential defence industrial capabilities, 
resources and technologies as identified by the Department of 
Defence (DOD).

The R&D department ensures the long-term sustainability of these 
strategic capabilities through DOD funding and established 
commercial business processes. The department generated R397,6 
million in revenue for the financial year, with a surplus of R18,3 million 
mainly due to savings in operational expenditure and growth in 
commercial revenue. 

The DOD contributed 63% of the revenue while commercial sales 
generated the remaining 37%. 

This enabled the R&D department to recover operational, maintenance 
and facilities upgrade costs associated with the services delivered to 
the DOD and other customers. 

In discharging its mandate of executing defence technology 
development, research, test and evaluation requirements of the 
Department of Defence, Armscor R&D achieved 99,8% against the 
target of 90%.

The various divisions of the department have successfully completed 
defence technology development, research, testing and evaluations 
planned for the financial year. The newly established Innovation 
division within the R&D department will improve the management of 
Armscor and DOD-owned Intellectual Property (IP), which includes 
exploitation of commercially viable IP on behalf of the DOD.

doCKyard
The year under review continued to be marred by challenges of 
insufficient capacity and capabilities, due to insufficient sustainable 
funding.  Despite the challenges of insufficient funding, with the 
exception of one objective not met, the Dockyard has met and 
in some instances exceeded its objectives of service delivery in 
accordance with the performance management agreement with 
the SA Navy.

In order to improve the efficiencies of the Dockyard, Armscor 
commissioned a service provider with extensive experience and 
expertise in transforming, operating and managing dockyards 
successfully throughout the world to carry out a modernisation 
study.

human resourCes
Our people remain the most valuable asset, and we are committed 
to their ongoing development. During the period under review, 
we invested more than R8,5 million in training and professional 
development to help ensure that our 1 425 employees have the 
skills they need to serve our clients at the highest level. Armscor’s 
commitment to investing in human capital as well as in technology 
ensures that Armscor delivers quality service to the client.  

Skills development is critical for the Corporation, owing to the nature 
of its business. In this regard, additional interventions have been 
implemented to ensure that Armscor retains critical skills.  Armscor 
has continued with actions to obtain and retain the skilled employees 
to achieve its objectives. Armscor has pursued partnerships with 
international universities to cater for areas of skills shortage and 
identified technologies that are not available in South Africa.  

Succession planning is a key element of business continuation 
planning and focuses on the strategic skills required to meet the 
strategic management and technology demands of the future. In 
accordance with the corporate succession plan, Armscor identified 
95 key positions and 85 successors. 

Transformation continues to be a key focus for the Corporation. Armscor 
is proud to report that there has been a significant improvement in 
race representivity. The goal was set to achieve a composition of 904 
black employees, and a composition of 964 black employees was 
achieved.
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ComplianCe
Armscor subscribes to the principles of good governance and 
has prioritised them as important.  These principles of good 
governance are applied across every single facet of Armscor’s 
operations.  

Once again Armscor has lived up to its values and subscribes to 
principles of good governance. We achieved an unqualified audit 
opinion from the Auditor-General. We continue to consistently 
obtain unqualified audits, as is evident in our results for the past 13 
years of obtaining audits with no qualification – an achievement 
to be commended. The Auditor-General presented Armscor with 
an award for obtaining a clean audit for the year 2012/2013.

To ensure higher levels of customer satisfaction we are committed 
to the international standard of Quality Management System 
to an extent that Armscor, after an independent audit by SABS, 
maintained its ISO 9001 certificate. 

Our best practices in ensuring good quality services prompted 
us to ensure that the Dockyard complies with the international 
standard of Quality Management System ISO 9001. Dockyard 
for the first time obtained the ISO 9001 certificate.

Armscor’s BBBEE verification was completed in April 2014 and 
the BBBEE Certificate was issued with a level 3 BBBEE status. 
Armscor has maintained the level 3 status and performed well 
on Management Control, Preferential Procurement, Enterprise 
Development, as well as Socio-Economic Development.

We also focused on our environmental strategy, which helps 
ensure sustainable growth and spans our entire operations, from 
how we run our business to the services we provide to clients and 
how we engage with employees and suppliers. We are committed 
to compliance with international standards of Safety, Health and 
Environment (SHE), namely ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001 and ISO 
22001.

CorporaTe soCial invesTmenT (Csi)
We remain dedicated to serving the communities in which we live 
and work through our corporate social investment programmes. 
During the year under review Armscor installed computer 
laboratories at two selected schools in Prieska. Additionally, to 
support our corporate social investment efforts, the Rebaone Care 
and Support Centre in Rabokala village near Brits was supported 
in terms of basic domestic needs, toys, and the painting of their 
building.

Armscor also supports employee programmes, which involve 
community volunteer work, and encourages all employees to 
experience the personal rewards of giving their time and talents.

During the year under review Armscor revised its Corporate 
Social Investment plan so as to further expand the programme’s 
footprint to other areas of its operation. In future, selected schools 
in the Northern Cape, Western Cape and Gauteng will benefit 
immensely from the Learner Enhancement Programme.  

Customer satisfaction is the hallmark of success by which Armscor 
measures its performance, and it holds itself to the highest standards 
of quality. These values have ensured that Armscor earns the trust 
of its clients along the way. It is vital for the Corporation to brand 
and deliver a service that is commensurate with its vision of being 
a premier defence acquisition agency of choice, based on its 
experience, commitment to quality and integrity.

Looking ahead we will build on the positive momentum of improving 
efficiency and transforming our organisation. I am confident that 
the foundation for a better future has been established and that we 
will in future obtain even better results.

aCKnoWledgemenTs
It is my privilege to thank the Honourable Minister of Defence 
and Military Veterans, Ms Nosiviwe Mapisa-Nqakula, and the 
former Deputy Minister, Mr Thabang Makwetla, for their valuable 
support and guidance to Armscor. Our gratitude goes to the 
officials of the Department of Defence for their support to Armscor 
during the reporting period. We assure them of our support and 
commitment. 

A special word of thanks to the Secretary for Defence, Dr S Gulube, 
and the Chief of the SANDF, Gen S Shoke, for the confidence 
they have shown in the Armscor team.  Their contribution and 
invaluable support to Armscor are highly appreciated.

Parliament’s Portfolio Committee on Defence has contributed to the 
successful execution of our work.  Its oversight role is appreciated. 
On behalf of the Directors, Management and staff, I extend to 
the Chairperson and Members of the Portfolio Committee our 
profound gratefulness.

It was a pleasure and continues to be a pleasure to have served 
our primary clients, namely the SANDF as a whole, the SA Police 
Service and SA Correctional Services during the year under 
review and we thank them for their support as well. To all other 
stakeholders I wish to express appreciation for their support 
and assistance in the past year in helping Armscor to render an 
excellent service to all its clients.

The members of the Board have all been pivotal in steering this 
national asset, Armscor, in a direction in which it has fulfilled its 
mandate with professionalism, dedication and integrity. My sincere 
thanks to the Armscor Board of Directors for their leadership, 
counsel and judicious support. 

The Armscor Management Board and all the personnel are 
the indispensable human capital which ensured, through their 
dedication, contributions and sacrifices that Armscor remained 
at the cutting edge of delivery and efficiency, and a reservoir of 
scientific and engineering excellence. I thank them immensely. 
Without them the success recorded during the year under review 
would not have been realised.

Armscor looks forward to the new fiscal year with greater optimism 
and is ready to take its performance to a higher level.  We are 
determined to succeed in carrying out our mandate.

mr JS mkwanazi

Acting Chief Executive Officer
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

1. ACQuISITION
Armscor’s core function is to acquire defence matériel and related 

services, primarily for the South African National Defence Force 

(SANDF) but also for other organs of State, with the permission of 

the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans.

The acquisition role of Armscor entails all the actions that need 

to be taken to satisfy the need for matériel, facilities or services 

intended for use in meeting or in support of client requirements. 

This includes:

§ long-term operational research,

§ requirements analysis,

§ establishment and the management of technology 
development,

§ the design and development of products and product 
systems, 

§ the industrialisation and manufacturing of mature products 
and product systems that fully meet the stated user 
requirements, and 

§ the acquisition of system support for the user systems during 
the operational lifetime of the systems.

Armscor is, amongst other duties, responsible for contracting 

industry for the maintenance and support of those product systems 

that have been taken into operational use. Following on a number 

of new products systems, from the Strategic Defence Packages 

(SDP) and other acquisition programmes, which have recently 

been put into service by the SANDF, the maintenance and support 

portfolio being handled by Armscor has been growing steadily 

over the past number of years. During the reporting period, the 

value of work relating to maintenance and support has grown to 

R5,22 billion, representing approximately 53% of the total value 

of contracts placed and managed by Armscor during the financial 

year under review. 

During the review period Armscor managed contracts relating to 

capital equipment acquisition (acquisition projects) to the value 

of R4,776 billion, representing approximately 47% of the total 

acquisition portfolio managed and executed for the Department 

of Defence (DOD). Capital equipment acquisition entails projects 

or programmes that are aimed at the development of complex 

systems that meet the stated capability requirements of the SANDF. 

During the execution of these projects a formal and robust risk-

reduction process is followed, which eventually leads to the 

contracting of suitable suppliers to develop and manufacture the 

products or product systems. The acquisition process concludes 

with the delivery of mature, fully qualified and supportable 

products or products systems to the SANDF. 

1.1 status of acquisition objectives

Continuous training of personnel in the acquisition environment 

remains a high priority for the organisation. This involves specialist 

and technical training, programme management and systems 

engineering training to new appointees and refresher training to 

existing personnel. A number of technical personnel were enrolled 

in focused contact courses on systems engineering and project 

management. In addition, a number of in-house computer-based 

training courses and modules have been developed that are 

focused specifically on the competencies required by personnel in 

the various sub-disciplines within the acquisition environment. 

Various bouquets of training modules have also been developed 

to assist with the fast-tracking of new entrants into the acquisition 

environment. These bouquets of training modules form part of 

the development contracts of new programme managers and 

administrative personnel, and provide an essential introduction to 

the specific unique military environment and culture, as well as a first 

introduction to the complex acquisition and contracting processes. 

As part of the introductory training of new programme managers, 

Armscor seeks to provide these employees with maximal exposure 

to the unique user environment for which products and systems will 

be acquired. The attendance of military exercises, such as Exercise 

Seboka at the Army Battle School in Lohatla, is a good example of 

such exposure and has proven to provide the Armscor programme 

managers with invaluable insight into the operational utilisation of 

acquired product systems.

During the previous reporting period an initiative was started 

to completely review the Acquisition Policy and subservient 

practices and to significantly streamline the practices governing 

the acquisition process. In this regard, Armscor is moving away 

from a number of complex and uniquely written practices that 

govern the programme management, engineering management, 

business management and other processes, to fewer practices 
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that are better aligned with industry standards, more specifically 

the standards for life cycle, engineering and project management. 

Rather than having unique practices that govern the various 

facets of the acquisition environment, Armscor has also moved 

towards adopting existing industry standards, such as ISO 

15288, which describes the system life cycle processes, PMBOK 

(Project Management Body of Knowledge), and the International 

Council on Systems Engineering (INCOSE) handbook. During the 

reporting period the Acquisition Policy was completely updated 

and approved in line with the changed approach, and the most 

critical of the subservient practices have also been completed. This 

process of developing the bouquet of new governing practices 

will be completed in the next reporting period. 

In order to fully align the Armscor and DOD processes, and to 

provide for oversight by the Armscor Board of Directors of the 

planned project and contracting strategies of capital acquisition 

projects, the Acquisition Policy has been updated to provide for 

two project gates where recommendations regarding the strategies 

will be made to the Armscor Board. Guidance from the Armscor 

Board with regard to the project and contracting strategies will 

serve to inform the project milestone documentation that will be 

presented to the various DOD governance forums for approval.

Also during the reporting period, an initiative was launched to 

develop an improved business reporting system. The first phase 

of this system was completed, which provides improved project- 

related business information for purposes of monitoring and 

decision-making. 

A system was developed to record all Intellectual Property 

(IP) created by virtue of technology establishment and system 

development contracts placed with the industry, and has been 

populated since the start of the reporting period. This database 

of all Intellectual Property and the value thereof is being utilised 

successfully to provide the required IP information to the DOD on 

a regular basis for purposes of auditing DOD assets. 

1.2 acquisition financial performance

An important objective of the acquisition function remains the 

achievement of planned commitment and expenditure of the DOD 

funds. Achievement of all planned cash flow within any particular 

financial year depends on many factors, such as timeous receipt 

of requirements from the DOD, efficiency of internal Armscor 

processes to place contracts for the identified requirements, and 

the ability and capacity of industry to deliver contracted outputs 

on time.

During the reporting period Armscor managed to achieve and by 

a significant margin exceed its target of 90% cash flow against the 

planned cash flow for the year. The graph in Figure 1 below reflects 

the cash flow planned versus cash flow achieved in the three main 

categories, namely capital acquisition, SDP programmes and 

operating procurement.
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Planned Cashflow 3,478.13 274.92 4,696.42 8,449.47

Actual Cashflow 3,151.55 275.59 4,390.77 7,817.92

Figure 1: Actual vs planned cash flow for the 2013/14 
financial year.

In spite of the continued challenges of receiving requirements in 

time to contract industry and effect payments in the applicable 

financial year, Armscor has over the past four financial years, 

since 2010/11, managed to improve the expenditure against 

contracted values per financial year. This improvement is indicated 

in the graph in Figure 2 below. The ultimate goal still remains to 

fully spend the total value contracted per financial year. To this 

end a number of improvement initiatives have been developed 

together with the DOD, which should serve to significantly improve 

the situation in the following years as the initiatives become fully 

implemented.
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1.3 acquisition highlights

1.3.1 MaritiMe systeMs

meKo a-200 san frigates

The four frigates of the SA Navy that were acquired as part of the 

Strategic Defence Package Programme (SDPP) have been in service 

with the SA Navy since 2007. However, certain firing trials were 

still outstanding, preventing final acceptance of the systems and 

formal handover into the operating phase. The delay was initially 

caused by non-performance of the subcontractor responsible for 

the dual purpose guns, but later by external circumstances like the 

non-availability of ships and aircraft, weather and related services 

further delayed the firing trials for several years. Successful firing 

trials were conducted during the reporting period, however, thus 

concluding the last outstanding acceptance trials on the frigates. 

All deliverables on this programme are now complete. 

Class 209 mod 1400 submarines

The three submarines acquired for the SA Navy under the SDP 

programme have been in operational use for several years. The 

handover process for this programme is still in its final stages, 

however, it is expected to be completed by September 2014. 

Following the delivery and commissioning of the three submarines, 

the project emphasis shifted towards the implementation of a 

number of engineering changes in order to meet operational, 

safety and support-related requirements which were omitted 

from the original contract due to budget restrictions at the time. 

All planned engineering changes have been completed except 

for the Submarine Escape Training Facility. The construction of the 

Submarine Escape Training Simulator was undertaken under the 

management of the Department of Public Works, but it became 

evident that the simulator did not comply with revised Occupational 

Health and Safety (OHAS) requirements for pressure vessels.

Corrective actions were implemented, and all indications are that 

the testing and commissioning of the facility should be completed 

by july 2014. This will conclude all outstanding activities on the 

project.

1.3.2 airborne systeMs

light utility helicopters

This project entails the acquisition of 30 Agusta A109 Light utility 

Helicopters from Agusta Westland in Italy. All 30 helicopters with 

support capability ordered have been delivered and updated 

to the latest production standard. This project has now been 

completed, and only administrative activities remain to close all 

orders.

advanced light fighter aircraft

This programme entails the acquisition of 26 SAAB jAS 39 

Gripen Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft (ALFA) from BAE Systems/

SAAB consortium, with the assembly of the aircraft at Linköping in 

Sweden. All nine dual seat aircraft and the 17 single seat aircraft 

have been delivered to the South African Air Force. 

During the reporting period all the outstanding functionalities, which 

were contracted to be implemented in phases, were accepted 

and qualified, and have been implemented on all aircraft. 

Augusta A109 Light Utility Helicopter (LUH).

Class 209 Mod 1400 Submarine.

Gripen Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft.
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This last functionality implementation concluded all outstanding 

deliverables on the programme and preparations are currently 

underway to close the project. 

lead-in fighter Trainer aircraft

This programme provides for the acquisition of 24 Hawk 120 

Lead-In Fighter Trainer (LIFT) aircraft from BAE Systems in the uK. 

The LIFT aircraft are primarily used as lead-in trainers during the 

progression of pilots from their initial flying training on Pilatus Astra 

trainers to the Gripen Advanced Light Fighter Aircraft. 

The only outstanding item on this programme is the delivery and 

commissioning of the last elements of a capability to locally maintain 

identified elements of the aircraft, such as the hydraulic system 

and the auxiliary power unit. The delivery of the maintenance 

capability commenced during the reporting period and will be 

completed in 2014. Delivery of this capability will conclude the 

project, and formal project closure will then commence. 

oryx medium Transport helicopter: Communications 
and navigation system upgrade

This project involves the upgrade of the communications and 

navigation system of the Oryx Medium Transport Helicopter of the 

SAAF. During previous years the development phase of this project 

suffered a delay of approximately 18 months, primarily as a result 

of an underestimation by the contractor of the effort required 

to obtain safety of flight certification for the complete upgrade, 

as well as challenges relating to the integration of the various 

subsystems from different suppliers. All technical issues have been 

successfully resolved, however, the Military Airworthiness Board 

released the upgraded helicopter for operational service at the 

end of the previous reporting period. By the end of this reporting 

period, 10 aircraft were been successfully upgraded and have 

been delivered to the SAAF for operational use. The remaining 20 

of the 39 aircraft will be completely upgraded by February 2016.

 

new generation short range air-to-air missile

This project entails the development of the A-Darter short range 

air-to-air missile system for both the South African and the Brazilian 

Air Force. 

In spite of a total delay of approximately six months in the 

development phase, this technically very ambitious programme 

is delivering very good results. The design goals of this 

development programme will deliver a 5th generation air-to-air 

missile that is functionally comparable with the most advanced 

missiles of this nature available in the world. In spite of the delay 

in the programme, the development timescale is still in line with 

international norms for the development of a missile of this nature. 

During the previous reporting period, a high level technical review 

of the programme delays and associated risks was undertaken, 

and it was indicated that most of the technical risks had been 

sufficiently mitigated. The contract was re-negotiated to introduce 

an additional development cycle of the guidance section of the 

missile, and this additional development cycle has produced the 

desired results. During the reporting period successful carriage 

flight test campaigns were conducted, serving to further reduce 

risks and increase confidence in the missile’s performance and 

maturity. Three further flight test campaigns are scheduled to take 

place in the following reporting period. Successful completion of 

these test flight campaigns will bring the missile development to a 

close, and the partial industrialisation and subsequent production 

will then commence.

1.3.3 Landward systeMs

ground based air defence system for the sa army

By the end of the reporting period the first phase of the Ground 

Based Air Defence System (GBADS) programme, namely the 

Local Warning Segment (LWS), had been fully delivered to the 

Air Defence Artillery Formation of the SA Army and was being 

commissioned into service. 

A-Darter missile.

Oryx Medium Transport Helicopter.



30

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

Phase two of the GBADS programme entails the upgrade of the 

Gun Fire Control System (GFCS) of the 35mm Anti-Aircraft guns 

in service with the Air Defence Artillery Formation, by the addition 

of an autonomous gun fire capability, as well as an ammunition 

capability upgrade for the guns. A major milestone was achieved 

at the end of the reporting period with the establishment of 

two contracts, one with Denel for the development and supply 

of Gun Fire Control Post and the other one directly with the 

original equipment manufacturer (Rheinmetall Air Defence AG 

of Switzerland) for the supply and integration of the fire control 

systems over a four-year delivery period, which will be followed 

by a two-year in-service support period. 

new-generation infantry Combat vehicle

This project provides for a complete New Generation Infantry 

Combat Vehicle Products System (NGICV-PS) to replace the Ratel 

Infantry Combat Vehicle that has been in service since 1976. The 

project originally comprised five combat variants including their 

logistic support and ammunition, but after a revision of the user’s 

Requirement by the SA Army, four new variants were added. 

Development activities on the respective variants progressed 

very well during the reporting period, to such an extent that most 

of the technical risks have been mitigated. Completion of the 

development of the software to a higher safety standard remains 

the single biggest challenge in meeting the production schedule. 

The development of the four new variants, namely signal, tactical 

command post, basic artillery observation and ambulance system 

variants, was contracted during the third quarter of 2013 and is 

progressing according to plan. The Engineering Development 

Model for the ambulance will be completed by March 2015, and 

the other three variants in the following financial year.

A major milestone was achieved in the period under review with 

the placement of a contract for industrialisation and subsequent 

production of 238 combat vehicles by 2023. A total of 21 vehicle 

platforms will be sourced from Patria Land and Armament in Finland, 

while the remaining platforms will be produced locally in South 

Africa. The turrets and weapon systems are completely locally 

developed. The first three vehicle platform Pre-Production Models, 

manufactured by Patria in Finland, are scheduled for delivery by 

the second quarter of 2015. The transfer of technology milestones 

is progressing to schedule, to ensure that local industrialisation and 

production of the platforms happen seamlessly.

1.3.4 CoMMon weapon systeMs

new generation Tactical Communication system

This project addresses the acquisition of a complete, new 

generation tactical communication system for the SANDF. 

The system will make provision for the tactical communication 

requirements for all arms of service, and will ensure interoperability 

between all users.  

The communication system encompasses state of the art transmission 

and information security techniques, whilst incorporating semi 

real-time data link performance characteristics as well as digital 

voice communication. Development of the various elements of 

this system is progressing exceptionally, and will result in the first 

tactical communications system in the world that will provide 

complete interoperability between all elements of the battlefield 

(Air Force, Army, Navy, etc.) without making use of gateways or 

protocol converters.

Development and industrialisation of the four major subsystems, 

namely the HF (high frequency) radio system, the V/uHF (very/ultra 

high frequency) radio system, IPCS (intra platform communication 

system) and the SRCS (short range communication), are 

progressing very well, and development of all the subsystems will 

Badger.

New Generation Tactical Communication System.
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be completed early during the 2014/15 financial year. Production 

of the first of the new communication subsystems will commence 

during the 2014/15 financial year.

1.3.5 deFenCe indUstriaL partiCipation 

Defence Industrial Participation (DIP) is the obligation of a foreign 

supplier to reciprocate defence-related business in South Africa as 

a result of Defence Acquisition, and forms an integral part of the 

DOD policy framework for the retention and development of the 

South African defence industry.

The DIP portfolio managed by Armscor during the year under 

review comprised one remaining obligation relating to the 

Strategic Defence Packages, 16 existing DIP agreements resulting 

from other capital acquisition projects, and one DIP agreement 

resulting from the procurement of pistols on behalf of the SAPS.

The only outstanding obligation emanating from the SDP 

programme is the obligation of MBDA that stems from the 

acquisition of the Exocet missiles for the SA Navy frigates. Although 

MBDA has until 2016 to discharge its obligation, it has to date not 

been able to propose any acceptable business plan to discharge 

the obligation. Regular high-level interaction is taking place 

with MBDA in an attempt to ensure that MBDA will discharge 

its obligation by means of acceptable and sustainable industrial 

participation, rather than merely by paying the contractual penalty 

for defaulting on the obligation.

Although no new DIP agreements were concluded during the 

year, a number of contracted acquisition projects will lead to the 

establishment of DIP agreements in the new financial year.

The status of DIP obligations relating to the four DIP portfolios at 

the end of the reporting period is summarised in the table below:

PORTFOlIO
nUmbER OF 

CURREnT 
COnTRACTS

nUmbER OF 
COmPlETEd 
COnTRACTS

TOTAl 
OblIGATIOn

(Rm)

CREdITS 
PASSEd 

dURInG THE 
CURREnT 

FInAnCIAl 
yEAR
(Rm)

TOTAl 
CREdITS 
PASSEd 
TO dATE

(Rm)

OUTSTAndInG 
OblIGATIOn

(Rm)

SDPs 1 7 15 111 0 14 178 933

Active (SDA) 16 26 6 099 167 5 968 131

Police contracts 1 3 184 29 151 33

Subtotal 18 36 21 394 196 20 297 1 064

Proactive 38 11 n/a 8 3 751 n/a

Total 56 47 21 394 204 24 048 1 064

1.3.6 deFenCe MatÉrieL disposaL 

Armscor’s Defence Matériel Disposal (DMD) division is mandated 

to dispose of redundant and obsolete defence matériel on behalf 

of the DOD. The defence matériel includes ammunition, aircraft, 

spares, vessels, and land and air-based equipment. 

The disposal of the defence matériel is carried out in accordance 

with the requirements of the DOD and regulatory authorities such 

as the National Conventional Arms Control Committee (NCACC) 

and the National Non-Proliferation Council (NPC).

During the year under review the Defence Matériel Disposal 

division reorganised its sales support capability by improving its 

management systems and capacity. This has resulted in a more 

efficient and professional delivery of alienation and disposal 

services to its main client, the DOD, more specifically the office of 

the Chief of Logistics.

During the reporting period Armscor’s Defence Matériel Disposal 

division (through the sale of DOD military disposal stock) generated 

and transferred revenue to the value of R14 686 142,27 to the 

DOD. Military vehicles and related spare parts were sold by 

means of a tender process, while aircraft and related spares were 

sold by contract to the South African defence related industry.
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2. RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) function of Armscor is 

mandated to operate, manage, support and maintain strategic 

defence facilities and essential defence industrial capabilities, 

resources and technologies as identified by the DOD.

The R&D department ensures the long-term sustainability of these 

strategic capabilities through stable funding and established 

business processes, facilitating service delivery and revenue 

generation.

The department conducts defence operational and scientific 

research, management of technology development projects, and 

supplies engineering and technical services to the DOD and 

Armscor.

The R&D function is also responsible for the management of DOD-

owned intellectual property, which includes exploiting commercial 

opportunities that may arise out of technology and product 

development.

The department consists of various divisions and business entities 

that focus on three functional areas:

§ Technology Management, Analysis and Innovation

§ Test and Evaluation Services

§ Operational and Scientific Research

2.1 Technology management, analysis 
and innovation 

The divisions perform an independent, centralised coordination 

and management role for technology acquisition, intellectual 

property management and technology commercialisation.

2.1.1 ManageMent oF teChnoLogy 
deveLopMent prograMMes

The strategic intent for technology development programmes in 

various technology areas is to develop and maintain capabilities 

in South Africa, which would support the new and changing 

demands of the South African National Defence Force (SANDF). 

These programmes are conducted in South African Defence 

Industries and Institutes, Defence Evaluation Research Institutes 

(DERI), and at tertiary education institutions (universities).

The technology funding of R573 million for these programmes was 

distributed as follows:

§ Armscor Research and Development Institutes – 14%

§ CSIR – 26%

§ South African Defence Industries – 59,4%

§ universities – 0,6%

Performance on some of the major technology programmes is 

enlightened below.

2.1.2 aerospaCe teChnoLogy

The technology development objective for guided weapons 

is to develop an All Weather Air Defence Missile (AWADM) 

demonstrator to expand and prove the technology capabilities 

in areas such as radar seekers, missile navigation systems, fusing, 

warheads, and flight control and propulsion systems, integrated 

through a sound systems engineering process. A highlight for the 

2013/2014 financial year was the laboratory demonstration of 

the first build of several missile and radar seeker subsystems. The 

first guided test firing of the AWADM demonstrator is planned for 

2016. 

The technology development objectives for airborne electronic 

warfare are to expand and prove the technology capabilities 

of aircraft self-protection (high-energy lasers and radio-frequency 

missile approach warning), as well as airborne intelligence 

gathering and jamming systems. Laboratory tests of aircraft self-

protection and airborne communications intelligence systems were 

successfully completed during the reporting period.

2.1.3 MaritiMe teChnoLogy

The Maritime DERI (Defence Evaluation and Research Institute) 

provides the SA Navy with scientific and engineering support 

services. The Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT), as the 

custodian of the Maritime DERI, is mandated to develop and 

maintain a sustainable capability for providing techno-military 

expertise to support naval decision-making and naval professional 

competency in specific key naval expertise domains. Performance 

in this domain is discussed under IMT’s section in this report. 
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2.1.4 sUpport teChnoLogy

The Support Operations Technology programme establishes 

technologies in the following DERIs:

§ The Biological and Chemical Defence (BCD) DERI was 
specifically established to provide South Africa with 
a scientific support service in this field.  This service is 
considered to be of national strategic importance and 
is mandated to develop and maintain a sustainable 
capability for the provision of techno-military expertise 
to support BCD decision-making and BCD professional 
competency. Performance in this domain is discussed 
under Protechnik’s section in this report.

§ The Ergonomics DERI established in Ergotech is a leading 
ergonomics consultancy. It provides a comprehensive 
service in ergonomics, occupational health and safety, 
both locally and internationally. Ergotech has been 
approved by the Department of Labour as the inspection 
authority in occupational hygiene. Performance in this 
domain is discussed under Ergotech’s section in this report.

2.1.5 Landwards teChnoLogy

The Landwards Technology portfolio programme has the intention 

to provide the SANDF with a ready technology base in order 

to provide scientific and engineering advice and technological 

solutions in the Firepower, Mobility and Protection domains.

The firepower technology development is aimed at providing 

science and engineering knowledge to improve weapon systems 

with respect to ballistics, fusing, modelling and simulation whilst 

protection and mobility technology development addresses 

passive, reactive and active protection systems and electric 

drive technology. Further scientific and engineering advice was 

delivered to the Land Forces of the SANDF with regard to mobility, 

blast protection, specialised soldier requirements/applications, 

battlefield clearance (uXO/IED disposal), mine detection, and 

camouflage. These performances are highlighted under the 

specific Research and Development Facilities and Institutes in this 

report. 

2.1.6 eLeCtroniCs teChnoLogy

The Electronics Technology portfolio programme has the intention 

of providing the SANDF with a ready technology base in order 

to provide scientific and engineering advice and technological 

solutions in the Radar, Electronic Warfare, Radio Frequency, 

Communications, Information Warfare and Optronics domains.

The Radar technology development programme includes research 

into improved target detection, tracking and classification. The 

Dual Band Radar (DBRXL) demonstrator was successfully utilised 

to detect and track a target drone at the umkhonto Missile Firing 

in October 2013 at Overberg Test Range (OTR).

2.1.7 dUaL X-L band radar For groUnd based 
air deFenCe systeMs (gbads)

The Electronic Warfare (EW) Radio Frequency (RF) technology 

development programme includes the management of large 

amounts of diverse EW data, the choice of appropriate 

countermeasures associated with each sensor and/or platform, to 

detect or estimate hostile intent of a user of radar or communications 

systems, the exploitation of RF missiles, and the control of the 

electromagnetic spectrum. Major inroads have been made with 

regard to techniques for weak signal detection during the year.

The Optronics technology development programme includes target 

detection tracking and classification, countermeasure development 

against Infra-red (IR) seeker based missiles, the military application 

of lasers in targeting and surveillance, novel sensors and imaging 

processing techniques, and research on camouflage techniques. 

The quality and reliability of the tracking has improved to such an 

extent that in the next laboratory development it will replace the 

imported tracker solution.

The Command & Control (C&C) technology development 

programme includes building up and maintaining a capability 

in command and control technologies, providing assistance in 

the development of doctrine for complex military operations 

and decision support for the upgrade of command and control 

systems, improving situational awareness, improving collaboration 

between forces, threat and resource management, data and 

Dual X-L Band Radar.
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information fusion, and management and exploration of emerging 

mobile communication techniques. 

The highlight for the year was the MACADAMIA Field C&C 

Experiment:

§ It was the most integrated real time command and control 
experiment to date.

§ It helps to focus command and control research while 
at the same time evaluating new concepts within border 
safeguarding.

§ It introduces the SANDF to new technologies in a 
practical manner.

2.1.8 University grants prograMMe 

This activity entails the Defence Technology Programme’s tertiary 

institutions’ scientific research component. It is a core part of 

the technology development process, where new knowledge 

is generated. Research is directed towards solving complex 

problems faced by the SANDF. The programme is executed 

by post-graduate students and study leaders located at various 

South African universities, and will be extended to undergraduate 

students from 2014/2015. 

2.2 Test and evaluation facilities

The Armscor R&D facilities perform Test and Evaluation services for 

both the defence and commercial industries.

2.2.1 gerotek test range

Gerotek Test Facilities is composed of the vehicle test range, test 

laboratories and conference centre at Elandsfontein Pretoria West, 

the Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) test laboratory in Lyttelton 

Centurion, and the National Antenna Test Range at Paardefontein. 

Through its various business divisions, Gerotek provides test and 

evaluation, advanced driver training and corporate event services 

in support of the acquisition processes of Armscor, the South 

African National Defence Force and other government institutions. 

Commercial activities were prominent during the year under 

review. Gerotek earned 62% of the total income of R53,2m from 

commercial clients, although 8,8% of the planned commercial 

sales did not materialise. Services were provided to the local 

commercial and military industries, government institutions as 

well as to international clients especially in the automotive and 

electronic industries. 

Among the most prominent clients were Tata (India), Mahindra 

(India), Volvo (Sweden), Porsche (Germany), BMW, Mercedes 

Benz, Ford, Smart (Germany), Medav (Germany), Bell Equipment, 

Paramount and BAE Systems. Advanced driver training has been 

conducted for the military, mining, industrial and motor industries, 

as well as for SASOL, the Department of Correctional Services 

and the South African Police Service.

Gerotek is the coordinator and host of the annual Sasol Mini Baja 

competition in which international and local tertiary institutions take 

part. Gerotek again participated in the johannesburg International 

Motor Show.

In order to maintain Gerotek’s technology base and to keep 

up with changing client requirements, new test facilities and 

capabilities were established. Amongst these are equipment 

upgrade activities at the National Antenna Test Range, equipment 

for vehicle performance measurement, and the construction of two 

new walk-in climate test chambers.

The integrated ISO 17025, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 

management system was maintained. ISO 17025 accreditation 

was extended to 31 May 2016. The Safety and Security Sector 

Education and Training Authority (SASSETA) accreditation, 

Transport Education Training Authority (TETA) accreditation and 

the SABS/POLICE small firearms training facility accreditation, 

which are all essential for service delivery, were also maintained. 

External audits for environmental and safety legal compliance 

and HIRA (Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment) were 

conducted. Official ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certification 

is planned during 2014/2015. 

Gerotek again participated in various proficiency testing schemes 

with other test laboratories in order to ensure integrity of test results.

Vehicle undergoing testing at Gerotek test range.
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Gerotek is involved in a social investment programme with 

the nearby Atteridgeville community. Project teams including 

representatives from the community are active in value adding 

initiatives. Involvement with the Kalafong Provincial Hospital is 

ongoing, to support the management team in striving towards 

service excellence. 

2.2.2 aLkantpan test range

Alkantpan Test Range (ATR) hosted a number of foreign and local 

clients to conduct ballistic testing. These tests were conducted 

professionally and contributed significantly to the higher than 

planned sales materialised. Of the R62 million actual sales, 

which reflects 8,4% above the planned sales, 51% was obtained 

from foreign clients, 30% from local commercial clients and 19% 

through the DOD service level agreement.

Bundeswehr and Diehl Defence Bodensee Geraete Technik 

(BGT) of Germany and Oto Melara of Italy jointly conducted 

further 155 mm Artillery tests of new generation guided munitions 

at ATR. Similar tests are planned by Diehl Defence BGT and Oto 

Melara to be conducted with the Italian 127 mm Artillery system.

Rheinmetall Waffen Munition and Rheinmetall Defence of 

Germany, as well as the Defence Matériel Organisation (DMO) 

of the Netherlands conducted tests with German and South African 

qualified ammunition at various longer ranges at ATR. junghans 

Microtec of Germany, manufacturers of fuses, also conducted fuse 

functionality tests during this campaign.

ATR’s main foreign client, Singapore, conducted various tests 

throughout the year. ATR also concluded contract negotiations 

with Singapore, which culminated in the signing of a new two-year 

contract.

Various tests were conducted for the South African Ordnance 

market (Rheinmetall Denel Munition, Denel (Dynamics, Land 

Systems and PMP), BAE Systems, Reutech Fuchs, CSIR and other 

companies). In certain instances these tests were conducted 

for demonstration purposes to foreign clients. Denel Dynamics 

successfully completed the first round of flight tests of the new 

Seeker 400 unmanned Aerial Vehicle (uAV) at ATR. 

ATR is constructing an Insensitive Munitions facility for testing 

foreign and local client ammunition in a professional, efficient 

and safe manner. The facility will reduce the lengthy set-up time of 

preparing for these tests. The facility is scheduled to be operational 

on 31 May 2014. 

ATR has purchased a high-precision Global Positioning System 

(GPS) system to more accurately measure impact points, target 

locations and other positions used during test set-up to an 

accuracy of about 20 mm. A base station receives correctional 

data and re-transmits it to a handheld roving receiver at a distance 

of approximately 30 km through the range. This enables high-

accuracy positional data to be obtained throughout ATR. This 

high-precision GPS system will also be used to upgrade the 

geographical datum system from the old Cape datum to the 

internationally utilised WGS84 datum system. 

ATR was recertified with accreditation of ISO 9001: 2008, 

Quality Management System by Bureau Veritas International, 

and ISO 17020 Approved Inspection Authority (AIA), by South 

African National Accreditation System (SANAS). ATR is one of 

three entities in South Africa that has AIA accreditation.

2.3 operational and scientific research

The Defence and Evaluation Research Institutes (DERIs) perform 

R&D services for both the defence and commercial industries 

through centres of excellence.

2.3.1 deFenCe deCision sUpport institUte (ddsi)

Defence Decision Support Institute delivers Decision Support to 

the DOD in terms of research and analysis, engineering support, 

as well as specific specialist support services as mandated by the 

Armscor Act and required and funded by the Department. This 

support is mainly focused on the higher system levels (level 5+) 

over the total life cycle of defence capabilities. 

Support includes decision support, operational research, defence 

analysis, capability analysis and products system management 

support to defence practitioners in the DOD.

The highlights during the past year included:

§ Support to the Defence Secretariat as part of the resource 
group of the Defence Review Committee. This included 
the cost estimator model that was presented to Cabinet as 
part of the Defence Review for finalisation.

§ The SA Army doctrine development project showed 
considerable progress in terms of the Lessons Identified 
and Lessons Learnt System (LIALLS) in support of doctrine 
development in the SA Army and joint Operations (j Ops) 
environments.
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§ Engineering Services and Systems Management 
Support to the Directorate SA Army, which include 
Logistics Engineering, Physical Configuration Audits 
(PCA’s), Material Baseline Support, Operational Data 
Analysis & Reporting, the planning and implementation 
of Governance, Obsolescence Management Support, 
and Doctrine Development Support. This is done for 
Product Systems in Operation at the SA Army, as well 
as to support the Products Systems Manager during the 
acquisition phase. It also includes analysis of operational 
data to ensure the proper management of assets. Asset 
management is also being investigated for implementation 
in line with government initiatives.

§ joint Command and Control (C²) support and Capability 
Development in the SANDF to the j Ops division was also 
ongoing in terms of research and decision support, despite 
contracting issues experienced at DDSI. This will be re-
established through intensive stakeholder engagement 
and demonstration of the capabilities within DDSI.

2.3.2 arMoUr deveLopMent

This specialised division conducts continuous research and 

development to maintain and advance armour protection 

technologies and to establish industrial capability to timeously 

satisfy armour protection requirements over the entire threat 

spectrum in a cost-effective manner. The products and the know-

how developed and maintained in Armour Development allow 

the South African security forces to maintain their efficiency in 

operations by protecting personnel and equipment from hostile 

ballistic threats. 

This service includes analysis of the customer protection needs, 

development of armour, testing and qualification, vehicle hull 

structural and ballistic design, as well as specification of bonding 

or welding. The division has extensive experience in retro-fitting 

armour packages on main battle tanks and the supply of modular 

adaptable armour packages for light and medium vehicles. 

The research work on armour protection as contracted by the 

Defence Research and Development Board (DRDB) systems, 

continued. Progress on improved RPG-7 protection systems was 

concluded, including the testing of representative targets related 

to Navy ships to demonstrate possible solutions to RPG-7 attack. 

Work continued on innovatively designed explosive reactive 

armour, with the focus on optimisation of the designs. The evolution 

of full-scale armour add-on packages to reduce collateral damage 

continued, and the results obtained were satisfactory. 

Innovative work was conducted on electric armour solutions; the 

solutions are promising and will be refined.

Armour Development was contracted to evaluate body armour 

and to offer solutions to the SANDF for the improvement thereof. In 

addition, the testing of new generation transparent ceramics was 

attended; this solution offers one quarter the weight for ballistic 

protection compared to armour glass protection systems. Focus 

is maintained on the weight reduction of armour packages with 

adequate protection, and on research on materials for improved 

armour performance. 

Armour Development conducted limited commercial ballistic tests 

(5% of total business portfolio of R8,4 million) for local defence 

companies, mainly aimed at qualifying or verifying the protection 

capabilities of the products these companies supply to their foreign 

and local customers.

2.3.3 ergonoMiCs teChnoLogies (ergoteCh)

Ergotech is responsible for the integration of ergonomics into the 

military systems of the South African National Defence Force 

(SANDF). This objective is accomplished by providing military 

ergonomics research, design and specification of human-machine 

interfaces and ergonomics evaluation and testing services to the 

DOD.

Body armour fit evaluation

Ergotech’s scientific research portfolio includes military ergonomics 

work for the Defence Research and Development Board and 

for the South African Military Health Services (SAMHS). The 

ergonomics areas that were covered included scan anthropometry 

of encumbered soldiers, biomechanics experimentation, reactive 

force measurement and modelling, and real time monitoring of 

human physiological exertion parameters during soldier task 

performance. Work was also conducted on cognitive ergonomics 

and workload measurement of soldier tasks, functional performance 

with the focus on performance enhancement, and specific military 

ergonomics research as required by the different arms of service. 

Ergotech also conducted a research study on soldier protection 

using body armour for the infantry soldier. 
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For the test and evaluation portfolio, services that were conducted 

were for the new generation combat vehicle project, the 

ambulance projects of the SAMHS, new special purpose body 

armour, and hearing protective devices for the SANDF. A number 

of smaller commercial project evaluations were conducted for 

the vehicle manufacturing industry. Ergotech obtained 94% of the 

R18,3 million business portfolio from the DOD and 6% from the 

commercial projects.

Ergotech successfully modelled muscle contraction to facilitate the 

establishment of protection criteria for sustained soldier loading 

by fighting equipment. Research work was conducted on soldier 

human-computer interaction capabilities under vehicle vibration 

conditions and its influence on soldier performance when operated 

as on-board control equipment. Soldier energy expenditure studies 

were conducted for border safeguarding duties in cold climates 

and the initial training phases of military skills development 

incumbents in the SANDF. This work will contribute substantially 

to optimising food requirements for border protection and new 

intakes. The testing fidelity of the effectiveness of hearing protectors 

for use in a specific military noise environment for impulse noise 

conditions was successfully verified through an international inter-

laboratory confirmation procedure. This test is now available to the 

SANDF for hearing protector evaluation. 

2.3.4 FLaMengro

Flamengro is a strategic capability to the DOD and is mandated 

to “provide a computer based simulation and failure analysis 

support and consultative service to programme managers, the 

DOD and the defence-related industry during product and system 

development”. Flamengro maintains a minimum sustainable 

capability in computer aided engineering (CAE) software and 

hardware, with specific emphasis on ballistics simulation, modelling 

and analysis and validation experiments. 

This will be done in order to provide scientific and engineering 

support to the SANDF as well as the defence industry on the 

design, development and operational use of artillery systems. 

The utility of this capability lies in its ability to:

§ Accelerate development and analysis;

§ Reduce experimentation costs; and

§ Improve performance of legacy and new systems for 
procurement.

The investment in Flamengro can directly be translated to a cost 

savings on affected engineering activities.

Flamengro developed and upgraded the Integrated Ballistic 

Workbench suite of programs used for simulating ballistic 

phenomena in the DOD. The multi-dimensional computer modelling 

and simulation software for internal ballistics has been successfully 

upgraded and deployed in a graphical user environment. The 

development of multiple chamber internal ballistics software is 

undergoing developmental test and evaluation against data from 

the newly commissioned 30 mm internal ballistics test facility. 

The upgrade of the free-jet test facility at Rheinmetall Denel 

Munition (RDM) with the installation of a nozzle test bench is in 

progress. The technology demonstrator for the Extended Range 

Munition has reached a high level of maturity and Flamengro has 

commenced with the planning and execution of validation tests of 

the various subsystems.

2.3.5 hazMat proteCtive systeMs

Hazmat is one of only a few companies in the world able to 

impregnate activated carbon. A wide range of carbon materials 

is produced for respiratory applications, as well as for large 

industrial filtration systems. Hazmat continued with its core business 

of impregnating activated carbon and manufacturing respirator 

filtering devices for commercial and military (governmental) 

applications. 

Improvements have been made to the carbon impregnation 

process and fewer chemicals are now used. This equates to a 

lower environmental impact without compromising on the quality 

and longevity of the end product. Additional work will be 

conducted in the new financial year, not only to further optimise 

chemical usage but also to lower electricity consumption during 

the drying of carbon.
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The majority of Hazmat’s income for the review period was derived 

from commercial business (81%). Respirator filters and masks 

were supplied to the DOD  and the Department of Correctional 

Services. Hazmat managed to increase its market share and 

actual sales (R15,0m) exceeded budgeted sales by 52,7%. This 

is regarded as an achievement, considering the current challenge 

of the introduction of cheaper products to the South African market 

from the East and the prolonged strikes at the mines, which lowers 

the demand for safety equipment.

The expansion of Hazmat’s filter product range to include 

the manufacturing of branded filters for strategic partners has 

developed into a significant portion of Hazmat’s business.

Hazmat is currently in the good position to be a self-sufficient entity 

and it can serve the strategic needs of the DOD as well as its 

commercial clients.

2.3.6 institUte For MaritiMe teChnoLogy (iMt)

IMT is a multi-disciplinary division specialising in defence research, 

development, testing and evaluation of maritime systems. 

IMT presented a successful Show and Tell in October 2013. 

The theme was “Maritime Technology: Capability Development, 

Maintenance and utility” and was attended by all the major 

IMT stakeholders. In his opening address, the Chief of the Navy 

expressed his appreciation for the technology support IMT has 

been giving the SA Navy over the past years.

An improved Vessel Noise Classification algorithm for 

passive sonar target classification was developed, tested and 

implemented in a software program. With this technology it 

would be possible to improve the classification (identification) of 

ships from the underwater radiated noise. The evaluation of this 

technology on South African Navy (SAN) submarines is being 

investigated. Automatic ship sound classification is an important 

future technology focus area.

The capability of the IMT acoustic tank facility was enhanced by 

the installation and setting-to-work of a Motion Gantry Positioning 

System. The new system will enable the accurate positioning of 

transducers during calibration exercises.

A deep-water acoustic recorder was developed to perform 

acoustic signature measurement on dived submarines.  

This device expands the present Waterbug acoustic measuring 

sensors and the multi-influence-range facilities by providing a 

deep-water measurement capability.

The Remus Autonomous underwater Vehicle (AuV), acquired by 

IMT for test and evaluation purposes, was successfully used to 

survey known objects on the seafloor. This included the survey of 

the multi-influence range and the Waterbug acoustic measuring 

sensors situated on the seafloor at a water depth of 25 m, 

approximately 2 km off the IMT building. Interfaces to the AuV 

were developed that would enable the vehicle to be used as a 

test and evaluation platform by researchers of IMT and universities.

The underwater glider vehicle, developed by IMT, was successfully 

tested. The glider can be commanded to hold a specified depth 

to monitor a deployed sensor and then return to the surface based 

on the status of the sensor readings. 

A successful experiment was conducted in the vicinity of the Durban 

harbour to investigate the burial of bottom mines by waves and 

currents in the area. This research is essential for mine detection 

and underwater security operations.

A successful Integrated Maritime Technology Demonstrator (IMTD) 

awareness training session has been conducted for the benefit of 

the SA Navy. The IMTD is an important tool in the dissemination 

of maritime technology information to combat officers and support 

staff on board naval ships.

IR image of a vessel deploying its shell cooling system.

Signature measurements were completed for two frigates, a mine 

hunter and two submarines. The measurements included radar 

cross-sections and infra-red, magnetic and acoustic signatures. The 

thermal infrared signature of a SAN frigate was measured during 

a day-and-night-time trial, under four different ship conditions. 

IMT’s support is considered essential to ensure that operational 

ships remain compliant with their baseline signature standards. 
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The picture below was captured during the IR signature trial, when 

the ship was deploying its shell cooling system.

CISS image during west coast mission.

A night trial was conducted to evaluate a laser dazzler transmitter 

as a non-lethal deterrent for naval vessels against approaching 

small craft. The test confirmed the dazzler’s effectiveness as non-

lethal deterrent during night-time. Glare and flash blindness started 

to occur at a distance of more than 1 km, preventing the threat 

from further approaching the vessel. 

The performance of the Close-in Surveillance System (CISS) 

installed on a SA Navy Frigate was evaluated during missions 

along the African west and east coasts. The system provided 

panoramic infrared video data of high quality throughout the 

mission. The image quality was good enough to recognise small 

surface vessels at close range and larger vessels at longer range. 

When the ship was alongside in foreign ports, the system provided 

a good panoramic picture, showing vehicle, ship and people 

movement around the ship.

The ultrasonic Broken Rail Detector (uBRD) system developed by 

IMT is being installed on Transnet’s Sishen-Saldanha Orex (ore 

export) line. The project is scheduled for completion in july 2014. 

The uBRD system detects cracks developing in railway lines and 

enables Transnet to take preventative action before a rail break 

and subsequent potentially dangerous and costly derailment of 

the train can occur. This development has been awarded the 

prestigious National Science and Technology Forum (NSTF) 

BHP Billiton Award (for “Outstanding Contribution to Science, 

Engineering, Technology and Innovation through research and 

innovation”). This commercial business contributed 32% to the total 

business portfolio of R113,5 million whilst the remainder is funded 

by the DOD.

2.3.7 proteChnik Laboratories

Protechnik Laboratories is a multi-disciplinary laboratory facility 

specialising in the protection of personnel in a hazardous 

environment, the evaluation of materials for the procurement of 

protection equipment, the detection of trace amounts of hazardous 

chemicals, as well as quality control and assurance support for 

chemical defensive products. The laboratory delivered 70,8% of 

total research and development services (R32,3 million) to the 

DOD; 27,5% to the Department of Trade and Industry and 1,7% to 

the local commercial industry. 

In the reporting period, Protechnik successfully completed 

planned investigations in the following areas: protection, synthesis, 

verification, decontamination, detection of chemical warfare (CW) 

agents and toxic industrial chemicals, and conducted biomedical 

and related public health research.

Within the Detection and Warning domain, focus has been on the 

procurement of a wide range of field detectors, with the medium-

term goal of evaluating these, followed by the development and 

maintenance of a comprehensive detection matrix. The verification 

domain embarked on a research project aimed at reducing sample 

analysis time using the new Fast Gas Chromatography technique 

(Fast-GC). Initiation of this project has resulted in Protechnik being 

recognised as amongst only four laboratories accredited by the 

Organisation for the Prohibition of Chemical Weapons (OPCW) 

involved in this type of work.

The new self-generating, pressure swing filtration system (PSFS) 

was developed as a potential replacement for conventional 

carbon filters. Preliminary evaluations produced very positive 

results and current work is focusing on parameter optimisation 

aimed at improving the air-flow through the system.

Also of interest was the analysis of field samples using equipment 

in the mobile chemical biological laboratory (CB Laboratory) and 

using the data to recommend required infrastructure upgrades to 

the contractor to enhance the laboratory’s field capabilities. A 

key element of these upgrades involves constructing a safe link 

of transferring materials from the support container into the mobile 

laboratory. Coupled to this was the identification of requirements 

for the support container, which will house critical consumables 

such as sampling kits and water filtration equipment.

Protechnik recently completed the construction of a Toxicology 

Laboratory. This laboratory is the first of its kind in South Africa 
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and will be used to perform research in the areas of environmental 

toxicology, biomarker studies, in vitro toxicity and protein chemistry. 

Currently the laboratory is used to determine the environmental 

fate of pharmaceuticals in South African water supplies. This 

research serves as “real-life” target practice for chemical weapons 

detection in complex matrices at trace levels. In addition to this, 

Protechnik is able to establish a national baseline of the chemical 

composition (pharmaceuticals) of surface water.

Protechnik was granted funding to acquire a highly advanced 

analysis system, shown in the picture below. The system is the 

first of its kind on the African continent and will be used for the 

identification of unknown chemicals and proteins. The instrument 

offers higher resolving power and level of accuracy than currently 

available analytical infrastructure, and will be used in South African 

Military Health Services funded research, which involves the 

description of the chemical components of South African surface 

water supplies, as well as for the detection and characterisation 

of chemical warfare agents. The system will also be utilised as a 

screening tool in the annual OPCW proficiency test.

The New Agilent UHPLC-qTOF equipment.

Protechnik continues to participate in efforts initiated by the OPCW. 

During the 2013/2014 project year, Protechnik participated in 

the 9th OPCW Regional Assistance and Protection Course for 

the African States Parties aimed at enhancing the capabilities of 

African member states to implement and maintain the Chemical 

Weapons Convention. In addition, an OPCW sponsored 

Analytical Chemistry Course was held at Protechnik in which 

selected delegates from the African continent were trained under 

the joint partnership of Protechnik and VERIFIN (Finland) scientists.

3. ARMSCOR DOCKYARD 

The importance of the Dockyard and the need to ensure its 

sustained economic future through a combination of effective 

and efficient maintenance services to the South African Navy 

and commercial work formed the core element of the Transfer 

Agreement. The Dockyard provides maintenance and repair 

services to the SA Navy on various configuration product systems, 

ranging from submarines, frigates, tugs and small craft to support 

vessels in accordance with the Dockyard’s available capacity 

and capability. The services cover both planned and unplanned 

projects. 

The year under review continued to be marred by challenges 

of insufficient capacity, capabilities and insufficient funding. The 

funding gap still exists to maintain a baseline support capability, 

the Dockyard resources reflect a shortfall in both its human and 

technical capability to fulfil its intended capability to support the 

full SAN upkeep capability. 

Despite the challenges of insufficient funding, the Dockyard has 

reasonably met its obligations of service delivery in accordance 

with the performance management agreement with the SA Navy. 

As per the available capabilities, Dockyard is still suffering from a 

lack of capability to provide the services required in terms of both 

the transfer and service delivery agreements. 

The Dockyard needs a major transformation programme which 

would include its people, processes, procedures and facilities 

to bring it up to the required standard. The Armscor Board has 

undertaken to address the situation by embarking on an in-depth 

study to analyse the underlying gaps and potential opportunities 

to turn the situation around. In order to assist the transformation 

process, Armscor commissioned a service provider with extensive 

experience and expertise in transforming, operating and 

managing dockyards successfully throughout the world to carry 

out a Business Development Study. The study was concluded and 

it is undergoing the necessary approvals.
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3.1 projects

A number of projects were undertaken during the reporting period, 

both planned (refits and docking and essential defects) and 

unplanned (operational defects and ad-hoc work). The projects 

were executed in accordance with the respective user requirement 

statement of work.

3.2 frigates

The Dockyard’s primary focus was mainly on the SAS Mendi 

maintenance period for docking and essential defects (DED) 

which commenced on 2 May 2013.

3.2.1 sas Mendi (doCking and essentiaL 
deFeCts)

This project commenced on 2 May 2013 and the vessel was 

docked on 27 june 2013. The project is experiencing a number 

of challenges, including a shortage in funding to procure the 

necesarry spares and material.

Furthermore, as a result of a strategic decision taken by the SA Navy 

to dock the SAS DRAKENSBERG in readiness for deployment, the 

revised planned completion date for this project is july 2014.

3.3 patrol vessels

3.3.1 sas issaC dyoba (doCking and essentiaL 
deFeCts)

The project commenced on 14 March 2014 with planned 

completion date june 2014. A number of tasks will have to be 

rescheduled due to financial authorities awaiting approval by 

the SA Navy. These tasks will be rescheduled once financial 

authorities have been approved for spares and additional labour. 

3.3.2 sas UMhLoti (UnsChedULed doCking)

The vessel was docked on 5 December 2013 for repairs to its 

drive mechanism. All taskings were successfully completed. 

3.3.3 sas UMziMkULU (doCking and essentiaL 
deFeCts)

This project commenced on 22 April 2013 and was successfully 

completed. 

3.4 Tugs

3.4.1 tUg indLovU (doCking and essentiaL 
deFeCts)

This Docking and Essential Defects (DED) commenced on            

16 September 2013. The Dockyard was tasked with a number 

of additional supplementary tasks. The additional work was 

executed within the planned maintenance period. The DED has 

been completed in accordance with planned time scales.

3.4.2 tUg UMaLUsi (UnsChedULed doCking)

The Aquamaster thruster unit (both port and starboard clutches) on 

the tug became unserviceable and had to be replaced. Spares 

had to be imported from the original equipment manufacturer. The 

spares had to be manufactured as they were not readily available 

off the shelf. The spares have been recieved and the repair is in 

progress, the planned completion date of this task is june 2014.

3.5 submarines

3.5.1 sas Manthatisi (reFit)

The progress on the refit in general is progressing satisfactorily. 

Additional repair tasks have been identified, which have moved 

the initial planned completion date from july 2014 to September 

2014. 

3.5.2 sas QUeen ModJadJi i (doCking and 
essentiaL deFeCts)

This maintenance period commenced on 7 October 2013. The 
availability of spares, especially long lead time items provided 
as Client Furnished Equipment, remains a challenge due to lack 
of funding. This risk is impacting on the project completion date 
which is planned for june 2014. This risk is being addressed via 
the appropriate channels. It must be noted that Dockyard has 
limited trained submarine staff which is also contributing to delays.

Corvette. 
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3.6 independent vessels

3.6.1 sas drakensberg (reFit)

The refit commenced on 5 August 2013. The majority of the 
maintenance and repair tasks was planned to be executed 
alongside without docking the vessel. The main tasks were; strip 
out and replacement activities and a number of engineering 
changes. Additional tasks were identified and some dependent 
on funding, which still remains a challenge. Planned completion is 
September 2014.

3.6.2 staFFing

The Dockyard employed an additional 63 employees in the 
technical areas, as part of its capability rejuvenation initiatives. This 
was in order to improve the level of technical skills required to meet 
service delivery commitments to the SA Navy.

3.6.3 saFety, heaLth, environMent and 
QUaLity CoMpLianCe with LegaL and 
regULatory reQUireMents (sheQ)

Armscor Dockyard’s annual ISO 9001:2008 surveillance audit 

via the certification body SABS Commercial was conducted on 

24 October 2013. The purpose of the audit was to determine 

conformance with the Quality Management System requirements, 

which includes contractual, organisation’s own documentation, 

legal and statutory requirements. The Dockyard has concluded a 

successful audit, with positive comments from the auditors. 

A formal evaluation was carried out by the SABS on 03 july 

2013 to determine the Dockyard’s preparation programme and 

readiness for the stage two on-site audit against the requirements 

of ISO 14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2011. An assessment 

report was made available, which highlights the requirements of 

the Dockyard Safety, Health and Environmental Management 

System to be ready for the formal stage one audit. 

The corporate audit was conducted between 25–29 November 

2013 with the emphasis on the Safety, Health and Environmental  

legislative compliance disciplines. These findings will be taken 

forward to the 2014/15 performance year with a consolidated 

corrective action plan that will monitored on a monthly and 

quarterly basis. 

At the start of the 2013/14 financial year the Dockyard 

management recognised that SHE was not very well integrated. 

A decision was made to embark on a safety campaign aimed 

at “striving towards zero harm”, which was very well supported 

by the organisation. SHE compliance contracts were established 

for personal protective equipment, as well as the upgrade for an 

industrial clinic contract. A lot of emphasis was placed on SHE 

awareness with all employees, including contractors, trained 

within the various disciplines. Waste management, EIA regulations, 

section 28 duty of care, new employee induction programmes, as 

well as legal appointee training were at the forefront of training 

and development. 

Owing to the nature of its operational requirements, the Dockyard 

is continuously being challenged by the following legislative 

requirements:

§ Lifting Machinery Regulation (Driven Machinery 
Regulation section 18.5)

§ Electrical Certification of Compliance (Electrical 
Installation Regulation section 7.1)

§ Emergency Preparedness System (OHSAS 18001 clause 
4.4.7)

§ Environmental Management Programmes (National 
Environmental Management Act), guided by the following 
site-specific operational issues:

Submarine undergoing maintenance.

Capabilities of the Dry Dock.
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 ú Permits from the local authorities to store 
flammable liquids;

 ú Compliance with NEMA activities; 

 ú Storage facility of flourescent tubes;

 ú Monitoring of key environmental indicators;

 ú Life-cycle assessment reports within the Dockyard;

 ú Controlling medical waste;

 ú Storm-water reports;

 ú Chemical wash water stored incorrectly;

 ú No atmospheric licences;

 ú No emission studies done;

 ú Local authorities not informed in terms of section 
30 of the law;

 ú Storm-water controls can potentially lead to 
pollution

4. SuPPORT FuNCTIONS

4.1 Quality

The primary roles of Armscor’s Quality function are: corporate 

quality management, quality engineering services and quality 

assurance. The Quality function also provides quality assurance 

services to Armscor, the DOD and other clients by means of 

General Quality Assurance agreements.

4.1.1 Corporate QUaLity ManageMent 

Armscor is committed to following best global practices as an 

organisation. The organisation has chosen to follow ISO 9001, 

is a globally recognised accreditation standard for quality, and 

Armscor is committed to maintaining its ISO 9001 accreditation. 

The restructuring of the corporation has led to a change in the 

certification scope. The corporation is currently revising essential 

elements of its Quality Management System in preparation for re-

certification by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS). 

4.1.2 QUaLity engineering 

The quality engineering function conducts technical auditing, 

mainly over the acquisition process, which assures the technical 

integrity of acquisition programmes. This function also provides an 

independent assurance of the tender process to ensure its integrity. 

Audits of the acquisition programmes have shown a high degree 

of compliance with sound system engineering prescripts. Non-

compliances highlighted to programme managers have received 

the necessary attention and there were no major non-compliances 

in this area. 

The quality engineering function also provides assurance over 

the tender process. For the year under review, there were several 

delays in projects experienced during the tender process. Internal 

practices are under review to address shortcomings. 

4.1.3 QUaLity assUranCe 

Acquisition projects were assured by quality divisions to ensure 

that technical integrity was unaffected despite timescale and 

financial pressures. Quality function also provides assurance of 

the performance of defence contractors to support a “first time 

right” product delivery, by rating contractors in accordance with 

their quality management systems and their performance on 

contracts. For the 2013/2014 financial year, an average of 101 

contractors performed extremely well and fell within the 80–100% 

rating interval; 10 of the contractors had a few rejections during 

submission of deliverables to the Armscor Quality Representative 

and fell within the 50–79% rating interval, while 2 other contractors 

fell within the lower 0-49% rating interval. These contractors are 

primarily responsible for maintenance work on vehicle repairs and 

night vision equipment.

4.1.4 governMent QUaLity assUranCe

Government Quality Assurance is a process whereby a quality 

assurance service is provided to other government organisations 

and in return knowledge of new technologies is gained. During 

the year under review, quality assurance services were provided 

to two organisations, one being the South African Police Service 

for body armour products, as part of a three-year agreement. A 

total amount of about R393 972 was earned during the period 

under review.

4.1.5 saFety, heaLth and environMent (she) 

Compliance with Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) 

regulations is another important area of Armscor’s compliance 

focus, especially given the importance of employee well-being 

and the significant increase in penalties for non-compliance. The 

organisation has adopted management systems such as ISO 

14001, ISO 22000 and OHSAS 18001.



44

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

All operations strive to achieve continual improvement in the 

management of risks, and seek to prevent, mitigate, reduce and 

offset any impacts of SHE activities. The organisation is continually 

monitoring and measuring the associated risks in order to enable 

conformity to statutory and regulatory requirements and to preserve 

the environment for future generations. A risk committee has been 

established to proactively review and improve management 

systems and monitor progress.

4.1.6 eXternaL CLient sUrvey 

A biennial external client survey was conducted to measure the 

level of satisfaction of external clients with all the services provided 

by Armscor. In previous years the survey measured the acquisition 

service only, but this year the survey measured services provided 

throughout the corporation. A satisfaction result of 81,3% was 

achieved which is lower than previous periods, however a broader 

spectrum was covered.

4.2 Corporate Compliance

Armscor’s Corporate Compliance function is aimed at discharging 

the corporation’s responsibility to comply with applicable 

statutory, regulatory and policy requirements. This is done through 

incorporating and embedding compliance principles in all existing 

processes throughout the corporation, monitoring, and reporting 

on the compliance risk. The Corporate Compliance function 

includes in particular the following divisions: Legal Services, 

BEE Facilitation, Conventional Arms Control, Security Services, 

Procurement Secretariat, and Compliance and Risk Management.

4.2.1 LegaL serviCes

litigation

arms procurement Commission (known as the seriti 
Commission)

The Government of the Republic of South Africa appointed, in 

terms of section 84(2)(f) of the Constitution of the Republic of 

South Africa 1996, a Commission to investigate any improprieties 

or irregularities relating to the acquisition of armaments under the 

Strategic Defence Procurement Packages. The Commission is 

referred to as the “Arms Procurement Commission”. 

The Arms Procurement Commission is mandated to make findings, 

draw conclusions, report on and make recommendations 

concerning the following, referred to as the terms of reference: 

1. The rationale for the Strategic Defence Procurement 
Packages (SDPPs).

2. The procurement process followed in acquiring the SDPPs.

3. Whether the arms and equipment acquired in terms of the 
SDPPs are utilised or underutilised.

4. Whether job opportunities anticipated to flow from the 
SDPPs have materialised at all; if they have, the extent to 
which they have materialised, and if they have not, the 
steps that ought to be taken to realise them.

5. Whether offsets anticipated to flow from the SDPPs have 
materialised at all; if they have, the extent to which they 
have materialised, and if they have not, the steps that 
ought to be taken to realise them.

6. Whether any person within and/or outside the 
Government of South Africa improperly influenced the 
award or conclusion of any of the contracts awarded and 
concluded in the SDPP procurement process, and, if so, 
whether legal proceedings should be instituted against 
such persons or cancellation be considered and the 
ramifications of such cancellations. 

Armscor featured prominently in phase 1 of the Commission, 

testifying on the procurement process. Eleven Armscor employees 

and ex-employees testified and Armscor concluded its testimony.

Armscor was represented by Bowman Gilfillan Attorneys and 

Advocate Richard Solomon SC in this matter. It is not anticipated 

that Armscor will be required to participate in the next phases.

beverly securities

Armscor is defending a claim from Beverly Securities in the Civil 

Court of Lisbon for the alleged non-payment of commission in 

respect of the acquisition of the Oryx helicopters of the SAAF 

during the late nineteen-eighties. The value of the claim is 

approximately 192 million Euros. The summons was received in 

2008 already. The matter was dismissed by the court on the lack 

of jurisdiction by the Portuguese Courts. The matter was appealed 

and the Court of Appeal found in favour of the plaintiff. Armscor 

then also appealed the ruling. The Court of Appeal again found 

in favour of the plaintiff and ruled that the Portuguese Courts will 

have jurisdiction to hear the matter.

The matter has now been referred back to the court of first 

instance. The court indicated that the preservation of evidence 

should be undertaken by the parties. This will mitigate the risk of 

losing important evidence due to old age of witnesses. 
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The parties have in principle agreed that the preservation of 

evidence will be done in South Africa and then translated into 

Portuguese to be used during the proceedings in Lisbon. It is 

expected that the preservation of evidence in commission will be 

held in November 2014. Lastly, the court ruled that the exceptions 

raised will be dealt with in parallel with the merits of the matter.

new generation arms management (pty) ltd (ngam)

NGAM executed an order placed by Armscor. The statutory 

duties were however not paid over to SARS in terms of the 

provisions of the order. Armscor had already paid the amount 

to NGAM. Armscor received a letter of demand from SARS to 

pay the outstanding amount with SARS, and was also informed 

that a substantial penalty would be levied in the event that the 

amount was not paid. Armscor paid the amount outstanding and 

has instituted legal action against NGAM to recover the amount 

of approximately R6,1 million. Summons has been issued against 

NGAM at the Northern Gauteng High Court.

The summons was properly served but NGAM did not file a 

notice of intention to defend. Armscor is proceeding to obtain an 

order against NGAM.

rheinmetall denel munitions (pty) ltd

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, acting through 

the Department of Public Enterprise, sold 51% shares of Denel 

Munitions, a division of Denel, to Rheinmetall, a German company. 

As part of the transaction the Department of Defence licensed 

Denel, as well as the new entity to use its intellectual property in 

the business of the new entity. Armscor had sought to license to 

other local third parties with a view to stimulating and sustaining 

the local defence industry, which Rheinmetall found unacceptable.

Rheinmetall Denel Munitions (RDM) filed an application in the 

Western Cape High Court to prevent Armscor from licensing third 

parties to use defence intellectual property. The matter was set 

down for hearing on 6 February 2013 and postponed to 5 june 

2013. In the interim Armscor and Denel had a workshop, where 

Armscor made proposals for consideration by RDM. On the court 

date the parties agreed to a further postponement to allow RDM 

time to consider Armscor’s proposal, with a view to amending the 

licensing agreement. The matter has been postponed indefinitely 

and the parties are considering and discussing the matter outside 

court with the view of settling. 

4.2.2 LegisLative CoMpLianCe

regulatory universe

A Regulatory universe has been established for Armscor, meaning 

that the members of the corporation are aware of legislation that 

impacts on Armscor and will make an effort to ensure compliance.

risk Compliance management plans

High-risk legislation has been identified and risk compliance 

management plans developed in consultation with role players 

to ensure understanding of compliance requirements and different 

responsibilities in addressing the requirements.

The department is in the process of building the compliance 

monitoring and reporting capability.

4.2.3 proMotion oF aCCess to inForMation 
aCt (paia) reQUests

During the period under review Armscor received seven PAIA 

requests, five were processed and completed and two are in 

progress. 

4.2.4 broad based bLaCk eConoMiC 
eMpowerMent (bbbee)

application of pppfa

Armscor commenced implementing the Preferential Procurement 

Policy Framework Act (PPPFA) and its Regulations in December 

2012 after the expiry of the Exemption Notice issued by the 

Minister of Finance on 7 December 2011, which had exempted 

all public entities listed in Schedules 2 and 3 of the Public Finance 

Management Act 1999 for a period of one year.

There have been a number of challenges encountered with the 

implementation of the PPPFA and its Regulations. The PPPFA 

Implementation Guidelines, an inferior instrument, is inconsistent 

with the PPPFA Regulations and with the spirit of transformation 

at a broader level. For example, the submission of the BBBEE 

Verification Certificate is compulsory according to the PPPFA 

Regulations but the PPPFA Implementation Guideline does not 

allow disqualification of a bidder who did not submit the BBBEE 

Verification Certificate. This poses a serious challenge when 

reporting on Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment’s 

(BBBEE) “Spend against the total Procurement Spend”. 

Consequently this has a negative impact on Armscor’s Preferential 
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Procurement Scorecard, as well-established suppliers who are not 

transformed have an opportunity to compete amongst themselves 

at the exclusion of previously disadvantaged groups or individuals 

whom the legislation aims to empower economically. 

pppfa exemption application

The Armscor Board of Directors considered and resolved to apply 

for an exemption from full application of the PPPFA, in order to put 

Armscor in a position to effectively facilitate transformation of the 

Defence Industry. The application is currently going through the 

required process for consideration and approval.

verification of armscor’s bbbee status

Armscor’s BBBEE verification was completed in April 2014 and 

the BBBEE Certificate was issued at a level 3 BBBEE status. 

Armscor has performed well on Management Control, Preferential 

Procurement, Enterprise Development, and Socio-Economic 

Development, and needs to improve on Skills Development.

bee spending report

Acquisition

PROCUREmEnT SPEnd bbbEE SPEnd
bbbEE PROCUREmEnT 

SPEnd On 
RECOGnITIOn lEVElS% 

TARGET%

R7 191 794 574 R6 882 060 637 95.69% 50%

EnTERPRISE ClASSIFICATIOn AmOUnT PAId bbbEE SPEnd bbbEE%

Above R35m turnover R2 657 941 687 R2 368 667 407 32.94%

QSEs R377 908 775 R454 642 090 6.32%

EmEs R89 505 667 R90 362 748 1.26%

Specialised above R35m R3 602 865 067 R3 912 883 973 54.41%

non-Compliant R460 209 477 R0 0%

bOE >50% R216 918 493 R182 680 988 2.54%

bWOE >30% R172 782 280 R77 907 601 1.08%

Operating budget

PROCUREmEnT SPEnd bbbEE SPEnd
bbbEE PROCUREmEnT 

SPEnd On 
RECOGnITIOn lEVElS% 

TARGET%

R92 579 786 R95 625  458 103.29% 80%
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EnTERPRISE ClASSIFICATIOn AmOUnT PAId bbbEE SPEnd bbbEE% TARGET%

Above R35m turnover R59 187 649 R68 084 994 73.54% -

QSEs R9 451 134 R12 234 384 13.21% 20%

EmEs R4 551 844 R4 860 012 5.25% 20%

Specialised above R35m R1 234 271 R0 0% -

non-Compliance R8 115 972 R0 0% -

bOE >50% R14 949 289 R14 251 593 15.39% 25%

bWOE >30% R12 829 931 R11 346 502 12.26% 25%

dockyard

PROCUREmEnT SPEnd bbbEE SPEnd
bbbEE PROCUREmEnT 

SPEnd On 
RECOGnITIOn lEVElS% 

TARGET%

R95 582 625 R99 226 917 103.81% 65%

EnTERPRISE ClASSIFICATIOn AmOUnT PAId bbbEE SPEnd bbbEE% TARGET%

Above R35m turnover  R19 361 729 R20 530 656 21.48% -

QSEs R40 101 187 R53 336 231 55.80% 20%

EmEs R22 404 794 R24 338 263 25.46% 15%

Specialised above R35m  R896 718 R997 598 1.04% -

non-Compliance R12 509 430 R0 0% -

bOE >50% R32 598 570 R28 395 297 29.71% 15%

bWOE >30% R16 247 590 R10 705 187 11.20% 15%

Research and development

PROCUREmEnT SPEnd bbbEE SPEnd
bbbEE PROCUREmEnT 

SPEnd On 
RECOGnITIOn lEVElS% 

TARGET%

R175 265 794 R141 658 937 80.83% 65%

EnTERPRISE ClASSIFICATIOn AmOUnT PAId bbbEE SPEnd bbbEE% TARGET%

Above R35m turnover R26 869 420 R31 233 719  17.82% -

QSEs R13 525 224 R17 821 074 10.17% 15%

EmEs R37 106 541 R37 964 006 21.66% 15%

Specialised above R35m R50 035 098 R54 641 812 31.18% -

non-Compliance R47 731 031  R0  0% -

bOE >50% R33 232 205 R25 631 202 14.62% 15%

bWOE >30% R10 810 167 R5 648 361  3.22% 15%
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4.2.5 ConventionaL arMs ControL 

Armscor is registered with the National Conventional Arms Control 

Committee (NCACC), as well as with the South African Council 

of Non-Proliferation of Weapons of Mass Destruction (NPC). The 

Arms Control division ensures compliance of Armscor and Armscor 

suppliers with the relevant applicable legislative, regulatory and 

policy requirements, including international treaties.

To enhance accountability, Armscor is in the process of developing 

and establishing an Arms Control and Tracking IT system, which 

will provide centralised data management, with capacity to track 

all NCACC and NPC issued permits and movement of controlled 

items. This system will be established by the end of this financial 

year and be tested and operationalised in the next financial year.

4.2.6 seCUrity serviCes

The Security division discharges the following responsibilities, 

amongst others: monitoring of compliance with security requirements 

in specific areas, namely personnel security, information security 

and physical security, both in the Corporation and the Defence 

Industry, as well as providing security training and awareness.

During this reporting period, physical security in Armscor, including 

all Armscor facilities situated outside the Armscor building, was 

assessed and improvements approved by the Board of Directors, 

as a means of working towards placing Armscor at a minimum 

level required to achieve National Key Point (NKP) status. 

4.3 ab logistics

AB Logistics is a division within Armscor responsible for providing 

logistic freight and travel services in support to Armscor’s Acquisition 

function, as well as to the SANDF, Foreign Defence Forces and 

the South African Defence Industry (SADI). The business unit 

is a registered and accredited customs clearing agent with the 

South African Revenue Service (SARS) and is a member of the 

International Federation of Freight Forwarders Association (FIATA), 

the South African Association of Freight Forwarders (SAAFF) and 

the Road Freight Association (RFA). For travel services, AB Logistics 

Travel is a registered member of the International Air Transport 

Association (IATA) and the Association of South African Travel 

Agents (ASATA). Travel services are only provided to the DOD 

and Armscor employees. 

Logistic freight services include packaging, freight forwarding, 

chartering, road transportation, customs formalities and complying 

with the various compliance requirements during the importation 

and exportation processes. 

AB Logistics through its international networks and capabilities 

extends its specialised services to other foreign defence forces 

when joint military exercises are held with the SANDF. AB Logistics 

has been the preferred service provider for rendering logistical 

support during import and export processes as required by the 

visitors, while ensuring compliance with the various Arms Control 

Regulations. AB Logistics Freight has maintained its registration 

as a registered transporter of hazardous cargo, weapons and 

ammunition in terms of the Explosives Act and the Firearms Control 

Act, 2000. 

During the year under review AB Logistics rendered logistical 

support in terms of official Memoranda of understanding (MOus) 

for several military exercises and testing campaigns held in and 

beyond South Africa’s borders, for instance for the uSA “Shared 

Accord”, the Netherlands Artillery testing, German Artillery testing, 

the German exercise “Taurus”, Italian exercise “Volcano”, and the 

SANDF exercise “Crown” in Namibia. 

AB Logistics is furthermore the 11th South African freight forwarding 

company to have been validated and certified as a Regulated 

Agent (RA3) in terms of the European union Regulations in 

support of air safety, and has also successfully re-introduced the 

utilisation of South Africa’s rail capabilities for the movement of 

bulk according to DOD requirements. The implementation of the 

Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) Regulations progressed 

well in the period under review, with clean audit reports received 

from the Department of Labour. 

Through the business opportunities the contribution of AB 

Logistics travel services to Armscor’s revenue increased by 6,31% 

(R9 782 780) compared to the previous financial year, while the 

contribution of travel services increased by 17% compared to the 

2012/13 financial year. 

4.4 human resources

The Human Resources function continues to provide a 

comprehensive human resource capacity to enhance the 

effectiveness of the organisation through its people by ensuring 

that competent and high performing employees, who live the 
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organisation’s values, are attracted and retained. This is to ensure 

that employees enable the organisation to deliver on its mandate. 

To this end, a number of initiatives aimed at addressing the critical 

human capital challenges where identified and plans were put in 

place. Satisfactory progress has been recorded in a number of 

areas that seek to address strategic human capital imperatives.

4.4.1 staFF CoMposition

The staff profile of Armscor, including Armscor Dockyard, as at 

31 March 2014 per broad band, race and gender, is indicated 

below.

armscor staff profile including armscor dockyard

STAFF PROFIlE AS On 31 mARCH 2014 

ARmSCOR, R&d And dOCkyARd

 afriCan Coloured indian WhiTe ToTal
grand ToTal

BB m F m F m F m F m F

EX 3 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 2 6

Su 17 9 1 0 3 1 27 2 48 12 60

MP 79 42 20 2 20 3 211 33 330 80 410

STS 69 76 37 13 7 9 43 75 156 173 329

AS 83 109 184 29 0 5 41 27 308 170 478

OS 50 30 53 8 0 0 1 0 104 38 142

TOTAl 301 268 295 52 30 18 324 137 950 475 1425

armscor staff profile excluding armscor dockyard

STAFF PROFIlE AS On 31 mARCH 2014 

ARmSCOR And R&d Only

 afriCan Coloured indian WhiTe ToTal grand ToTal

BB m F m F m F m F m F

EX 3 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 4 2 6

Su 15 8 1 0 3 1 25 2 44 11 55

MP 76 40 16 2 20 3 208 33 320 78 398

STS 64 75 15 12 7 9 33 74 119 170 289

AS 58 89 22 18 0 4 5 22 85 133 218

OS 38 26 4 2 0 0 0 0 42 28 70

TOTAl 254 240 58 34 30 17 272 131 614 422 1036
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4.4.2 eMpLoyMent eQUity

Armscor’s Employment Equity Plan expired on 31 March 2014. 

It was previously stated that the attraction of black females 

at management levels was a challenge; however, during the 

implementation of the plan the goals of appointing females 

especially at management levels, were surpassed in some areas. 

The appointment of people with disabilities remained an area of 

focus and those goals were also achieved. A partnership was 

established with different disability alliances in order to identify 

potential employees and provide them with the necessary 

assistance. 

Armscor is committed to building a workforce that is fully 

representative of the demographics of South Africa that is free 

from all forms of unfair discrimination, and where diversity is a 

key strength towards performance excellence and productivity. In 

this regard Armscor has implemented a structure to monitor and 

evaluate continuous progress. The current plan was constructed 

taking into account the demographic profiles of the different 

regions. The Employment Equity Committee was established in 

order to ensure progress in monitoring and correcting employment 

equity in the different regions.

Transformation: Targets 2013/2014

Transformation remains a priority in the industry that was previously 
male dominant and is a business imperative that is implemented 
to ensure that change takes place. The programme ensures that 
the environment is representative and diverse. This is achieved 
by targeted recruitment from designated groups, including 
gender and persons with disabilities, as well as by implementing 
various organisational development initiatives, such as employee 
satisfaction survey, and BBBEE initiatives. 

Workforce profile progress 2013/2014

The year 2013/14 was the end of the Employment Equity Plan 
and the following goals were achieved in the two-year period:

§ the goal was set to achieve 904 black employees – 964  
black employees were employed;

§ the goals set to appoint black females at management 
level and people with disabilities were surpassed.

Continuous progress is being made towards transforming the 
workforce profile, as was demonstrated during the year under 
review. In order to remain focused on maintaining the required 
transformation, affirmative action measures are being implemented, 
monitored and continually measured against the action plans in 
place. A successive plan ensures that a substantial transformation 
is achieved, with a special emphasis on training interventions.
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4.4.3 eMpLoyee satisFaCtion sUrvey

The Cultural Audit and Employee Satisfaction Survey was 

conducted in 2010 to define the then existing and desired culture 

for Armscor, as well as the level of satisfaction amongst employees, 

and action plans to address the shortcomings where identified. 

The action plans included the following:

§ Integration of the present Armscor value system and 
preferred values identified during the audit;

§ Establishment of service level agreements between 
departments;

§ Review of the Succession Planning Practice, Performance 
Management Practice, Stakeholder Communication 
Strategy, and the induction programme; 

§ Implementation of an Armscor Senior Management and 
Leadership Development programme; and

§ Facilitation of team effectiveness sessions within 
departments and divisional teams.

Since 2010 two in-house Employee Satisfaction Surveys were 

conducted, in 2012 and 2013 respectively. The Armscor Board 

of Directors commissioned another Employee Satisfaction Survey 

to be conducted by an external service provider. The outcome 

showed that the average satisfaction amongst employees rose 

from 61,87% in 2010 to 64,54% in 2014. 

4.4.4 sUCCession pLanning

Succession planning is a key element of business continuation 

planning and focuses on the strategic skills required to meet the 

strategic management and technology demands of the future.

Based on its strategic requirements Armscor identified 95 key 

positions and 85 successors. Most of the successors are employees 

with high potential, and specific accelerated development plans 

are being put in place (e.g. identified overseas courses for short- 

and long-term master’s programmes) to ensure development in line 

with the key position requirements.

Specific strategies were also put in place to identify the 

development gap between the key position requirements and the 

current level of capability of the successors. In order to identify the 

development gap, Armscor developed its own multisource survey 

system, with which feedback was obtained from colleagues, 

subordinates, clients and line managers, as well as a self-

evaluation by the successors.  Further strategies that were used 

included psychometric assessments. This provided the individual 

successors with a good understanding of his or her own strengths 

and development areas, specifically in relation to the key position 

requirements. Career expectation discussions were also held 

between the manager and the successor in order to discuss the 

successor’s short-term and long-term career aspirations.

Based on these focused development actions it is anticipated 

that approximately 46% of the identified successors will be ready 

within the next 3 to 4 years, and the rest in about 5 to 6 years, to 

meet the key capability requirements of some of the key positions. 

4.4.5 skiLLs deveLopMent

Armscor has continued with actions to retain, obtain and develop 

the skills of employees to achieve objectives. For this reason skills 

development remained an important focus area. A number of 

initiatives have been on-going in this area.

armscor senior management leadership programme

The development of management and leadership competence 

continues to remain at the top of the strategic development 

activities in Armscor. 

Work is currently in progress to identify new management and 

senior management development programmes at recognised 

universities in South Africa.

international Training interventions

Armscor prioritised areas of skills shortage and identified 

technologies that are not available in South Africa. With this 

information in mind, Armscor set out to establish partnerships with 

foreign countries and universities abroad. Identified initiatives 

include:

§ Short programmes to be presented locally by subject 
matter experts/presenters from abroad;

§ Sending a group of engineers abroad to study in the 
following fields:

 ú Combat Systems

 ú Naval Mechanical and Engineering

 ú undersea Warfare

 ú Cyber Security Fundamentals 

§ Engaging with other universities, like Cranfield university, 
to investigate and negotiate training opportunities for 
our engineers in identified fields where Armscor has a 
shortage of skills.
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4.4.6 doCkyard training Centre

department of economic development and Tourism 
(dedaT)

The Memorandum of understanding between Armscor Dockyard 

and the Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

for hosting 50 interns was signed in October 2013. To date 

19 additional interns have been placed at the Dockyard, in 

the electrical, mechanical and construction trades respectively, 

bringing the total to 54.

sa navy students 

In terms of the Performance Management Agreement, 36 SA 

Navy students received practical training at the Dockyard Training 

Centre during the period April 2013 to March 2014, in the 

following fields: 

§  Electrical Engineering

§  Mechanical Engineering

§  Shipwright Apprentices

Train the Trainer initiative 

In conjunction with the Department of Economic Development and 

Tourism, eight Dockyard employees successfully completed the 

Mentoring and Coaching course and two the Facilitation Skills 

course.

adult basic education and Training (abeT)

Adult Education and Training (AET) is a training intervention strategy 

that intends to enhance the ability, knowledge, skills and potential 

of all employees who historically did not receive adequate basic 

education. This training is a beneficial, purposeful action that aims 

to improve aggregate levels of skills in the workplace in order 

to maximise appropriate career pathing and self-development 

opportunities. This intervention bore the following progress in the 

year under review:

§ Two learners were promoted to level 2;

§ Six learners from various AET levels were summatively 
assessed and declared competent in various learning 
areas;

§ Four learners testified that through the AET programme 
they are now capable of carrying out the clerical 
positions they occupy.

The AET programme is seen as a training intervention strategy and 

not a sufficient tool to upskill learners to rise above menial chores. 

Hence this programme has been extended to provide training in 

useful business-related skills. The following where introduced and 

achieved:

§ Three employees were enrolled on an Advanced 
Maintenance Service course and were declared 
competent. 

§ Matric (grade 12) was introduced in Armscor.

§ Two learners have completed and acquired the grade 12 
qualification.

§ One learner was enrolled on a Secretarial course.

In the 2013/14 financial year, there were 22 candidates on the 

AET programme. 

The aim in future is to expand and extend the AET programme to 

Armscor’s facilities.

Talent development programme (Tdp)

The Talent Development Programme is one of Armscor’s strategies 

to ensure that there is a constant supply of young talent to the 

organisation. 

The programme aims at ensuring that young graduates are 

developed and prepared for future roles in the organisation. 

Candidates are carefully selected and trained for a period of two 

years. 

The programme is in line with the training requirements of the 
Engineering Council of SA (ECSA), and candidates are required 
to register in the various registration categories as soon as they 
are appointed to the programme. The TDP has continued to be 
a success story for Armscor, with the number of candidates in the 
programme having increased from 13 to 23 in january 2014. The 
gender composition reflects the aim to address the gender and 
racial imbalance in Armscor: 17 of the candidates are female and 

six are male. 

The Armscor Women Engineer/Technical Development 

Programme runs parallel to the Armscor Talent Development 

Programme. This is an exclusive women-only development scheme, 

which was established in line with the Human Capital Strategy in 

order to respond to the challenges faced by Armscor in meeting 

the organisational transformational objectives. Consequently 

10 of the 23 TDP candidates form part of the Armscor Women 

Engineer/Technical Development Programme.
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The focus of training and development for this group of women 

goes beyond Armscor and the candidates are placed with various 

suppliers, such as Denel Dynamics, Denel Land Systems Euro 

Copter, and RDM, for extended training. 

Other activities implemented to strengthen this programme include: 

bursaries

The Armscor Bursary Scheme is the primary tool used to supply 

and retain critical skills in Armscor. Through this scheme potential 

employees are afforded an opportunity to further their formal 

studies. 

Armscor is currently providing a total of 31 bursaries to 

undergraduate students at various universities across South Africa. 

universities visited by armscor for sourcing of 
bursary students

As part of the activity to address the shortage of critical, scarce 

skills in the organisation, as well as to encourage young South 

Africans to consider careers in Armscor and the defence industry, 

Armscor visits universities to present Armscor as an “Employer of 

Choice”. One way of achieving this was to participate in Open 

Days, Career Fairs and Expos of the identified universities. 

In the year under review, Armscor visited universities and expos in 

the following provinces:

§ Gauteng (university of Pretoria, WITS)

§ KwaZulu-Natal (university of KwaZulu-Natal)

§ North West (university of the North West)

§ Western Cape (university of Cape Town)

Further to the above, Armscor is embarking on building solid 

relationships with certain faculties in some of the universities. The 

relationship building with universities aims to achieve the following:

§ Funding of certain research work conducted at these 
faculties.

§ Funding of high-performing candidates at these 
institutions.

§ Exchange of latest research between Armscor experts 
and the university professors.

4.4.7 eMpLoyee weLLness

Our employees are collectively represented by two trade unions, 

namely Solidarity and NEHAWu. Armscor’s leadership maintains 

a supportive relationship with the unions that is built on trust and 

flexibility. Experience has taught us that these principles are 

conducive to creating win-win situations for all parties.

Armscor is mindful of the link between employee wellness and a 
happy, productive workplace. Our wellness programme provides 
Armscor staff and their families with 24-hour access to counselling 
and advice services, delivered through our relationship with the 
Careways Group. This includes assistance in dealing with physical 

and emotional wellness, and financial and legal problems.

In 2013 the Careways Group was appointed as the preferred 
Wellness Service Provider for a tailor-made, professionally-
managed wellness programme that offers each employee and 
their dependants access to several health services. Information 
is shared electronically and articles also appear in the monthly 
Armscor Newsletter.

Employee wellness days were hosted in April and August 2013 
to assess physical health and emotional wellness, as well as to 
give legal, financial and lifestyle advice. Management supports 
regular sport activities, such as athletics, volleyball, soccer, netball 

and golf.

Armscor also provides clinic services where health issues such as a 

monthly blood drive, sick leave monitoring, health campaigns and 

the management of chronic conditions are emphasised.

4.5 informaTion TeChnology

The IT & Infrastructure function was restructured to ensure that 

areas such as IT governance, project management, enterprise 

architecture, knowledge and information management, and 

business intelligence receive more attention in the organisation.

As part of the short-term strategy, the department successfully 
implemented the IT infrastructure upgrade project to prepare for the 
renewal of the application systems. This project included initiatives 
such as Wide Area Network (WAN) upgrade and implementation 
of the new Processing Area Network. The Storage Area Network 
(SAN) and the associated back-up and archiving solution were 
also replaced with improved, more effective and efficient solutions. 
New network security solutions were implemented during this 
reporting period to further mitigate the risks associated with cyber 

security.
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An application system renewal project was initiated with a tender 

published for the implementation, maintenance and support of an 

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solution. The tender process 

had to be cancelled due to various risks that were identified 

during the tender evaluation process. A new plan with a different 

approach that will minimise the previously identified risks has now 

been proposed to resume this project.

The department also initiated a project for improving the retrieval, 

storage and archiving of electronic documents and records 

management through the commissioning of a centralised SharePoint 

2013 Portal. This project furthermore encompasses the revamp 

and redesign of the intranet. It is envisaged that the new portal will 

further enhance content management, knowledge sharing through 

online collaboration, and elimination of multiple document stores. 

The “GO-LIVE” phase of the new portal is scheduled for the new 

financial year (2014/15).

4.6 marKeTing and business 
developmenT

The Marketing and Business Development function is a newly 

established function primarily responsible for marketing the 

corporation, its products and services through integrated marketing 

communication channels in an endeavour to build and enhance the 

Armscor brand and image in the eyes of stakeholders. Its services 

further include providing marketing support to the South African 

Defence Industry (SADI), as well as managing communication 

to both internal and external stakeholders. The Marketing and 

Business Development strategy was approved in March 2014, 

and in future the focus will be on its implementation.

4.6.1 deFenCe indUstry sUpport

Armscor provides an integrated defence industry support to SADI. 

The support includes facilitation of the South African defence 

industry’s participation at international defence exhibitions for 

marketing exposure in international markets, foreign liaison 

services for business development and strategic relationships, as 

well as management of requests for the utilisation of South African 

National Defence Force (SANDF) equipment, personnel and 

facilities for marketing the defence industry’s products and services. 

defence exhibitions and events

Exhibitions and events have been identified as one of the effective 

marketing tools in providing marketing support to the defence 

industry to showcase their capabilities to international markets. 

In this regard, Armscor conducts a survey annually to establish 

the defence industry’s interest in participation at international 

exhibitions and to recommend those to the Department of Trade 

and Industry (Dti) for financial assistance. In the year under review, 

Armscor facilitated and coordinated representation of the Ministry 

of Defence and/or the DOD and/or the defence industry at the 

following international defence exhibitions: 

§ LAAD Defence and Security ’13 in Rio de janeiro, Brazil, 
on 9–12 April 2013

§ IDEF 2013 in Istanbul, Turkey on 7–10 May 2013 

§ MAKS Airshow 2013 in Moscow, Russia, on 27 
August–1 September 2013 

§ DSEI 2013 in London, united Kingdom, on 10–13 
September 2013

§ Aviation Expo China 2013, in Beijing, China, on 25–28 
September 2013

§ Defence and Security 2013 – in Bangkok, Thailand, on 
4–7 November 2013 

§ Milipol Paris 2013 in Paris, France on 19–22 November 
2013

§ Defexpo India 2014 in New Delhi, India on 6–9 
February 2014

South African defence industry participation increased by 51% 

compared to the previous year. Market research is conducted on 

exhibitions and the host countries, and the reports are disseminated 

to SADI to enable better planning of marketing and business 

development initiatives. 

Inaugural attendance by Armscor at MAKS2013.
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defence international Cooperation

Armscor continues to provide an industrial ambassadorship 

service to the South African Defence Industry (SADI) by creating 

awareness of SADI’s and Armscor’s capabilities amongst both 

inbound and outbound military attachés, foreign defence industry 

representatives and diplomats, as well as foreign defence 

dignitaries in order to build, maintain and strengthen strategic 

relations with other countries. 

The strong ties Armscor has with the representatives of foreign 

countries have resulted in the organisation referring business 

opportunities to SADI for quotation to relevant countries. The 

number of business development opportunities referred to SADI 

has increased by 50% compared to the previous year. Proposals 

requested ranged from equipment and spares for guns and 

helicopters to weapon systems, emergency simulation systems, and 

fighter training. Furthermore, Armscor assisted a SADI company 

with a military vehicle proposal to one of the African countries, 

and a protective clothing and equipment business opportunity. 

The agreement reached with a German strategic partner to use 

the Alkantpan test range facility confirms the uniqueness and 

effectiveness of this strategic facility and Armscor’s relationship 

with the MAAC.

defence equipment and personnel support (deps)

Armscor facilitates and administers the use of SANDF equipment, 

facilities and personnel by SADI as part of Armscor’s marketing 

initiatives to support SADI in marketing its capabilities to local and 

international strategic partners. During the year under review, 48 

marketing and material aid requests pertaining to vehicle tests, 

demonstrations, pilot training support, equipment and foreign 

delegation visits to SANDF facilities were processed compared to 

42 in the previous year. 

Through these activities, Armscor generated R2,7m for the DOD, 

39% less than in the 2012/13 financial year. Despite an increase 

in volume, the amount generated depends on the type of asset 

loaned, as well as on the period for which the asset is used . 

4.6.2 stakehoLder engageMent

In an endeavour to build, maintain and strengthen relations with 

stakeholders, both internal and external, Armscor developed 

the Stakeholder Engagement Strategy in the year under review, 

and the strategy is currently being implemented. While various 

stakeholder engagement initiatives took place during the period 

under review, the following initiatives were further aimed at 

embedding Armscor’s relationship with its stakeholders:

industry day

SADI plays a critical role in enabling Armscor to meet and 

support current and future requirements of the DOD. Armscor thus 

organised an industry day as an engagement platform with SADI. 

The theme was: “Building Sustainable Industry Through Strategic 

Partnerships”.

The objectives of the event were:

§ to create an engagement platform for Armscor to 
understand SADI’s needs and to strengthen the 
relationship;

§ to communicate strategic matters relating to SADI, as well 
as developments within the corporation;

§ to create a networking opportunity for SADI members 
and Armscor representatives; and

§ to reaffirm Armscor’s support to SADI.

Armscor Industry Day at CSIR.

SA Function at  Defence and Security in Thailand.
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The event was attended by 159 company representatives from 

125 defence industry companies across the country, as shown in 

Figure 2 below.

Figure 2: Total percentage of SADI companies across SA.

The effectiveness of the engagement session was rated positively 

by most of the attendees.

military attaches and advisory Corps (maaC) 
networking session

Also during the year under review, Armscor held an engagement 

and networking session with the MAAC in an endeavour to:

§ build relations with new Attachés and Advisors while 
maintaining and strengthening relations with those who 
have been assigned to South Africa; 

§ communicate Armscor’s mandate and relationship with 
the DOD, other government departments and institutions, 
as well as SADI; 

§ market Armscor and its capabilities;

§ create a communication platform to engage on a variety 
of interests and developments relating to Armscor, and on 
developments in respective countries;

§ reiterate Armscor’s support to MAAC and their respective 
countries.

Of the MAAC members assigned in the country, 81% attended 

the session, representing 30 countries. Representation from the 

Department of Foreign Relations (DFR) and the Department of 

Trade and Industry at the event confirmed Armscor’s commitment 

to building and strengthening long-term relationships with other 

government departments.  

The satisfaction survey conducted after the event indicated a 

satisfaction level of more than 90% from MAAC respondents 

on their understanding of Armscor’s business, particularly its 

operational functions – Acquisition, Naval Dockyard and Research 

and Development.

CEO's presentation at the Armscor Industry Day at CSIR.

Delegates attending the MAAC event at Gerotek.

MAAC event at Gerotek.
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engineering day

Armscor’s nature of business necessitates that the organisation 

keeps abreast of developments in the technical field, especially 

in the engineering and science domains. Armscor’s collaboration 

with the International Council on Systems Engineering of South 

Africa (INCOSE), an engineering industry body, took place 

at the CSIR Conference Centre in November 2013 to fulfil this 

requirement. Various topics in the field of engineering were 

presented by leading experts and thought leaders from academic 

institutions and industry. The conference was not only informative 

but allowed engineering professionals to earn Continuous 

Professional Development (CPD) points from their relevant industry 

bodies.

performance awards

Armscor hosted its inaugural Performance Awards ceremony on  

28 August 2013, at the St George Hotel. One hundred and 

fifty guests including Armscor bursary holders, candidates on 

the Graduate Engineering programme (referred to as the Talent 

Development Programme) and various stakeholders of the defence 

industry attended the event. Member of Parliamentary Portfolio 

Committee on Defence and Military Veterans, Ms Mgabadeli 

graced the occasion. 

Delegates attending the Engineering Day.

Mr Griesel Acting GM: Acquisition presenting at the 
Engineering Day. 

Mr Mbada GM: Human Resources with one of the recipients 
of the Performance Awards.

Ms Mgabadeli member of the Parliamentary Portfolio 
Committee on defence with one of the recipients of the 
Performance Awards.

Armscor TDP's at the Performance Awards.
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Top Women awards sponsorship

Armscor’s sponsorship of the ‘Science and Technology’ category 

award at the 10th Top Women Award ceremony held during 

Women’s Month not only highlighted the organisation’s expertise 

in the said field but also its appreciation of and commitment to 

the development of women. The event was also a platform for 

Armscor to strengthen relations with some of its stakeholders 

from the Defence Portfolio Committee, the South African defence 

industry and government departments and institutions.

Armscor supports initiatives that promote the development of 

engineering and science skills, and the organisation’s corporate 

social investment flagship programme – the Learner Enhancement 

Programme - is aimed at improving Mathematics and Science 

results at schools in an endeavour to encourage growth of 

engineers and scientists. 

armscor Ceo awards

Armscor continues to recognise, acknowledge and celebrate 

the outstanding achievements and contributions of Armscor 

employees, both in the technical and non-technical categories. 

The recognition is also extended to members of the Department of 

Defence and the South African National Defence Force as most 

projects require strong collaboration. 

In the reporting period, the ultrasonic Broken Rail Detector 

(uBRD) project of the Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT) 

won the technical category award. The technology development 

emanated from Armscor and CSIR collaboration. The uBRD 

product is a cost-effective and low-maintenance technology 

product that reliably detects breaks in train rails in all weather 

conditions. It is installed on the Sishen-Saldanha Orex line and on 

a section of the Coal Export line. The technology is a prestigious 

NSTF-BHP Billiton Award winner for “Outstanding Contribution 

to Science, Engineering, Technology and Innovation through 

research and innovation”.

 

Winners of the Technical Category.

Winners of the Non-Technical Category.

Ms Jolingana at the Top Woman Awards 2013.

Top Woman Awards 2013.
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Ceo’s golf day

The annual golf day is a sporting event aimed at building new and 

enhancing existing working relationships with stakeholders in the 

defence related industry. The event also creates an opportunity 

for members of the defence industry and other stakeholders to 

engage and network in a relaxed environment.

Through this common sport and in celebration of the country’s 

20 years of democracy, the occasion will in the future adopt a 

charity aspect. This is to ensure that through this game, Armscor 

can reach out and make a difference in the lives of those who are 

disadvantaged, as such espousing the sentiments of uBuNTu.

4.6.3 Corporate soCiaL investMent (Csi) 

Armscor’s corporate social investment programme focuses 

primarily on education. The challenge of scarcity of technical skills 

in South Africa has driven the organisation to invest in initiatives 

that develop a talent pool in this area, to also benefit the country 

at large. The school Learner Enhancement Programme, which 

has focused on selected schools in Tshwane South and is aimed 

at encouraging learners to embark on science and technology 

careers, has yielded positive results in the previous years. During 

the year under review, Armscor revised its CSI plan so as to further 

expand the programme footprint to other areas of its operation. In 

future, selected schools in the Northern Cape, Western Cape and 

Gauteng will benefit immensely from the Learner Enhancement 

programme. 

The involvement of Armscor in socio-economic upliftment 

programmes has made a difference in the communities in which 

the organisation operates, and as such assists in creating an 

inclusive socio-economic environment. During the year under 

review, Armscor installed computer laboratories at selected 

schools in Prieska. The aim is that Armscor should leave a long-

lasting positive legacy to those communities, as such programmes 

propel a culture of learning and skills development.

Armscor employees installing computers at Prieska. 

Computer centre at Prieska.

Acting CEO handing over gifts to the caddy.
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The support given to the Rebaone Care and Support Centre in 

Rabokala village near Brits in terms of basic domestic needs, toys 

and painting their building, embodies Armscor’s commitment to 

creating a socially responsible environment.

Children from Rebaone Care and Support Centre.

Goods that were donated to the centre.

Armscor employees helping at the centre.

Armscor employees helping at the centre.

Children from Rebaone Care and Support Centre.
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REPORT OF THE AuDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE
The current Board of Directors took office on 01 May 2014. The 

new Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors was 

subsequently established, which oversaw the finalisation of the 

external audit for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate 

formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committee charter, 

and that it has discharged all of its responsibilities as contained 

therein.

Although the Armscor Board of Directors is accountable for the 

process of risk management and systems of internal control, these 

ongoing processes are reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee 

for effectiveness. 

The Audit and Risk Committee regularly reports to the Board on its 

activities, and on all recommendations made in the execution of 

its responsibilities. 

The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied, based on the information 

and explanations given by management and the Internal Audit, as 

well as through discussion with the Auditor-General on the result 

of their audits, that an adequate system of internal control is being 

maintained to:

§ reduce the entity’s risk to an acceptable level;

§ meet the business objectives of the group;

§ ensure that the group’s assets are safeguarded; and

§ ensure that the transactions undertaken are recorded in 
the entity’s records.

The Audit and Risk Committee has evaluated the annual financial 

statements of the Armscor group for the year ended 31 March 

2014 and considers that it complies, in all material respects, with 

the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (Act  

No 1 of 1999), as amended, as well as with the South African 

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the results of the 

external audit on the annual financial statements and accordingly 

concurs with the opinion expressed therein. The Audit and Risk 

Committee has also noted the irregular expenditure as reported 

in the financial statements, which emanated from the difference 

of interpretation of the PPPFA and the Preferential Procurement 

Relugations regulation between Armscor and the Auditor-General 

as it relates to Armscor’s BBBEE policy and practice.

The Audit and Risk Committee agrees that the adoption of the 

going concern premise is appropriate in preparing the annual 

financial statements.  It has therefore recommended the adoption 

of this annual report to the Board of Directors.

DR KHANYILE
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON
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REPORT ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED AND 
SEPARATE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
IntroductIon

1.  I have audited the consolidated and separate financial 

statements of the Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd 

(Armscor) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 90 to 152, which 

comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial 

position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated and separate 

statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in 

equity, and  statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as 

well as the notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

the accountIng authorIty’s responsIbIlIty 
for the consolIdated and separate fInancIal 
statements

2.  The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting 

authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 

of these consolidated and separate financial statements in 

accordance with the Statements of South African Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and the 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South 

Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and Companies Act of 

South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008), and for such internal 

control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error.

audItor-general’s responsIbIlIty

3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 

and separate financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 

my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 

2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued 

in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. These 

standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are 

free from material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 

and separate financial statements. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 

entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and 

separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements. 

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

opInIon

6.  In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC 

Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014, and its statement 

of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with the SA Statements of GAAP and the 

requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act.

emphasIs of matters

7.  I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified 

in respect of this matter.

REPORT OF THE AuDITOR-GENERAL TO THE PARLIAMENT 
ON ARMAMENTS CORPORATION OF SOuTH AFRICA 
SOC LTD
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FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

restatements of comparatIve consolIdated 
fInancIal statements

8.  As disclosed in note 1, paragraph 1.3.19, to the consolidated 

financial statements, the comparative figures as at 31 March 2013 

were restated as a result of an error discovered during the 2013-

14 financial year in the consolidated financial statements of the 

Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd for the year 

ended 31 March 2014.

addItIonal matters  

9.  I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of these matters. 

unaudIted supplementary statements

10.  The supplementary statement: Group three-year review and 

value-added statement set out on pages 87 to 89 does not form 

part of the financial statements and is presented as additional 

information. I have not audited this schedule and, accordingly, I 

do not express an opinion thereon.

other reports requIred by the companIes act 

11.  As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements for 

the year ended 31 March 2014, I have read the director’s report 

and the audit committee report  for the purpose of identifying 

whether there were material inconsistencies between these reports 

and the audited consolidated financial statements. These reports 

are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading 

these reports I have not identified material inconsistencies between 

the reports and the audited consolidated financial statements.

I have not audited the reports and, accordingly, do not express an 

opinion on them.

REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGuLATORY 
REQuIREMENTS

12.  In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued 

in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the reported 

performance information against predetermined objectives for 

selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, 

non-compliance with legislation as well as internal control. 

The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as 

described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to 

express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express 

an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

predetermIned objectIves

13.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 

for the following selected  objectives  presented in the report on 

performance against goals of Armaments Corporation of South 

Africa SOC Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2014

 § Objective 1: CAT 1 - Defence material acquisition excluding 
strategic acquisition but including technology acquisition 
(projects), included on page 77.

 § Objective 2: Strategic defence acquisition. (Strategic defence 
packages, included on page 77.

 § Objective 3: System support: Acquisition and procurement 
(operational funds), included on page 78.

 § Objective 4: Schedule placement, included on page 78.

 § Objective 5: Management of defence industrial participation 
(DIP), included on page 79.

 § Objective 6: Management and execution of defence 
technology, research, test and evaluation requirements of the 
Department of Defence, included on page 79.

 § Objective 7: Management and performance against 
Dockyard mandate, included on page 80.

14.  I evaluated the reported performance information against the 

overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

15.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 

with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and 

whether the reported performance was consistent with the 

objective. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, 

time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 

Framework for managing programme performance information 

(FMPPI).

16.  I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and 

complete.
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17.  I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information for the selected 

objectives.

addItIonal matters

18.  I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of these matters. 

achIevement of planned targets

19.  Refer to the annual performance report on pages 76 to 86 

for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year.

complIance wIth legIslatIon

20.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public 

entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 

matters, financial management and other related matters. My 

findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key 

legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the 

PAA, are as follows:

expendIture management 

21.  The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent 

irregular expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the 

PFMA. 

annual fInancIal statement 

22.  The consolidated financial statements submitted for auditing 

were not fully prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

financial reporting framework, as required by section 55(1)

(a) of the PFMA and section 29(1)(a) of the Companies Act. 

Material misstatements identified by the auditor in the submitted 

consolidated financial statements were subsequently corrected, 

resulting in the consolidated financial statements receiving an 

unqualified audit opinion.

Internal control

23.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

consolidated financial statements, Armaments Corporation 

of South Africa SOC Ltd (Armscor) and its subsidiaries and 

compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported 

below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to 

the significant deficiencies that resulted the findings on compliance 

with laws and regulations included in this report.

leadershIp

24.  Oversight responsibility exercised regarding compliance and 

related internal controls was inadequate since non-compliance 

issues were identified during the audit. Policies and procedures 

were not, in all respects, aligned with applicable legislation. This 

was a result of lack of understanding the applicable laws and 

regulations.

25. Oversight of the preparation of consolidated financial 

statements was not adequately exercised to prevent material 

non-compliance with the reporting framework, SA GAAP and the 

applicable laws and regulations. Internal review controls were 

unable to detect and correct material non-compliance with the 

reporting framework, consequently, material misstatements were 

detected in the consolidated financial statements.

Pretoria

19 August 2014
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The Board recognises and acknowledges its responsibility for the 

group’s internal control systems.

Management is responsible for preparing the Annual Financial 

Statements and the Group Annual Financial Statements in 

accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practices.

The Directors, supported by the Audit and Risk Committee, are 

satisfied that management introduced and maintained adequate 

internal controls to ensure that dependable records exist for the 

preparation of the financial statements, to safeguard the assets of 

the group and to ensure that all transactions are duly authorised.

Against this background the Directors of Armscor accept 

responsibility for the financial statements. The information on pages 

71 to 152 was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 August 

2014.

vice admiral (ret) J mudimu

Chairman of The board of direCTors

DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL OF THE 
ANNuAL REPORT
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TERM OF OFFICE OF DIRECTORS
former board of direCTors

board member
date of 
Appointment

date of Expiry
date of 
Re-Appointment

date of Expiry

Lt Gen (Ret) MM Motau 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 -- --

Ms R Mokoena 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014

Mr EL Borole 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014

Mr LW Mosiako 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014

Mr SA Msibi 01 May 2008 30 April 2011 01 May 2011 30 April 2014

Dr RR Mgijima 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 -- --

Dr PP Dyantyi 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 -- --

Dr (Col) jL job 01 May 2011 30 April 2014 -- --

Mr jS Mkwanazi 07 jan 2010
Appointment is linked to his position as Acting 
Chief Executive Officer

Mr jG Grobler 11 Sep 2008 Appointment is linked to his position as the 
Chief Financial Officer

COMPANY SECRETARY

Adv. B Senne 01 May 2011 Full-time Company Secretary

NOTE: 
•	 Section 5(a) of the Armscor Act No. 51 of 2003 provides that a member may be appointed to serve 1 term of three years and one further term of 

3 years = 2 terms only.

•	 Chairman and Deputy Chairman were relieved of their duties on 8 August 2013.

neW board of direCTors

board member date of Appointment date of Expiry

Vice Admiral (ret) Rj Mudimu 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Ms T Skweyiya 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Dr. MB Khanyile 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Adv. S Baloyi 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Adv. VL de la Hunt 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Mr NM Tyibilika 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Mr BMF Mobu 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Mr RM Vokwana 01 May 2014 30 April 2017

Mr jS Mkwanazi 07 jan 2010 Appointment is linked to his position as Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr jG Grobler 11 Sep 2008 Appointment is linked to his position as the Chief Financial Officer

COMPANY SECRETARY

Adv. B Senne 01 May 2011 Full-time Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INTRODuCTION

This is the Directors Report for the period 2013 – 2014. The 

current Board of Directors took office on 01 May 2014. None 

of the non-executive members of the Board of Directors for the 

period under review have been retained in the current Board. 

The executive directors however remain unchanged. The previous 

Board provided the current Board with a Handover Report at the 

completion of their term of Office. Therefore, this Director’s Report 

is largely based on the said Handover Report, in so far as this 

relates to Armscor’s performance of its mandate during the year 

under review.

BACKGROuND

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited (“Armscor”) 

is a statutory body, established in terms of the Armaments 

Corporation of South Africa, Limited Act (Act No 51 of 2003), as 

amended. It is also a State Owned Company as contemplated in 

the Companies Act, 2008. Furthermore, it is listed as a schedule 

2 Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act 

(Act 1 of 1999), as amended (PFMA).  It is further regulated by 

the Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and those of the 

Companies Act, 2008.

This report is therefore presented in terms of the relevant provisions 

of the PFMA and the Companies Act. It provides an overview 

on the performance of Armscor, measured against performance 

targets that the Corporation had set itself for the financial year 

under review. 

NATuRE OF BuSINESS

Armscor’s mandate is contained in the Armscor Act. This is briefly 

to meet the defence matériel requirements of the Department of 

Defence (DOD) effectively, efficiently and economically; and the 

defence technology, research, development, analysis, test and 

evaluation requirements of the Department effectively, efficiently 

and economically.

The Corporation must adhere to accepted corporate governance 

principles, best business practices and generally accepted 

accounting practices within a framework of established norms 

and standards that reflect fairness, equity, transparency, economy, 

efficiency, accountability and lawfulness.

The functions of Armscor are to acquire defence matériel for 

DOD, manage technology projects for DOD, establish program 

management system in support of acquisition and technology 

projects, establish a tender evaluation and contract management 

system with regard to defence matériel or if agreed in SLA, for 

commercial matériel, dispose of defence matériel, establish a 

compliance administration system with regard to arms control, 

support and maintain strategic and essential defence industrial 

capabilities, resources and technologies, provide marketing 

support and maintain special capabilities/facilities for strategic or 

security reasons, as required by DOD, even if those capabilities/

facilities are not commercially viable.

Armscor may, with the approval of the Minister, exploit such 

commercial opportunities as may arise out of the Corporation’s 

duty to acquire defence matériel or to manage technology 

projects; procure commercial matériel on behalf of any organ of 

state at the request of the organ of state in question; and subject to 

the National Conventional Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act No. 41 

of 2002), the Regulation of Foreign Military Assistance Act, 1 998 

(Act No. 15 of 1998), and the Non-Proliferation of Weapons of 

Mass Destruction Act 1993 (Act No. 87 of 1993), perform any 

function which the Corporation may perform for or on behalf of 

the Department in terms of this Act for or on behalf sovereign any 

of State. 

The Minister may impose such conditions in respect of the 

performance of a function of the said functions as may be 

necessary in the national interest.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Government of the Republic is the sole shareholder of the 

Corporation. No new shares were issued during the year under 

review.

ORGANISATIONAL 
STRuCTuRE

The organisational structure of the Corporation appears on page 

8 of this report.

COMMuNICATION WITH 
THE SHAREHOLDER

The Executive Authority for Armscor is the Minister of Defence and 

Military Veterans, who represents the Shareholder. Communication 

with the shareholder is channelled primarily through the office of 

the Chairman. In addition, ad hoc meetings were held between 

the Minister and the Board. Regular reporting was undertaken 

in terms of the Shareholder’s Compact, and additional ad hoc 

reports were also submitted for consideration by the Minister. The 

requirement for an Annual General Meeting had not been met, 

during the year under review, although the Minister met with the 

directors on a number of occasions to deal with pertinent issues 

affecting Armscor, the Department of Defence and the Defence 

Industry as a whole.

DIRECTORATE

The Directors of the Corporation and their brief Curricular Vitae 

appear on page 9 of this report.

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors provide ethical leadership to the 

Corporation and accordingly oversees the management of the 

strategic direction of the Corporation and the application of its 

assets in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, represented 

by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans, is the sole 

shareholder of the Corporation. The shareholder relationship 

is managed, amongst others, through the Armscor Act, the 

PFMA, the Companies Act, 2008, the Shareholder Compact 

and the Corporate Plan. The Shareholder Compact sets out the 

deliverables agreed between the Corporation and the Minister 

of Defence. It is supported by a Corporate Plan, which ensures 

that the Corporation’s targets, measures and outputs are clearly 

articulated to enhance the Board’s accountability.

The Corporation services the requirements of the Department of 

Defence or other clients in terms of a Service Level Agreement 

(SLA). The SLA must be based on the Shareholder Compact, be 

focused on the functions of the corporation, specify measureable 

objectives and milestones, specify a system to monitor the delivery 

of service, provide for the maintenance of the Corporation’s 

capabilities over the long term, provide for the terms and conditions 

applicable to the service to be rendered by the Corporation.

At each meeting, the Members of the Board are required to 

declare any interest they may have in respect of any matter to be 

decided at that meeting. In preparing documents for submission 

to the Board, Management is required to certify that all relevant 

information has been placed before the Board to enable it to 

make decisions that serve the interests of the Corporation.

Members of the Board have unrestricted access to the Company 

Secretary, who is required by law to provide them with guidance 

with regard to the proper discharge of their responsibilities.

The Board has various Committees which consider submissions 

from Management on critical issues affecting the Corporation. The 

Committees report on their work at each Board meeting.

DISQuALIFICATION OF 
DIRECTORS

None of Armscor’s Board members are disqualified from serving as 

directors on any of the grounds contained in either the Companies 

Act, 2008 or in the PFMA and its regulations.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD 
COMMITTEES

Table 1 below shows the meetings of the Board and its Committees and the attendance of meetings during the year under review. The 

Company Secretary, Adv. B. Senne was present in all Board and Committee meetings.

ATTEndAnCE OF bOARd OF dIRECTORS mEETInG And COmmITTEE mEETInGS 2013/14 FInAnCIAl yEAR
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LT Gen ( ret) MM Motau 1 out of 6 Non- 
Member

Non-
Member

Non-
Member

Non-
Member

Non-
Member

Non-
Member

Ms R Mokoena 1 out of 6 3 out of 5 1 out of 6 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

2 out of 5

Mr EL Borole 6 out of 6 5 out of 5 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

3 out of 4 5 out of 5

Mr SA Msibi 6 out of 6 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

4 out of 5 3 out of 4  3 out of 4 Non- 
Member

Dr. PP Dyantyi 4 out of 6 Non- 
Member

5 out of 6 Non- 
Member

3 out of 4  3 out of 4 Non- 
Member

Dr RR Mgijima 5 out of 6 Non- 
Member

5 out of 6 4 out of 5 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Mr LW Mosiako  6 out of 6 4 out of 5 4 out of 6 4 out of 5 3 out of 4 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Dr jL job 6 out of 6 5 out of 5 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

 5 out of 5

Mr jS Mkwanazi 6 out of 6 4 out of 5 6 out of 6 5 out of 5 3 out of 4 3 out of 4 5 out of 5

Mr. jG Grobler 5 out of 6 5 out of 5 6 out of 6 Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

Non- 
Member

5 out of 5

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2008 to 

produce financial statements, which fairy represent the state of 

affairs of the Corporation as at the end of the financial year and 

the profit and loss for that financial year, in conformity with South 

African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practises 

(SA GAAP) and the Companies Act 2008.

The Financial Statements set out in this report have been 

prepared by Management in accordance with SA GAAP and the 

Companies Act 2008 and are based on appropriate accounting 

policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and 

estimates.

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements fairly 

present the financial position of the Corporation as at 31 March 

2014 the results of their operations and cash flows for the year 

then ended. 
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The Board has reviewed the Group’s financial budgets for the 

period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 and is satisfied that 

adequate resources exist to sustain the Corporations operations. 

Armscor is, furthermore, in discussion with the Department of 

Defence to ensure proper funding for the required functions to be 

performed. The directors, therefore, have no reason to believe that 

Armscor will not remain a going concern in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were declared or paid to the shareholder during the 

year under review.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Chairperson and the Deputy Chairperson of the Board were 

removed from the Board by the Minister with effect from 8 August 

2013. 

The Board sought to improve acquisition turnaround times by 

aligning Armscor processes with those of the DOD. Previously, 

the way that the acquisition process had been designed and the 

way it functioned seemed ill-suited for situations where the Board 

would take a decision at the end of an acquisition process that 

was at variance with what other Armscor and DOD structures had 

initially agreed on. To avoid this, the Board has instituted measures 

to become involved in the decision making process at an early 

stage, so that the approval process becomes more seamless. 

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING 
PERIOD

As reflected in this report and financial statements, no material 

facts or significant circumstances which affect the financial position 

of this Corporation or group have arisen between the date of the 

balance sheet and the production date of this report. Except to 

state that one of the issues that the Board had to deal with during 

the year under review was the application of the Preferential 

Procurement Framework Act. The Board had taken a view that 

emphasised ownership over other factors in the BBBEE scorecard 

because of the strategic nature of the defence industry. It had 

relied on counsel’s opinion in this regard. The Auditor-General 

took a different view, which required Armscor not to emphasise 

ownership over other BBBEE factors. As a result, the Board 

mandated management to obtain exemptions from National 

Treasury. National Treasury required that Armscor obtain the 

support of the DOD before it could grant the exemptions. The 

Auditor-General indicated that expenditure incurred on such basis 

will be deemed irregular expenditure, should the said exemptions 

not be obtained. At the time of writing this report, which was past 

the period under review, the exemptions had not been obtained, 

which resulted in irregular expenditure to the value of R68,5 m 

being reported.

LITIGATION
beverly securities

Armscor is defending a claim from Beverly Securities in the Civil 

Court of Lisbon for the alleged non-payment of commission in 

respect of the acquisition of the Oryx helicopters of the SAAF 

during the late nineteen-eighties. The value of the claim is 

approximately 192 million Euros. The summons was received 

in 2008. The matter was dismissed by the Court on the lack of 

jurisdiction by the Portuguese Courts. The matter was appealed 

and the Court of Appeal found in favour of the plaintiff. Armscor 

then also appealed the ruling. The Court of Appeal again found 

in favour of the plaintiff and ruled that the Portuguese Courts will 

have jurisdiction to hear the matter.

The matter has now been referred back to the court of first 

instance. The court indicated that the preservation of evidence 

should be undertaken by the parties. This will mitigate the risk of 

losing important evidence due to old age of witnesses. The parties 

have in principle agreed that the preservation of evidence will 

be done in South Africa and then translated into Portuguese to 

be used during the proceedings in Lisbon. It is expected that the 

preservation of evidence in commission will be held in November 

2014. Lastly, the court ruled that the exceptions raised will be dealt 

with in parallel with the merits of the matter.

new generation arms management 
(pty) ltd (ngam)

NGAM executed an order placed by Armscor. The statutory 

duties were however not paid over to SARS in terms of the 

provisions of the order. Armscor had already paid the amount 

to NGAM. Armscor received a letter of demand from SARS to 

pay the outstanding amount with SARS, and was also informed 

that a substantial penalty would be levied in the event that the 

amount was not paid. Armscor paid the amount outstanding and 



75

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

has instituted legal action against NGAM to recover the amount 

of approximately R6, 1 million.  The summons was properly served 

but NGAM did not file a notice of intention to defend. Armscor is 

proceeding to obtain an order against NGAM.

rheinmetall denel munitions (pty) ltd  

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, acting through 

the Department of Public Enterprise, sold 51% shares of Denel 

Munitions, a division of Denel, to Rheinmetall, a German company. 

As part of the transaction the Department of Defence licensed 

Denel, as well as the new entity to use its intellectual property in 

the business of the new entity. Armscor had sought to license to 

other local third parties with a view to stimulating and sustaining 

the local defence industry, which Rheinmetall found unacceptable.

Rheinmetall Denel Munitions (RDM) filed an application in the 

Western Cape High Court to prevent Armscor from licensing third 

parties to use defence intellectual property. The matter was set 

down for hearing on 6 February 2013 and postponed to 5 june 

2013. In the interim Armscor and Denel had a workshop, where 

Armscor made proposal for consideration by RDM. On the court 

date the parties agreed to a further postponement to allow RDM 

time to consider Armscor’s proposal, with a view to amending the 

licensing agreement. The matter has been postponed indefinitely.

east Cape field service (pty) ltd

Armscor placed a number of orders on East Cape Field Service 
(Pty) Ltd for the maintenance and repair of SANDF vehicles, which 
is now in liquidation. The liquidator of this company demanded 
from Armscor payment of retention monies held in respect of non-
compliance to BEE-shareholding requirements provided for in the 
order.  The liquidator further demanded payment of invoices in 
respect of partial maintenance work completed.   

The contractor further demanded that Armscor ignore a Notice 
of Third Party Appointment received by Armscor from SARS. The 
liquidator was informed that there is no basis for the demands and 
was further instructed to release the SANDF vehicles that were 
held at the contractor’s premises. The liquidator has since allowed 
Armscor to remove the vehicles.  The liquidator has now instituted 
legal action against Armscor in the Eastern Cape High Court. 
Armscor was subsequently informed that the matter was enrolled 
for 15 April 2015 for a hearing.

natcom group of Companies (pty) 
ltd and afrimeasure (pty) ltd – is it 
necessary to report on this matter?

Natcom Group of Companies (Pty) Ltd (“Natcom”) and 

Afrimeasure (Pty) Ltd (“Afrimeasure”) filed an urgent application in 

the High Court of South Africa against Armscor. The relief sought 

included an interim interdict against Armscor from awarding and/

or implementing a Request for Offer for the supply of 120 night 

vision devise monocular with part number MNVN-14. Alternatively 

the review of the decision to award an order to any third party if 

such a decision was already implemented.

The applicant contends that Harder. Digital Ingenieur – und 

Industriegesellschaft GmbH (“Harder”) is the manufacturer of the 

mini night vision monocular with part number MNVN-14. Further 

that Harder has an agreement with Afrimeasure in terms of which 

Afrimeasure has been appointed as the sole distributor of the 

mini night vision monocular with part number MNVN-14 in South 

Africa.

Armscor has filed a notice of intention to oppose and also 

requested the successful offeror, ECM, to provide Armscor with 

information that will substantiate their claim that they will be able 

to supply the required part number. ECM confirmed that they 

will supply the required part number but did not provide any 

information to substantiate their claim. It was further also indicated 

by ECM that they are willing to terminate the order. 

The matter was resolved when Armscor terminated the order 

placed on ECM, after approval of the relevant authorisation 

level. Armscor furthermore reserved the right to recover any 

damages from ECM that may possibly be suffered as a result of 

misrepresentation. 

minister of defence and military 
veterans and lt gen (ret) motau and 
others

On 08 August 2013, the Minister dismissed the Chairperson and 

Deputy Chairperson of the Board, who in turn approached the 

North Gauteng High Court for urgent relief against the dismissal. 

This relief was granted, where after the Minister approached the 

Constitutional Court on appeal. The Board of Armscor joined in the 

Constitutional Court proceedings. In May 2014, the Constitutional 

Court found in favour of the Minister.
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OPERATIONAL OBjECTIVES 
FOR THE 2013/2014 
FINANCIAL YEAR
The Armscor three year integrated Corporate and Business Plan 
define two groups of performance indicators.  The first group 
addresses performance indicators to measure the execution of 
Armscor’s functions as defined in the Armscor Act and as agreed 
on in the SLA with the DOD while the second group measures the 
attainment of the strategic objectives of the group. 

performance against goals

In addition to the above Armscor use an overall efficiency 
measure, which is the cost of acquisition.  This measure reflects 
the ratio of operating cost incurred versus the acquisition cash 
flow based on the total forecasted acquisition activities (revised 
baseline).  A goal of 8,03% was set for the 2013/2014 financial 
year taking into consideration the revised baseline for contracting 
of R10,41 billion and the agreed performance requirement to 
commit 90% thereof while contractual payments should be 90% of 
the committed amount.  A result of 7,83% was achieved compared 
with 9,29% for the 2012/2013 period.  Although the acquisition 
cost improved significantly the performance was affected as 
R200,1m requirements were not received from the Department of 
Defence.

measurement of performance against 
armscor group Corporate objectives 
(as per approved Corporate plan)

•	 Armscor functions: objectives

Objectives 1 to 3

Measure the effectiveness of the acquisition function in terms of 
the Service Level Agreement between Armscor and the DOD.  The 
goals for the three acquisition categories are defined as follows:

 § Contracts to be placed by Armscor

Measure the commitment of funds against the formally planned 
value of commitment which is based on requirements received and 
confirmed as valid requirements from the DOD.

 § Cash flow (contractual payments made)

Cash flow would be measured against the formally planned cash 
flow in terms of achieved commitments for the financial year

Objective 4: Schedule placement 

Measure the average time taken from receipt of requirement to 
placement of contract.

Objective 5: management of defence Industrial 
Participation (dIP)

Measure the execution of DIP obligations in terms of the SLA and 
in compliance with the Armscor Act.

Objective 6: management and execution of defence 
technology, research, test and evaluation require-
ments of the dOd (measurement of effectiveness of 
Armscor’s Facilities)

Measure the execution by Research and Development of 
contractual milestones / deliveries as per orders received.

Objective 7: management and performance against 
mandate (SA navy / dockyard)

Measure the performance against SA Navy / Dockyard 
performance in terms of Service Level Agreement with the SA 
Navy.

•	 Armscor’s strategic objectives

Strategic Objective 1:  Funding and Growth

Measure the expenditure compliance and effort to secure sufficient 
funding to sustain the organisation.

Strategic Objective 2:  People and Capabilities

Measuring Armscor’s ability to attract and retain employees 
through a positive organizational environment, as well as measuring 
the achievement of targets set to transform Armscor to reflect the 
demographic profile of the country and to assist Armscor in having 
access to manpower to execute its mandated activities.

Strategic Objective 3: Organisational effectiveness 
and efficiencies

Measure the effectiveness and efficiency of Armscor.

Strategic Objective 4:  Stakeholder Relationships 

Measure the relationships with stakeholders and Armscor’s 
compliance to good governance.

PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOALS
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ARMSCOR FuNCTIONS: OBjECTIVES 
Objective 1:  CAT 1 Capital defence matériel Acquisition excluding strategic defence acquisition but including 

technology acquisition (Projects)

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

1.1 Contracts to be placed by Armscor.

 Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of 
funds to be measured against the formally 
planned value of commitments, which 
is based on requirements received and 
confirmed as valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 99,9% DOD requirements to the value of R1 781,64m 
were received. 

Armscor committed R1 781,53m of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement of 
99,9% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded. 

1.2 Cash flow (contractual payments made).

 Armscor’s target of 90% cash flow 
would be measured against the formally 
planned cash flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the financial year. 

 Actual cash flow will be measured against 
planned cash flow in terms of first revision 
and adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control.

 Furthermore, cash flow is updated on an 
on-going basis with commitments during 
year.

90% 108,63% The planned cash flow was R3 461m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to the 
value of R3 152m resulting in an achievement of 
91,06%. 

Adjustments for factors beyond Armscor’s control 
amounted to R559,85m. This results in a final 
achievement of 108,63%. 

Objective exceeded.

Objective 2:  Strategic defence Acquisition (Strategic defence Packages)

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.1 Contracts to be placed by Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of 
funds to be measured against the formally 
planned value of commitments, which 
is based on requirements received and 
confirmed as valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 100% DOD requirements to the value of R29,15m 
were received. 

Armscor committed R29,15m of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement of 
100% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded.

2.2 Cash flow.

 Armscor’s target of 90% cash flow 
would be measured against the formally 
planned cash flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the financial year.

 Actual cash flow will be measured against 
planned cash flow in terms of first revision 
and adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control.

 Furthermore, cash flow is updated on an 
on-going basis with commitments during 
year.

90% 118,1% The planned cash flow was R446m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to the 
value of R276m resulting in an achievement of 
61,72%. 

Funding for SDP’s are no longer ring-fenced by 
Treasury. Financial Authorities for future years 
had to be committed in the 2013/14 financial 
year. Adjustments for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control amounted to R213,13m. This results in a 
final achievement of 118,1%. 

Objective exceeded.
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Objective 3:  System support: Acquisition and Procurement (Operational funds)

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

3.1 Contracts to be placed by Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of 
funds to be measured against the formally 
planned value of commitments, which 
is based on requirements received and 
confirmed as valid requirements from the 
DOD.

90% 99,04% DOD requirements received to the value of R2 
505,834m. 

Armscor committed R2 481,705m of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement of 
99,04% against the set target of 90%. 

Objective exceeded. 

3.2 Cash flow.

Armscor’s target of 90% cash flow 
would be measured against the formally 
planned cash flow in terms of achieved 
commitments for the financial year.

Actual cash flow will be measured against 
planned cash flow in terms of first revision 
and adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control.

Furthermore, cash flow is updated on an 
on-going basis with commitments during 
year.

90% 100,34% The planned cash flow was R4 376m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to the 
value of R4 391m resulting in an achievement of 
100,34%. 

Objective exceeded. 

Objective 4:  Schedule placement

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

4.1 Average time taken from receipt of 
requirement to placement of contract is 90 
days.

90 days 62,56 days Performance was influenced by :

A number of complex projects with extended 
tender closing periods.

The achieved days are measured from 
finalisation of requirement to placement of order 
and exclude period of Financial Authorisation 
approval and activities not within Armscor’s 
control. 

Objective exceeded.
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Objective 5:  management of defence Industrial Participation (dIP): A certain percentage of counter 
performance is negotiated by Armscor with overseas suppliers on all contracts in excess of USD 2m.  The 
management of these counter performances is included as an objective for Armscor, and the target is 
reflected in the following table:

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

5.1 Value of DIP credits to be granted to 
overseas suppliers.

R190m 
credits to be 
approved by 
2014-03-31 

for active 
portfolio

R196m DIP credits worth R196m were approved in the 
2013/14 financial year.

The annual goal relates to the projected 
discharge for the year, of obligations under 
current DIP agreements and excludes pro-active 
agreements.

Objective exceeded.

Pro-active:    

R0m R8m

Pro-active activities occur randomly and cannot 
be predicted or pre-planned.

Objective 6:  management and execution of defence technology, research, test and evaluation 
requirements of the department of defence

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

6.1 Research and Development to achieve 
contractual milestones / deliveries as per 
agreed Memoranda of Agreement and 
orders received for the financial year. 

90% 99,84% Research and Development managed to deliver 
/ render services to the value of R229 581 064 
against the contractual milestones / deliveries 
as per agreed Memoranda of Agreement 
and orders received for the financial year with 
a value of R229 944 429. This results in an 
achievement of 99,84% against the set target of 
90%.

Objective exceeded.
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Objective 7:  management and performance against dockyard mandate (SA navy / dockyard 
Performance management in terms of Service level Agreement with the SA navy Agreement)

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

7.1 The market intelligence study on countries 
identified for opportunities resulted  to:

7.1.1 Project status reporting:

 Dockyard to ensure adherence to 
project contractual milestones as per 
project plan. 

90% 75,4% Full compliance not achieved due to:

•	 Procurement Delays

•	 Timeous completion of job feedback 
reporting

Objective partially achieved.

7.1.2 Ancillary Services provision reporting:

 Dockyard to ensure provision of 
Ancillary Services as per Dockyard 
funded business plan.

90% 100% All services required have been delivered and 
no deviations were reported by SAN.

Objective exceeded.

7.2 Dockyard to ensure necessary technical 
training support for SA Navy employees as 
and when required.

 90% compliance with SA Navy 
requirements.

90% 100% Full compliance to SA Navy training support 
requests (12 students trained and training 
facilities supplied for 24 SA Navy employees).

Objective exceeded.

7.3 Ensure 90% compliance with projects cash 
flow management.

90% 90,46% Project finances managed in accordance with 
approved budget (financial authorities) and 
cash flow plan.

Objective achieved.

7.4 Reporting to Flag Officer Fleet: 

 Submission of Quarterly Reports as per 
reporting timeline schedule. 

 90% compliance with schedule.

90% 95% Full compliance to reporting timeline schedule.

Objective exceeded.
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ARMSCOR STRATEGIC OBjECTIVES

Strategic Objective 1: Funding and Growth 

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

1.1 Review the finance model developed 
for the Armscor Group to ensure it 
results in a sustainable organisation.

•	 Review	funding	model	and			
implement.

31 August 2013 9 Aug 2013 Model was reviewed in April and service 
charge consulted with DOD.  DOD 
indicated that the model cannot be 
considered over the medium term, and 
that Armscor must revert back to transfer 
payment as per SLA.

Objective achieved.

1.2  Review of AB Logistics Travel.

•	 Review	all	business	options	and	
implement.

31 August 2013 30 Sept 2013 A cost comparison was completed.  
Based thereon, it was decided to expand 
evaluation and to obtain an independent 
institution to review the skills, systems 
and processes which are applied.  This 
independent evaluation will be completed 
in the following financial year.  

Objective achieved later than 
planned.

1.3 Finalise three-year Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) with the Secretary 
for Defence that includes:

•	 Functions of the Corporation;

•	 Measurable objectives (performance 
agreement);

•	 Terms and conditions applicable to 
service to be rendered; and

•	 Implementation of service charge 
(10%) on all acquisition activities – 
service charge included in SLA.

31 july 2013 15 Oct 2013 3-year SLA compiled for period 2013-
2016 and negotiated with DOD.  Only 
approved in October after agreement on 
exclusion of service fee as funding model.

Objective achieved later than 
planned.

1.4 Increase Acquisition activities and 
partnering with industries in SADC, 
Au and BRICS.
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Strategic Objective 1: Funding and Growth 

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

•	 Pursue identified opportunities in 
Botswana, Malawi, Angola and 
South Sudan. 

30 Nov 2013 5 March 2014 Strategic business engagements were 
held with:

 – Nigeria – April 2013

 – Namibia – Aug 2013

 – DRC- Oct 2013

 – Burkina Faso – Feb 2014

 – Foreign Military Attachés and 
Advisor Groups (MAAC) 
(30 counties) – March 2014

A market intelligence study also 
conducted to identify opportunities in 
these countries.

Objective achieved.

•	 Increase the number of countries in 
SADC & Au from the four above 
where opportunities can be pursued.  
Identify opportunities in BRICS and 
IBSA.

31 March 2014 5 March 2014 Market intelligence study conducted on 5 
countries identifying opportunities.  

Collaborative and business engagements 
were held with:

 – Brazil (April 2013), 

 – Russia (Aug 2013) 

 – India (Feb 2014) 

Armscor participated at Aviation 
Expo China in Sept 2013 to identify 
opportunities and identified opportunity to 
market uBRD in India.

Objective achieved.

Identification of opportunities to 
exploit military technologies and IP to 
develop products through the use by 
the SA Defence Force or civil products 
produced directly from the IP held by the 
Corporation.

•	 Develop	a	research	&	development	
business plan, focussing on cost of 
innovation. 

30 june 2013 30 Oct 2013 Business Plan was developed and 
submitted to R & D Committee on 
06/02/2014.  Document reviewed 
with comments and resubmitted to 
Management Board on 18/08/2013, 
R & D Committee on 04/09/2013 and 
approved by Board on 30/10/2013.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

•	 Marketing	of	Armscor’s	functions	and	
services.

30 Nov 2013 30 june 2013 ultrasonic broken-rail detector – 
exhibited at Africa Rail 2013 Exhibition.  
Opportunity to test the uBRD pursued in 
India.

Objective exceeded.

1.5 Establishment of the marketing 
intelligence database.

31 March 2014 05 March 2014 Market Intelligence Strategy conducted 
and report approved by Board.

Objective achieved.
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Strategic Objective 2: People and capabilities

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.1 Achievement of approved Equity 
Plan that is directed towards:

•	 Increasing race representativity. 904 black 
employees (64%)

68% Goal: 904 out of a total of 1 394 
employees to be black (64%).  

Achieved:  964 out of 1 425 
permanent employees are black (68%).

Objective execeeded.

•	 Improving gender composition. 457 female 
employees (32,5%)

33,33% Goal: 457 out of 1 394 employees to 
be female (32,5%).  

Achieved:  475 out of 1 425 
employees are female employees 
(33,33%).

Objective execeeded.

2.2 Controllable staff turnover in 
technical positions (excluding 
retirements).

< 4,5% 2,98% There were 22 (out of 737 technical 
positions)  resignations for the year:

AS level – 11;

STS level – 4; 

MP level – 6; and

EX level - 1. 

Objective achieved.

2.3 Employee satisfaction measurement 
(previous year used as baseline for 
measurement).

3,5 % improvement 
on 2012/13

(70%)

64,54% 2012/13 achievement:

Goal: 66,4

Achieved: 66,48% 

2013/14 achievement:

Goal: 70%

Achieved: 64,54%

(Armscor including Dockyard)

Achieved: 66,20%

(Armscor excluding Dockyard)

Objective partially achieved. 
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Strategic Objective 2: People and capabilities

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.4 Skills Development:

•	 Bursaries for full-time studies 
(numbers).

16 31 Bursaries were given for: 

BEng Chemical:  3

BEng Electronic:  2

BEng Industrial:  1

BEng Mechanical:  3

BSC:  1

BSc Eng Mechanical:  2

BSc Eng Aeronautical:  6

BSc Hons (Biotechnology):  1

BSc Eng Chemical:  2

Hons Computer Science:  1

MA Ergonomics:  1

ND Analytical Chemistry:  3

ND Chemical Engineering:  1

ND Electrical Engineering:  1

ND Industrial Engineering:  1

ND Mechatronics:  1

S4 Mechanical Engineering:  1

Objective exceeded.

•	 Appointment and development of 
Talent Development Employees 
(number of employees through 
programme).

20 23 23 talent development candidates went 
through the programme.

Objective exceeded.

•	 Execution of Personal Development 
Plans for identified employees in key 
positions (% of development activities 
completed).

85% 96,47% 85 successors identified

8 already on the readiness level (therefore 
no IDPs necessary)

3 had no development plans

85% and more activities were executed 
on 74 successors.

Objective exceeded.

2.5 Skills development contribution to 
BBBEE scorecard: SD Score as % of 
maximum (20 points). 

70% 44,1% Points achieved was 8,82 out of 20 as 
the bulk of the expenditure was for male 
employees as such we did not receive 
bonus points for female category.

Objective partially achieved.
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Strategic Objective 3:   Organisational effectiveness and efficiencies

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

3.1 Conduct Dockyard technical 
feasibility study and develop 
improvement plan.

31 july 2013 24 july 2013 The study has been completed and the 
final report was accepted on 24 july 
2014.  The report was presented to the 
Armscor Board on 14 August 2013 and 
submitted to the Minister of Defence and 
Military Veterans.

Objective achieved. 

3.2 Implementation of approved ICT 
Strategy:

•	 Approved ICT Strategy. 30 june 2013 30 April 2013 Approved by the Board.

Objective exceeded.

•	 Renew Storage Area Network 
(SAN)

30 june 2013 17 Nov 2013 Implementation completed.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

•	 Replace end of life processing area 
network (PAN).

30 june 2013 18 April 2014 Implemented.  Delay due to increased 
cost which required restructuring of IT 
budget.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

•	 ERP:

Finalise implementation partner. 

31 March 2014 In process Tender process cancelled after evaluation 
due to risks identified.  New tender 
process followed to address weaknesses 
identified during first tender process.

Objective not achieved.

•	 Develop a Disaster Recovery Plan for 
the organisation.

31 March 2014 15 May 2014 Disaster Recovery Plan reviewed   
updated and approved by Management 
Board.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.
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Strategic Objective 4: Stakeholder Relationships

key Performance Indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

4.1 Improved Stakeholder Satisfaction 
Survey.

5%  improvement

(75%)

81,3% A target of 75% was set against which 
the Corporation was measured and 
achievement was 81,3%.  Survey will in 
future be expanded to cover full spectrum 
of stakeholders.

Objective exceeded.

4.2 Increase % of local industry spent in 
respect of Special Defence Account 
and General Defence Account 
managed by Armscor (increase 
based on previous year’s spending).

5% 7,39% 2012/13 spending:

R4,782bn on local suppliers: 81,47% 
R1,087bn on foreign suppliers: 18,53%  

2013/14 spending:

R6,389bn on local suppliers: 81,81% 
R1,42bn on foreign suppliers: 18,19% 
(Including SDP portion).

Contracts for the SDP’s have been moved 
from WDR model to SDA funds.  This 
impacted the percentage spent on local 
suppliers.  If this unforeseen impact is 
excluded the local spending is 88,8%.

Objective exceeded.

4.3 Finalise policies to transform, to 
maintain, and sustain local defence 
industry:

•	 BBBEE policy – transformation and 
preference for local industry.

30 june 2013 14 Aug 2013 Policy reviewed and submitted to the 
Board on 14 Aug 2013.  Application 
to National Treasury for exemption of 
25% mandatory BEE ownership is still in 
process.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

•	 Develop an integrated industry 
support strategy.

31 Aug 2013 5 March 2014 Incorporated in Marketing and Business 
Development Strategy.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

4.4 Armscor brand positioning & 
marketing to be determined by:

•	 Brand recognition; 31 March 2014 30 Nov 2013 Conducted brand recognition as part of 
client satisfaction survey – an overall score 
of 70,8% was achieved that will form 
baseline for future surveys.

Objective exceeded.

•	 External client satisfaction survey. 98% 81,3% Although the level of client satisfaction is 
lower than in the previous year, it resulted 
from a fundamental change in the survey 
conducted, which covered a broader 
spectrum than previously as well as clients 
on various levels.

Objective partially achieved.
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GROuP: THREE YEAR REVIEW (uNAuDITED)
AT 31 MARCH 2014

2014 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm

sTaTemenT of finanCial posiTion

neT asseTs

Property, plant and equipment* 1,230.8 1,322.6 236.9 

Investment property 110.0 - -

Intangible assets 0.1 0.3 0.4 

Other non current financial assets - 0.9 0.1 

Other non current financial liabilities (166.6) (108.7) (21.5)

Net current assets 534.3 442.4 279.4

Financial instruments 712.5 607.5 534.5

Post-retirement medical benefit liability (513.1) (460.3) (418.7)

1,908.0 1,804.7 611.1 

*Property, plant and equipment was revalued in 2013

eQuiTy and liabiliTies

Ordinary shareholders’ interest 1,908.0 1,804.7 611.1 

sTaTemenT of Comprehensive inCome

revenue

Sale of goods and services 360.0 308.2 305.2 

Allocation from the State budget for operating expenditure 870.7 748.1 659.9 

Finance income 48.8 41.1 31.6 

Rental income 46.0 42.6 38.2 

Other income 136.6 116.0 32.3 

1,462.1 1,256.0 1,067.2 

ToTal Comprehensive inCome 103.3 1,193.6 70.2 
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GROuP VALuE-ADDED STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The statement shows the value the Group has created through its acquisition, maintenance and disposal activities aimed at meeting the 

defence matériel requirements of South Africa as well as trading and investment operations. The statement shows how value was created 

and how it was disbursed amongst stakeholders, leaving a retained amount which was re-invested in the Group for the replacement of 

assets, the development of operations and the maintenance of required capabilities.

2014 % 2013 %

Rm Rm

Sale of goods and services 360.0 308.2 

Allocation for operating expenditure (Government grant) 870.7 748.1 

Rental income 46.0 42.6

Other income 136.6 116.0 

Finance income 48.8 41.1 

Revenue 1,462.1 1,256.0

Less:  Paid to suppliers for materials and services (431.6) (337.5)

ToTal value added 1,030.5 100 918.5 100

disTribuTed as folloWs:

To employees as salaries, wages and other benefits 836.8 81 742.9 81

To Government as taxation 34.0 3 35.5 4

ToTal value added disTribuTed 870.8 84 778.4 85

Portion of value added reinvested to sustain and expand the 
business 159.7 16 140.1 15

ToTal value added disTribuTed and reinvesTed 1,030.5 100 918.5 100

TaXaTion

Paid in taxes to Government

§ Rates and taxes to local authorities 34.0 35.5

Collected on behalf of, and paid over to Government

§ Employees taxation deducted from remuneration paid 167.6 150.1 

§ unemployment Insurance Fund 2.6 2.3 

§ Net value added taxation (VAT) 95.8 117.2 

266.0 269.6 
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ARMSCOR GROuP

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

The following main aspects concerning the Armscor Group’s 
financial results are apparent from the annual financial statements.

sTaTemenT of finanCial posiTion

The net value of the Group increased from R1,804.7 million to 
R1,908.0 million mainly as a result of the net surplus from current year 
operations. Cash and cash equivalents form a substantial part of the 
assets and are reserved to finance specific future obligations. The 
Group invested R75 million in acquiring plant and equipment as well 
as addition to existing facilities.

The business of Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd (wholly owned 
subsidary) was fully integrated within Armscor and has operated as a 
department of the Corporation from 1 April 2013.

sTaTemenT of Comprehensive inCome

The net financial result of the Group (after tax but before gains on the 
property evaluation) reflects a profit of R103.3 million compared to 
R109.9 million in the previous financial year. Total revenue increased 
by 16.6% while operating expenditure increased by 18.7%. 
Furthermore, the financial results were influenced by the inclusion of 
the results of the Armscor Medical Benefit Fund which, if excluded, the 
net result is R76.9 million  (2013: R85.4 million).

Comparison with budget

If compared with a budgeted profit of R40.4 million, excluding the 
Armscor Medical Benefit Fund, the main contributors of the deviation 
for the year under review are the following:

Contributors to deviation

personnel Costs

The net under spending in personnel cost is due to delays in the filling 
of vacancies due to the recruitment of suitable candidates.

allocation for operating expenditure/gross 
contributions

Allocation for operating expenditure is received to defray the cost 
of the Group’s operations for the year under review, to address 
additional services to be rendered and to ensure that Armscor’s 
contracted service delivery to the Department of Defence (DOD), 
in terms of the Service Level Agreement (SLA), is effectively and 
efficiently met.  The variance on sales was as the result of the non-
availability of the dry docking facilities.  These facilities have been 
in high demand by our primary customer, SA Navy which limited 
the ability to generate the budgeted revenue.  The transfer payment 
of R210.3 million for the Dockyard comprises an annual payment of 
R155.6 million and R54.7 million recognised in the current financial 
year from ad-hoc funding to compensate for costs incurred.

depreciation

The depreciation increased as a result of the revaluation of the 
buildings which occurred after the finalisation of  the budget.

other operating expenses/maintenance

The spending on maintenance and external services increased as  a 
result of costs incurred in maintaining the Dockyard facilities as well as 
contract labour funded from the additional transfer from the SA Navy 
ring-fenced within the deferred income.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

CORPORATIOn GROUP

Restated Restated nOTES Restated Restated

2012 2013 2014 2014 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

asseTs

non-CurrenT asseTs

48.8 938.3 1,230.8 Property, plant and equipment 2 1,230.8 1,322.6 236.9 

- - 110.0 Investment property 3 110.0 - -

- - 0.1 Intangible assets 4 0.1 0.3 0.4 

0.1 0.1 0.1 Investment in a joint venture 5 - 0.9 0.1 

534.5 607.5 712.5 Financial instruments 16 712.5 607.5 534.5 

583.4 1,545.9 2,053.5 2,053.4 1,931.3 771.9 

CurrenT asseTs

- 0.1 0.2 
Non current assets held for 
disposal 2 0.2 0.2 -

2.5 2.4 29.3 Inventories 7 29.3 11.7 7.6 

147.7 85.4 120.7 Trade and other receivables 8 120.7 111.9 172.5 

444.6 693.5 699.0 Cash and short term deposits 9 699.0 689.3 442.5 

1.0 - - Taxation 15 - - 1.0

180.0 40.9 - Loans to subsidiaries 10 - - -

775.8 822.3 849.2 849.2 813.1 623.6

1,359.2 2,368.2 2,902.7 ToTal asseTs 2,902.6 2,744.4 1,395.5
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

Restated Restated nOTES Restated Restated

2012 2013 2014 2014 2013 2012

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

eQuiTy and liabiliTies

CapiTal and reserves

75.0 75.0 75.0 Ordinary share capital 11 75.0 75.0 75.0 

435.0 1,283.2 1,833.1 Non-distributable reserves 1,833.0 1,729.7 536.1 

510.0 1,358.2 1,908.1 
ORdInARy 
SHAREHOldERS InTEREST

1,908.0 1,804.7 611.1 

lIAbIlITIES

nOn-CURREnT 
lIAbIlITIES

446.2 485.0 513.1 
Post-retirement medical benefit 
liability 6 513.1 460.3 418.7 

12.0 22.7 38.2 Deferred tax 15 38.2 22.7 12.0

9.5 86.0 128.4 Deferred income 12 128.4 86.0 9.5 

467.7 593.7 679.7 679.7 569.0 440.2

CURREnT lIAbIlITIES

112.7 154.4 - Loans from subsidiaries 10 - - -

141.3 153.2 158.5 Trade and other payables 13 158.5 217.4 192.5 

67.9 69.0 104.8 Provisions 14 104.8 93.5 92.1 

- 2.9 1.1 Taxation 15 1.1 2.9 -

59.6 36.8 50.5 Deferred income 12 50.5 56.9 59.6 

381.5 416.3 314.9 314.9 370.7 344.2 

849.2 1,010.0 994.6 TOTAl lIAbIlITIES 994.6 939.7 784.4 

1,359.2 2,368.2 2,902.7 
TOTAl EQUITy And 
lIAbIlITIES

2,902.6 2,744.4 1,395.5 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINuED) 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

CORPORATIOn GROUP

RESTATEd 
2013

2014 nOTES 2014
RESTATEd 

2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

19.9 360.0 Revenue 17 360.0 308.2 

(10.3) (144.0) Cost of sales 18 (144.0) (119.7)

9.6 216.0 gross profiT 19 216.0 188.5 

159.7 182.6 Other operating revenue 20 182.6 158.6

748.1 870.7 
Allocation for operating expenditure 
(Government grants) 21 870.7 748.1 

(840.0) (1,193.2) Operating expenses 22 (1,193.3) (1,007.3)

77.4 76.1 operaTing profiT 23 76.0 87.9

41.1 48.8 Investment revenue 24 48.8 41.1 

(5.9) - Finance costs 25  - -

(61.1) 445.6 Loan written off gain/(loss) - -

- - Share of (loss)/profit in joint venture 5 (0.9) 3.8 

51.5 570.5 profiT before TaX 123.9 132.8

(22.9) (20.6) Taxation 15 (20.6) (22.9)

28.6 549.9 PROFIT AFTER TAX 26 103.3 109.9 

oTher Comprehensive inCome

819.5 - Gains on property revaluation 2 - 1,083.7 

848.1 549.9 ToTal Comprehensive inCome 103.3 1,193.6
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

GROUP

balance at 31 march 2012 75.0 12.6 22.6 15.0 24.7 - 474.2 624.1 

Restatement - - - - - - (13.0) (13.0)

restated balance at 31 march 
2012 75.0 12.6 22.6 15.0 24.7 - 461.2 611.1 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 1,083.7 109.9 1,193.6 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 0.3 - - (2.2) - 1.9 -

Total changes - 0.3 - - (2.2) 1,083.7 111.8 1,193.6 

balance at 31 march 2013 75.0 12.9 22.6 15.0 22.5 1,083.7 573.0 1,804.7 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 103.3 103.3

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (0.6) - - (2.5) - 3.1 -

Total changes - (0.6) - - (2.5) - 106.4 103.3

balance at 31 march 2014 75.0 12.3 22.6 15.0 20.0 1,083.7 679.4 1,908.0 

CORPORATIOn

balance at 31 march 2012 75.0 12.6 22.6 15.0 24.7 - 373.2 523.1 

Restatement - - - - - - (13.0) (13.0)

restated balance at 31 march 
2012 75.0 12.6 22.6 15.0 24.7 - 360.2 510.1 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - 819.5 28.6 848.1 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - 0.3 - - (2.2) - 1.9 -

Total changes - 0.3 - - (2.2) 819.5 30.5 848.1 

balance at 31 march 2013 75.0 12.9 22.6 15.0 22.5 819.5 390.7 1,358.2 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 104.3 104.3

Gain from business combination - - - - - - 445.6 445.6

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (0.6) - - (2.5) - 3.1 -

Total changes - (0.6) - - (2.5) - 553.0 549.9

balance at 31 march 2014 75.0 12.3 22.6 15.0 20.0 819.5 943.7 1,908.1 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 nOTES 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

operaTing aCTiviTies

891.5 1,314.0 Cash receipts from customers 1,314.0 1,180.2

(705.4) (1,256.5) Cash paid to suppliers and employees (1,256.5) (935.3)

186.1 57.5 Cash generated from operations 27 57.5 244.9

(8.2) (7.0) Income tax paid (7.0) (8.2)

41.1 48.8 Interest income 48.8 41.1

13.1 10.7 Dividends received 10.7 13.1

(7.8) (2.2) Finance costs (2.2) (1.9)

224.3 107.8 net cash flows from operating activities 107.8 289.0

invesTing aCTiviTies

(95.1) (75.0) Purchase of property, plant and equipment 2 (75.0) (42.2)

0.2 - Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 - 0.1

(0.1) (23.1) Increase in investments (23.1) (0.1)

119.7 - Loans from group companies - -

24.7 (98.1)
neT Cash floWs used (in)/from 
invesTing aCTiviTies

(98.1) (42.2)

249.0 9.7 ToTal Cash movemenT for The year 9.7 246.8

444.5 689.3 CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 689.3 442.5

693.5 699.0 ToTal Cash aT end of The year 9 699.0 689.3
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accounting policies
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

1. mandate

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practises, and the Companies Act of South Africa, 71 of 2008. 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis except for some financial instruments and land and buildings, 
which are measured at fair value, and incorporate the principal 
accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South 
African Rands and all values are rounded to the nearest millions 

unless otherwise indicated. 

Armscor receives its mandate for the period under review from the 
Armaments Corporation of South Africa, Limited Act (Act No 51 
of 2003) and the Armaments Corporation of South Africa, Limited 
amendment Act (Act No 16 of 2005), which came into effect 
from 8 May 2006 by proclamation 20 published in Government 
Gazette 28779 of 5 May 2006 in terms of which the Corporation 

is empowered to meet:

 § the defence matériel requirements of the Department of 
Defence (DOD) effectively, efficiently and economically; 
and

 § the defence technology, research, development, analysis, 
test and evaluation requirements of the Department of 
Defence effectively, efficiently and economically.

These Acts furthermore provides that Armscor must adhere 
to accepted corporate governance principles, best business 
practices and International Financial Reporting Standards within 
a framework of established norms and standards that reflect 
fairness, equity, transparency, economy, efficiency, accountability 

and lawfulness.

1.1 Financial Policy

Activities are financed as follows:

armscor’s operating funds

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence budget 

and together with interest earned thereon are utilised to finance 

operating expenditure, the acquisition of fixed assets and 

expenditure for the creation and maintenance of facilities and 

services.

operating capital and fixed capital of subsidiaries 
and the joint venture

Operating capital and fixed capital requirements of subsidiaries 
and the joint venture are financed from own income generated 
and cash allocated by the holding company, as well as additional 
funding received from the DOD if required.

procurement of armaments

Armaments purchases and maintenance are financed by means 
of withdrawals from the Special Defence Account in terms of the 
Defence Special Account Act (Act No 6 of 1974, as amended) 
and the General Defence Account. Strategic Defence Packages 
are financed wholly or partially by means of draw downs against 

credit facilities supplied by National Treasury.

1.2 Accounting Policy 

The Corporation’s year end is the same as its subsidiaries except 
for the joint venture which has a February year end. The principal 
accounting policies adopted by the Group, are set out below: 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period 
with the exception of land which was changed from owner 

occupied to investment property.

1.3 Consolidation

basis of consolidation 

The Group annual financial statements present the consolidated 
financial position and changes therein, operating results and 
cash flow information of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. 
Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group has an interest 
of more than one half of the voting rights or the power to exercise 
control so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

Control exists when the company has the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included for the duration in which 
the Group exercises control over the subsidiary. All inter company 
transactions and resulting profits and losses between the Group 
companies are eliminated on consolidation. The Corporation 
carries its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses in the financial statements.
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accounting policies
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

business combinations

a. business combination of common control 

entities

The accounting policy adopted by the Group in accounting for 
business combination of common control entities is GRAP 107 
which provides accounting policies to adopt when there is a 
merger of businesses. The adoption of GRAP 107 is in line with 
IAS 8 guidance on determining an accounting policy to adopt 
where there is no standard or guidance covering the basis of 
accounting for transaction in SA GAAP. GRAP 107 states that 
mergers are accounted for by the combining entity by recognising 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts 
at the date of the merger. Any difference between assets and 
liabilities recognised and consideration paid, if any, is recognised 

in accumulated surplus or deficit.

b. business combinations other

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition 
method of accounting except for business combinations of common 
control entities which is specifically excluded from the provisions of 
IFRS 3. The cost of the business combination is measured as the 
aggregate of the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or 
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities which meet the recognition conditions of IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at acquisition 
date, except for non-current assets (or disposal Group) that are 
classified as held-for-sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current 
Assets Held-For-Sale and discontinued operations, which are 

recognised at fair value less costs to sell.

1.3.1	Significant	accounting	judgements,	
estimates and assumptions

Judgements 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required 
to make estimates and assumptions that effect the amounts 
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. 
use of available information and the application of judgement is 
inherent in the formation of estimates. 

Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which 
may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements 

include:

a. pension and other post-employment benefits 

The cost of defined post-employment medical benefits is 
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation 
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates 
of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such 

estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.  

b. impairment of financial assets 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables 

and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The 

fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated 

by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current 

market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar 

financial instruments.

c.  impairment of nonfinancial assets 

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment 

for all non financial assets at each reporting date. When value 

in use calculations are undertaken, management estimate the 

expected future cash flows from the asset or cash generating 

unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 

present value of those cash flows.

d. provisions 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate 

based on the best available information. 

1.3.2	Property,	plant	and	equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
as an asset when:

 § it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group; and

 § the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item 
of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant 
and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

The useful life and depreciation method of each asset is reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period. If the expectations differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or 
loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the 
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, 

if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

a. land and buildings

Land is stated at fair value and is not depreciated. Buildings 

are stated at fair value less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight 

line basis over the useful life of the buildings over periods that vary 

between three and fifty years.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a 

revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and 

accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.  The increase is 

recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 

decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a 

revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the current period.  

The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income 

to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation 

surplus in respect of that asset.  The decrease recognised in other 

comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in the 

revaluation surplus in equity.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, 

any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 

eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 

net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

b. plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment includes plant, machinery, equipment, office 
equipment, furniture, computers, vehicles and vessels. 

Plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day 
to day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment. The cost of replacing part of such plant and equipment 
is capitalised when that cost is incurred and the recognition criteria 
is met. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of capitalised 
fixed assets on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives 

over periods that vary as follows:

Plant, machinery & equipment 5-15 years

Office equipment, furniture & computers 2-20 years

Vehicles & vessels 5-15 years

1.3.3 Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only 

when, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 

associated with the investment property will flow to the enterprise, 

and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost.  Transaction 

costs are included in the initial measurement.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently 

to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property.  If a 

replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the 

investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognized.
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Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured 

at fair value.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net 

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

There are no property interests held under operating leases which 

are recognised as investment property.

1.3.4 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognised when:

 § it is probable that the expected future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

 § the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal 

project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the 

development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

 § it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will 
be available for use or sale.

 § there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

 § there is an ability to use or sell it.

 § it will generate probable future economic benefits.

 § there are available technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and to use or sell 
the asset.

 § the expenditure attributable to the asset during its 
development can be measured reliably.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer 

lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible 

assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 

are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 

economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there 

is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 

asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial 

year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 

pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 

the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or 

method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting 

estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite 

lives is recognised the surplus/deficit in the expense category 

consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognising of an intangible 

asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

recognised in the statement  of comprehensive income when the 

asset is derecognised. Amortisation is calculated to write off the 

cost of capitalised intangible assets on a straight line basis over 

their expected useful lives over ten years.

a. patents

The patents have been granted for periods ranging from ten to 

fifteen years respectively.

1.3.5 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (purchase cost) and net 

realisable value. Raw materials are calculated using the first in, 

first out method, except in the case of Hazmat Protective Systems 

where it is calculated at weighted average. Write downs to net 

realisable value and inventory losses are expensed in the period 

in which the write down or losses occur. Finished goods and work 

in progress are stated at actual cost of direct materials and labour 

and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal 

operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 

course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories 

are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related 

revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories 

to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised 

as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The 

amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising 

from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a 

reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense 

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.3.6 Non-Distributable reserves 

All reserves are considered to be non-distributable. The full 

share capital and reserves are required for the total net capital 

requirement of the Group. Cash is therefore retained to meet future 

commitments, and is consequently not available for the distribution 

of dividends.

a. Capital and building maintenance reserve

The reserve was established for comprehensive upgrading and 

replacement of obsolete capital equipment and maintenance of 

major building systems.

b. Computer upgrading reserve

The purpose of this reserve is for the upgrading and replacement 

of obsolete, outdated computer technology.

c.  marketing promotion reserve

The reserve was established to supplement the financing of 

exhibition costs in order to promote the local defence industry 

which is part of Armscor’s mandate, but which is not provided 

for via the transfer payment from the Department of Defence.  

Included in the marketing promotion reserve is fair value gains on 

available for sale investments.

d. internal insurance reserve

Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost-to-benefit 

relationship exceeds the risk and the incidence of losses is of 

a minor and infrequent nature. Self-insured risks are reviewed 

annually to ensure cover is adequate and an amount is held in an 

internal insurance fund to cover these risks.

e. revaluation reserve

The revaluation surplus in equity is related to land and buildings and 

is transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset is used.  The 

amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation 

based on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation based 

on the original cost of the asset.

1.3.7 Foreign currency conversion

Transactions and balances

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition 

in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot 

exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign 

currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency monetary items 

are translated using the closing rate.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items 

or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at 

which they were translated on initial recognition during the period 

or in previous financial statements are recognised in profit or loss 

in the period in which they arise.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are 

recorded in Rand by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at the 

date of the cash flow.

1.3.8 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 

following conditions have been satisfied:
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 § the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

 § the Group retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

 § the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

 § it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the transaction will flow to the Group;  and

 § the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of 

services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the 

transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion 

of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome 

of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following 

conditions are satisfied:

 § the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

 § it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the transaction will flow to the Group;

 § the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of 
the reporting period can be measured reliably; and

 § the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of 

services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognised 

only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Contract revenue comprises:

 § the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract; and

 § variations in contract work, claims and incentive 
payments:

- to the extent that it is probable that they will result in 

revenue; and

- they are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods 

and services provided in the normal course of business, net of 

trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised 

as revenue over the period during which the service is performed.

1.3.9 Other income

a. interest income

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account 

of the principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period 

to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to 

the Group.

b. rental income

Rental income arising on properties is accounted for on a straight 

line basis over the lease terms on ongoing leases.

c. government grant

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 

assurance that:

 § the company will comply with the conditions attaching to 
them;  and

 § the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods 

necessary to match them with the related costs that they are 

intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for 

expenses or deficits already incurred or for the purpose of giving 

immediate financial support to the entity with no future related 

costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes 

receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants 

at fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position by 

setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant 

in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.
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Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or 

loss (separately). 

Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence budget 

and recognised as a grant via revenue (transfer payment) as and 

when received and together with interest earned thereon are 

utilised to finance operating expenditure, the acquisition of fixed 

assets and expenditure for the creation of facilities and services.

Secondary grants received, based on Memorandums of 

Agreement with the DOD, for specific services are recognised as 

revenue as and when the conditions of receipt thereof has been 

fulfilled and are included in sale of goods and services.

d. dividend income

Dividends are recognized, in profit or loss, when the company’s 

right to received payment has been established.

1.3.10 Insurance and risk management 

The insurance and risk management policies adopted by the 
Armscor Group are aimed at obtaining sufficient cover at the 
minimum cost to protect its asset base, earning capacity and legal 
obligations against unacceptable losses.

All fixed assets are insured at current replacement value. Risks 
are identified and insured while paying specific attention to 
the specialised nature of the Group’s various activities and 
exposures. Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost-to-
benefit relationship exceeds the risk and the incidence of losses 
is of a minor and infrequent nature. Self-insured risks are reviewed 

annually to ensure cover is adequate. 

1.3.11 Financial instruments 

recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are initially recognised on the statement of 
financial position when the Group becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are 
initially measured at fair value, which includes directly attributable 
transaction cost in the case of financial assets and liabilities not 
at fair value through profit and loss. Subsequent measurement for 
each category is specified in the sections below.

derecognition of financial assets and financial 
liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset 

or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is derecognised 

where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

The resulting difference between the carrying value on the 

derecognition of the financial instrument and the amount received 

or paid is taken to profit or loss.

financial assets

The Group categorises its financial assets in the following 

categories: loans and receivables and fair value through profit 

or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which 

the financial assets are acquired. Management determines the 

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

loans and receivables

After initial recognition, such assets are carried at amortised 

cost, using the effective interest rate method, less accumulated 

impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss 

when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, 

and through the amortisation process. 

The Group has classified the following financial assets as loans 

and receivables:

a. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables comprise all trade and non-trade 

debtors.  Short-duration receivables with no stated interest rate are 

measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing 

interest is significant.

b. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits 
held on call and investment instruments, all of which are readily 
convertible (within 12 months) to cash, available for use by the 
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Group unless otherwise stated and are subject to an insignificant 

risk of change in value.

c. loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to and from the holding company and 

subsidiaries and recognised initially at fair value plus direct 

transaction costs. Loans from Group companies are classified as 

financial liabilities measured at cost.

d. other loans

Other loans comprise of employee loans, loans to shareholders, 

directors and managers. These loans are interest bearing over 

periods that vary between one and twelve months in terms of 

conditions of employment.

offset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 

amount reported in the balance sheet when the company has a 

legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and 

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously.

held to maturity investments

Fixed deposits with a maturity date greater than three months are 

classified as held to maturity investments.

available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are equity accounted in group 

statements.  The investment is initially recognised at fair value and 

is subject to periodic assessment of increase or decrease in fair 

value.

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables and loans 

from Group companies. After initial recognition, financial liabilities 

are recognised at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 

method, finance costs on financial liabilities at amortised cost are 

expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred 

using the effective interest rate method. In addition, gains and 

losses on these financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss 

when the liability is derecognised.

financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those 
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 
a payment when it becomes due in accordance with the terms of 
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 
initially at fair value. Subsequently, the contract is measured at 
the higher of the amount determined in accordance with IAS 37 
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation 
recognised in accordance with IAS 18, unless it was designated 
as at fair value through profit or loss at inception and measured as 
such. Financial guarantees are derecognised when the obligation 
is extinguished, expire or transferred. The Group currently does not 
recognise any financial guarantee contracts as, in the opinion of 
the directors; the possibility of loss arising from these guarantees 

is remote.

impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date 

whether objective evidence exists that a financial asset or a group 

of financial assets is impaired.

financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is 

objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial 

assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is 

impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have 

occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) 

and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets 

that can be reliably estimated. If there is objective evidence that 

an impairment loss has been incurred on a financial asset, the 

amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 

cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not 
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been incurred) discounted at the financial assets original effective 

interest rate. The amount of the impairment shall be recognised in 

the statement of comprehensive income.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the 

related provision for impairment. Such receivables are written off 

after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the 

amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of 

amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision 

for loan impairment in the statement of comprehensive income.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance 

account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within 

operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write 

off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent 

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 

operating expenses.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, provisions for 

impairment are recognised based on the following considerations:

Trade and other receivables

For trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is 

established when there is objective evidence that the Group will 

not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original 

terms of the receivables. Indicators of impairment include long 

overdue accounts, significant financial difficulties of the debtors 

and defaults in payments.

1.3.12 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal 

or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for which it is 

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is 

presented in the surplus/deficit, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised, but 

reflected in a separate note to the financial statements.

The Group has the following provisions at year end:

a. performance remuneration

The payment of performance remuneration is subject to the 

Corporations’ achievement of set performance criteria. 

The Corporation use the Balanced Score Card method for 

evaluating individual performance. Performance remuneration is 

based proportionally on the individual performance as measured 

and expressed by the individual’s performance score and also on 

Armscor department’s performance as measured and expressed 

by their calculated performance score.

b. provision for leave

Provision is calculated on leave days outstanding at end of 

year multiplied by remuneration rate based on the applicable 

remuneration package of each employee.

1.3.13 Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a 

lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception 

date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 

the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a 

right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the 

lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a 
renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless 
the term of the renewal or extension was initially included 
in the lease term;

c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment 
is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence 

or cease from the date when the change in circumstances gave 

rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d and at the date of 

renewal or extension period for scenario b.
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Leases of assets to the Group under which all the risks and benefits 

of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are classified 

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are 

charged against income on a straight line basis over the period 

of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the 

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

to the lessee.

operating leases – lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating 

leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 

recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis 

as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or loss.

operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term.  The difference between the 

amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments 

are recognised as an operating lease asset.  

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.3.14 Impairment of tangible and intangible 
assets 

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether 
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of 

the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual 
asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is 

the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated 

depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit 

or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a 

revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 

indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods 

for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have 

decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts 

of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill 

attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 

the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less 

accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill 

is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an 

impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 

increase.

1.3.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was 

made in vain as well as penalties levied on late deliveries and 

which would have been avoided had reasonable care been 

exercised.

1.3.16 Share capital and equity 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.



105

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

accounting policies
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

1.3.17	 Employee	benefits

a. short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 
12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as 
an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when 

the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is 
recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

b. defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are 
charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement 
benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the Group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to 

those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

c.  retirement benefits 

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor Defined 
Contribution Pension Fund and the Armscor Provident Fund, which 
offer benefits based on the contributions of and on behalf of every 

member, as well as on investment yields.

The Group also provides post-retirement health care benefits to its 

retirees. The entitlement to post retirement health care benefits is 

based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age 

and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected 

costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. 

Valuations of these obligations are carried out by independent 

qualified actuaries. The cost of providing benefits under the 

defined benefits plan is determined using the projected unit credit 

actuarial valuation method.

Actuarial gains or losses in respect of defined benefit plans 

are recognised as income or expense if the net cumulative 

unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous 

reporting period exceeded the greater of:

 § 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at that date before deducting plan assets, and

 § 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

The amount recognised is the excess determined above, divided 

by the expected average remaining working lives of the employees 

participating in that plan.

Where the Group is in the net asset position, the defined benefit 

surplus is measured at the lower of:

 § The present value of defined obligation, plus actuarial 
gains, less past service cost, less the fair value of plan 
assets at the reporting date of the plan assets; and

 § The total of cumulative unrecognised actuarial loss, and 
past service cost and the present value of any economic 
benefits in the form of refunds from the plan or a reduction 

in future contributions of the plan.

1.3.18 Taxation

Current taxation

Current taxation comprises tax payable calculated on the basis 
of the expected taxable income for the year, using the tax rates 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment of tax 
payable for the previous year.

deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided using the balance sheet liability 
method, based on temporary differences.  Temporary differences 
are differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax values.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected 
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the balance sheet date.  Deferred tax is recognised in the income 
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statement except to the extent that it relates to a transaction that 
is recorded directly in equity, or a business combination that is an 
acquisition.  The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates 
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it 
relates to items previously charged or credited directly to equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
associated unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences 
can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

1.3.19 Restatements

investment in africa aerospace and defence (aad)

Armscor entered into a 33.3% partnership on 30 August 1999 with 

the South African Aerospace, Maritime and Defence Industries 

Association (AMD) and the Commercial Aviation Association 

of Southern Africa (CAASA). The partnership’s main business is 

hosting of the Africa aerospace and defence air show which take 

place bi-annually. 

Corporate

Initial investment by Armscor to the partnership was one hundred 

thousand Rand. The investment was previously expensed and not 

capitalized. Dividend income received from the AAD was correctly 

recorded as other income.

The following correction has been done 

marKeTing reserve Rm

Balance 31 March 2012 12.5 

Restatement 0.1 

Balance 31 March 2012 12.6 

Initial investment made was recognised in the marketing reserve. 

Investment in joint venture of R0,1 million was also recognised in 

the statement of financial position.

group

Initial investment by Armscor to the partnership was one hundred 

thousand Rand. The investment was previously expensed and 

not capitalized. Although the amount disbursed was correctly 

disclosed, share of AAD profits/losses were not disclosed as 

required by IAS 31.

The following correction has been done: 

The marketing reserve and investment in joint venture had the same 

impact in Group as in Corporation.

The statement of profit or loss had the following impact before the 

inclusion of Armscor Medical Benefit Fund.

2012/2013

before
Rm

After
Rm

Other operating revenue 67.7 64.7 

Share of profit in joint venture - 3.8 

Profit for the year 84.6 85.4 

retained income Rm

Balance at 31 March 2013 560.7 

Restatement 0.8 

Restated balance at 31 March 2013 561.5 

debtor incorrectly recognised

Armscor acts as an agent for the Department of Defense (DOD) 

in disposing of obsolete defence materiél on behalf of the DOD. 

In the previous financial year, Armscor incorrectly recognised a 

transaction for goods that were sold on behalf of the DOD which 

had not fully complied with the definition of a sale as the risks and 

rewards relating to the goods sold had not passed to the purchaser 

by the end of the financial year. This resulted in an overstatement 

of both debtors and creditors, as a debtor and corresponding 

creditor were raised to account for the amount  owed to the DOD.
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Comparative figures have been restated as follows before inclusion of Armscor Medical Benefit Fund

CORPORATIOn GROUP

before After 2013 After before

Rm Rm Rm Rm

101.4 85.4 Trade and other receivables 111.9 127.9

169.0 153.0 Trade and other payables 217.3 233.3

2012

159.3 147.7 Trade and other receivables 184.1 172.5

151.9 140.3 Trade and other payables 203.1 191.5

armscor medical benefit fund restated

Since 1993, Armscor has operated the Armscor Medical Benefit 

Fund (the Fund) for the Group’s post-retirement medical liability 

towards employees after retirement. The Fund has been managed 

separately from the Group’s normal operations and reported its 

results separately. Expert legal opinion obtained in previous years 

reinforced management’s view of the separation of the Fund, 

and further, recommended that the Fund be formalised through 

registration as a trust. 

Since 2000, Armscor has been considering alternative options to 

reduce the Group’s post-retirement medical liability which would 

effectively dissolve the Fund. This exercise has required extensive 

engagement with various stakeholders resulting in the current 

process undertaken from 2011 and which is nearing completion.

Investments (and resulting investment returns) made by the Fund 

from contributions made by the Group have historically been 

treated as plan assets in terms of IAS19, and presented net of the 

present value of the obligation in the group financial statement.

During the current year under review, the legal separation of the 

Fund was questioned and deemed not to be legally separate. As 

a result, the operations of the Fund are deemed not to be separate 

from that of the Group and thus the investments of the Fund do 

not qualify as plan assets in terms of IAS19. Thus the Fund assets 

cannot be presented net of the present value of the obligation. 

Accordingly comparative figures for prior years have been restated 

to include the full operational results of the Fund, which includes 

income taxation as the Fund is a registered tax paying entity. 
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1.3.20 Reporting framework

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice were 

withdrawn by the Accounting Practices Board on 1 December 

2012.

National Treasury instructed that those Government Business 

Enterprises that apply Statements of SA GAAP, as an interim 

measure, should continue to apply Statements of GAAP (as issued 

at 1 April 2012) until the Board has undertaken more extensive 

research to identify the most appropriate reporting framework.

Statements of GAAP are drawn from International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards 

(IASs), Interpretations issued by the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRICs and SICs).  Section 

56 of the Financial Management of Parliament Act (Act No 10 of 

2009) requires that Parliament prepares its financial statements in 

accordance with standards of generally recognised accounting 

practice. ‘‘Standards of generally recognised accounting 

practice’’ in that Act means an accounting practice complying with 

the standards approved by the Minister of Finance on the advice 

of the Accounting Standards Board.

The effect of the APB not adopting any Standards or amendments 

after May 2011 means that the following pronouncements or 

amendments are not included in the GAAP Reporting Framework:

a. IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 joint 

Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other 

Entities and IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and any 

consequential amendments to existing IFRSs or IASs as a 

result of issuing these IFRSs. 

b. IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (issued in May 

2011) and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and joint 

Ventures (issued in May 2011). 

The restatement on the financial statements are summarised below: 

CORPORATIOn GROUP

before After 2013 After before

Rm Rm Rm Rm

statement of financial position

- 607.5 Financial instruments 607.5 -

109.4 - Post-retirement medical benefit asset - 134.0 

689.8 693.5 Cash and short term deposits 689.3 685.7 

1,271.8 1,283.2 Non-distributable reserves 1,729.7 1,718.2 

- 22.7 Deferred tax liability 22.7 -

153.0 153.2 Trade and other payable 217.4 217.3 

statement of comprehensive income

65.9 159.7 Other operating revenue 158.6 64.7 

782.5 840.0 Operating expenses 1,007.3 949.8 

30.1 41.1 Investment revenue 41.1 30.1 

- 22.9 Taxation 22.9 -

823.7 - Total comprehensive income 1,193.6 1,169.1 
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c. IAS 19 Employee Benefits as revised in june 2011. 

d. Amendments to existing pronouncements Presentation of 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to 

IAS 1) issued in june 2011. 

e. IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 

Surface Mine issued in October 2011. 

f. Amendments to existing pronouncements Mandatory 

Effective Date and Transition Disclosures (Amendments to 

IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) issued in December 2011. 

g. Amendments to existing pronouncements Disclosures 

– Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

(Amendments to IFRS 7) issued in December 2011. 

h. Amendments to existing pronouncements Offsetting 

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to 

IAS 32) issued in December 2011. 

i. (Amendments to existing pronouncements Government 

Loans (Amendments to IFRS 1) issued in March 2012. 

j. Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2009-2011 Cycle) issued 

in May 2012.



110

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

2. properTy, planT and eQuipmenT

COST/
VAlUATIOn

ACCUmUlATEd 
dEPRECIATIOn 

And 
ImPAIRmEnT

CARRyInG 
VAlUE

2014

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Land 373.0 - 373.0 

Buildings 756.6 (30.8) 725.8 

Plant, machinery and equipment 104.9 (51.4) 53.5 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 153.9 (98.7) 55.2

Vehicles and vessels 55.1 (31.8) 23.3

1,443.5 (212.7) 1,230.8 

2013

Rm Rm Rm

Land 483.0 - 483.0 

Buildings 751.8 - 751.8 

Plant, machinery and equipment 88.2 (44.7) 43.5 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 117.9 (88.6) 29.3 

Vehicles and vessels 42.0 (27.0) 15.0 

1,482.9 (160.3) 1,322.6 
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COST/
VAlUATIOn

ACCUmUlATEd 
dEPRECIATIOn 

And 
ImPAIRmEnT

CARRyInG 
VAlUE

2014

CORPORATIOn Rm Rm Rm

Land 373.0 - 373.0 

Buildings 756.6 (30.8) 725.8 

Plant, machinery and equipment 104.9 (51.4) 53.5 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 153.9 (98.7) 55.2

Vehicles and vessels 55.1 (31.8) 23.3

1,443.5 (212.7) 1,230.8 

2013

Rm Rm Rm

Land 399.6 - 399.6

Buildings 498.4 - 498.4 

Plant, machinery and equipment 21.3 (11.4) 9.9 

Office equipment, furniture and computers 92.4 (70.6) 21.8 

Vehicles and vessels 20.1 (11.5) 8.6 

1,031.8 (93.5) 938.3 
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2. reConCiliaTion of properTy, planT and eQuipmenT
OPEnInG 
bAlAnCE

Add-
ITIOnS

REVAlUA-
TIOn

dISPOSAlS/ 
nOn  

CURREnT 
ASSETS HEld 

FOR  
dISPOSAl / 

TRAnSFER TO  
InVESTmEnT 

PROPERTy

dEPRE- 
CIATIOn/
ImPAIR-

mEnT

TOTAl

2014

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land 483.0 - - (110.0) - 373.0 

Buildings 751.9 4.8 - (0.1) (30.8) 725.8 

Plant, machinery and equipment 42.6 19.5 - (0.1) (8.5) 53.5

Office equipment, furniture and 

computers 29.3 38.7 - (0.2) (12.6) 55.2

Vehicles & Vessels 15.9 12.0 - (0.2) (4.4) 23.3

1,322.7 75.0 - (110.6) (56.3) 1,230.8 

2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land 12.7 - 470.3 - - 483.0 

Buildings 140.0 3.3 613.4 (0.1) (4.8) 751.8 

Plant, machinery and equipment 33.0 26.0 - (0.1) (15.4) 43.5 

Office equipment, furniture and 

computers 33.4 10.4 - (0.1) (14.4) 29.3 

Vehicles & Vessels 17.8 2.5 - - (5.3) 15.0 

236.9 42.2 1,083.7 (0.3) (39.9) 1,322.6 
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OPEnInG 
bAlAnCE

Add-
ITIOnS

REVAlUA-
TIOn

dISPOSAlS/ 
nOn  

CURREnT 
ASSETS HEld 

FOR  
dISPOSAl / 
TRAnSFER 

TO  
InVESTmEnT 

PROPERTy

dEPRE- 
CIATIOn/
ImPAIR-

mEnT

TOTAl

2014

CORPORATIOn Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land 399.6 83.4 - (110.0) - 373.0 

Buildings 498.4 258.3 - (0.1) (30.8) 725.8

Plant, machinery and equipment 9.0 53.1 - (0.1) (8.5) 53.5 

Office equipment, furniture and 

computers 21.8 46.2 - (0.2) (12.6) 55.2

Vehicles & Vessels 9.5 18.4 - (0.2) (4.4) 23.3

938.3 459.4 - (110.6) (56.3) 1,230.8 

2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Land - 4.1 395.5 - - 399.6

Buildings - 74.4 424.0 - - 498.4

Plant, machinery and equipment 12.2 8.2 - (0.1) (10.4) 9.9

Office equipment, furniture and 

computers 26.1 7.5 - - (11.8) 21.8

Vehicles & Vessels 10.5 0.9 - - (2.8) 8.6

48.8 95.1 819.5 (0.1) (25.0) 938.3
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Included in land and buildings is the IMT building 
erected on leasehold premises with a net book 
value of R46,3 million (2013:  R50,2 million).  The 
leasehold premises comprises a portion in extent 
1,4475 ha of Erf 3779 in Simon’s Town which is 
leased from the Department of Public Works as 
well as lease hold improvements amounting to 
R2,4 (2013:  R0,6 million) for the year at Armscor 
Dockyard.  Detail pertaining to land and buildings is 
available at the registered office of the Corporation.

Land with value of R110,0 million has been 
transferred to Investment property as the intention 
for use had been changed from owner occupied to 
holding the land for capital appreciation.

depreciation

18.8 59.7 Gross depreciation 59.7 29.6 

(0.7) (3.4) Less:  Change in the estimated useful life (3.4) 0.6 

18.1 56.3 56.3 30.2 

In line with the requirements of IAS 16 the Group reviewed 
the useful life, residual values and method of depreciation 
for all assets still in use.  Based on the latest available and 
reliable information there was a change in the estimated 
useful life of some assets, which resulted in a decrease in 
depreciation of R3,4 million (2013:  R0,6 million increase).

Other matters

Included in the Corporation’s value of plant, machinery 
and equipment are assets at contractors with a cost of 
R5,1 million (2013:  R5,1 million) that are fully depreciated.  
These assets are no longer in use.

Assets with a carrying amount of R0,2 million at year end 
are held for disposal.  The process of disposal is in place 
and will be disposed within the next 12 months. Assets 
currently held for disposal include assets held at the 
Dockyard and Research & Development.

These assets include, plant and machinery amounting 
to R0,1 million which will be disposed by means of an 
auction.

Residential properties at Prieska, Northern Cape 
amounting to R0,1 million. These properties will be sold 
to potential buyers, with the lessee having the first option 
to buy.

Purchase of property, plant and equipment for Corporation 
(2013: R95 million) includes the acquisition of subsidiary 
assets that are eliminated in the Group



115

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

3. invesTmenT properTy

COST/
VAlUATIOn

ACCUmUlATEd 
dEPRECIATIOn

CARRyInG 
VAlUE

2014

GROUP/CORPORATIOn Rm Rm Rm

Land 110.0 - 110.0 

2013

Land - - -

RECOnCIlIATIOn OF InVESTmEnT PROPERTy

OPEnInG 
bAlAnCE

TRAnSFER 
FROm OWnER 

OCCUPIEd

TOTAl

2014

GROUP/CORPORATIOn Rm Rm Rm

Land - 110.0 110.0 

2013

Land - - -

unimproved stand 684 Erasmuskloof Extension 4 Township has been transferred to Investment property (IAS 40) from being part 

of Property, plant and equipment (IAS 16). The change in application of IAS 16 to IAS 40 is warranted by providing reliable and 

more relevant information about conditions on the entity’s financial position. The vacant land was initially earmarked as owner 

occupied where plans to build an owner occupied building were made. The plans have subsequently changed in nature and the 

land is currently held for capital appreciation.

The land transferred was not fair valued before the transfer as the land mentioned was fair valued in the previous year.  The fair value 

of the land is deemed not to be materially different from the fair value exercise performed in the previous financial year.

The fair value was determined by an independent sworn appraiser using current market values on 31 March 2013.  The appraiser 

holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment 

property being valued.
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4. inTangible asseTs

COST/
VAlUATIOn

ACCUmUlATEd 
AmORTISATIOn/ 

ImPAIRmEnT

CARRyInG 
VAlUE

2014

GROUP Rm Rm Rm

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.3 (0.2) 0.1

2013

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.6 (0.3) 0.3 

RECOnCIlIATIOn OF InTAnGIblE ASSETS

OPEnInG 
bAlAnCE

AmORTISATIOn/ 
ImPAIRmEnT

TOTAl

2014

Rm Rm Rm

GROUP

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.3 (0.2) 0.1

2013

Patents, trademarks and other rights 0.4 (0.1) 0.3 

5. invesTmenT in a JoinT venTure 2014 2013

Rm Rm

Cost of Investment 0.1 0.1 

Share of profit in Africa Aerospace Defence 2.9 3.8 

Dividend received (3.0) (3.0)

- 0.9

The above figures are accumulative to arrive at the balance of the investment.

Armscor entered into a 33.3% partnership on 30 August 1999 with the South African Aerospace, Maritime and Defence Industries 
Association (AMD) and the Commercial Aviation Association of Southern Africa (CAASA). The partnership’s main business is hosting of the 
Africa aerospace and defence air show which take place bi-annually. 
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6. reTiremenT benefiTs

6.1 armsCor defined ConTribuTion pension fund and providenT fund

6.1.1 Pension and provident schemes

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund, which offer benefits 

based on the contributions by and made on behalf of every member as well as investment yields.  At the time of establishment of the 

Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund, Armscor guaranteed pensioners that were transferred from the previous pension fund to the 

current pension fund to receive a pension at least equal to the pension received in terms of the previous fund. Armscor’s liability in this regard 

for the remaining 6 members is R Nil (2013:  R Nil) as the pensioners account in the pension fund is sufficiently funded.

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

36.2 54.2 The amount of contributions to the above scheme 54.2 50.6 

6.1.2 Government Employees Pension Fund - Dockyard

The Group contributes towards the Government Employees Pension Fund, which offer benefits based on the contributions by and made on 

behalf of every member as well as investment yields.

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

8.0 11.2 The amount of contributions to the above scheme 11.2 8.0 
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6.2 posT-reTiremenT mediCal benefiTs

The IAS19 valuation of the Group’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2014. Based on the latest projection performed 

at 31 March 2014 the present value of the obligation is R513,1 million (2013: R460,3 million).

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Present value of funded obligations 607.5 569.5 467.4 393.2 333.7 

Fair value of plan assets - - - - -

Net Obligations 607.5 569.5 467.4 393.2 333.7 

unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) (94.4) (109.4) (49.7) (9.8) 19.6 

unrecognised past service gains - 0.2 1.0 2.0 3.0 

net liability in statement of financial position 513.1 460.3 418.7 385.4 356.3 

Figures above include Armscor Corporate, Armscor Research & Development and Armscor Dockyard.

6.2.1	 Post-retirement	medical	benefits	(Excluding	Armscor	Dockyard	Personnel	transferred	from	the	South		
African Navy)

The Group currently provides post-retirement health care benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is 

based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs 

of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations are carried out by independent qualified 

actuaries. 

Reconciliation of the present value of the funded obligations (Group - excluding dockyard )

2014 2013

Rm Rm

Opening balance 549.1 448.4 

Current service cost (includes interest to year end) 19.8 15.9 

Interest cost 43.2 38.6 

Expected employer benefit payments (16.1) (13.9)

Expected closing balance 596.0 489.0 

Actuarial (gain)/loss (10.3) 60.1 

Actual closing balance 585.7 549.1 
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Reconciliation of the net liability in the 
statement of financial position and 
amounts recognised in the profit/loss

436.1 439.9 Opening balance 439.9 399.7

40.8 67.5 Expense recognised in employee remuneration costs 67.5 54.1

(12.3) (16.1) Employer benefit payments (16.1) (13.9)

464.6 491.3 491.3 439.9

net benefit expense (recognised in 
employee remuneration costs)

10.9 19.8 Current service cost 19.8 15.9 

30.6 43.2 Interest cost 43.2 38.6 

- 4.7 Actuarial (gains)/loss recognised 4.7 0.4

(0.7) (0.2) Past service cost recognised (0.2) (0.8)

40.8 67.5 67.5 54.1 

The main actuarial assumptions are:

2014 2013

Discount rate 9,25% 8,00%

Health care cost inflation 8,00% 7,00%

CPI Inflation 6,50% 5,75%

Average retirement age 60 60

Expected return on plan assets 10,00% 9,00%
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a one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in health care costs would have the following 
effects for the group:

Health care cost inflation

Central 
Assumption

9.25%
-1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2014 (Rm)

% Change

585.7

-

501.7

-14.4%

694.6

+18.6%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2014/15 (Rm)

% Change

72.6

-

60.7

-16.3%

88.1

+21.5%

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 8.00% -1% +1%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm)

% Change

63.0

-

52.1

-7.3%

61.1

+22.6%

Armscor is currently considering alternative options to reduce its post-retirement medical liability.  An alternative was approved by the Board 

of Directors whereby employees and retired employees will on a voluntary basis select to accept the alternative offered in lieu of the post-

retirement medical benefit.  The implementation of this alternative is, however, subject to specific predetermined criteria.
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6.2.2	Post-retirement	medical	benefits	for	Armscor	Dockyard	Personnel	transferred	from	the	SA	
Navy

The Group also provides post-retirement health care benefits to the Dockyard retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits 

is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs 

of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations are carried out by independent qualified 

actuaries.

The IAS19 valuation of the Dockyard’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2014. This actuarial valuation of the 

employer’s liability as at 31 March 2014 arises as a result of post-employment health care benefits enjoyed by former SA Naval Dockyard 

employees. Based on the projection performed at 31 March 2014 the cash held aside specifically for this purpose is in excess of the 

accrued liability, is R27,9 million (2013:  R22,5 million).

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

The cash held aside specifically for this purpose at  

31 March 2014 is in excess of the accruded liability 

and is summarised below:

20.4 21.8 Accrued liability 21.8 20.4 

20.4 21.8 Accrued liability in excess of plan assets 21.8 20.4 

(22.5) (27.9) Less:  Cash received (27.9) (22.5)

(2.1) (6.1) net liability/(assets) (6.1) (2.1)

A projection of results of the valuation as at 31 March 

2014 to 31 March 2015 is set out below:

20.4 21.8 Accrued liability as at 31 March 2014 21.8 20.4 

1.6 1.7 Interest cost 1.7 1.6 

0.5 0.4 Service cost (including interest to year end) 0.4 0.5 

(0.7) (0.9) Expected employer benefit payments (0.9) (0.7)

21.8 23.0 Projected accrued liability as at 31 march 2015 23.0 21.8 
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Reconciliation of present value of the unfunded 
obligation

19.0 20.4 Opening balance 20.4 19.0 

0.5 0.5 Current service cost 0.5 0.5 

1.6 1.6 Interest cost 1.6 1.6 

(0.7) (0.7) Expected employer benefit payments (0.7) (0.7)

20.4 21.8 Closing balance 21.8 20.4 

Reconciliation of the present value of the unfunded 
obligation with the liability recognised in the 
Statement of financial position

21.0 19.2 Present value of unfunded obligation 19.2 21.0 

(0.6) 2.6 unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) 2.6 (0.6)

20.4 21.8 21.8 20.4 

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee 
remuneration)

0.5 0.5 Current service cost 0.5 0.5 

1.6 1.6 Interest cost 1.6 1.6 

2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 
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GROUP

The main actuarial assumptions are:

2014 2013

Discount rate 9,25% 8,00%

Health care cost inflation 8,00% 7,00%

CPI inflation 6,50% 5,75%

Average retirement age 65 65

Expected return on plan assets 10,00% 9,00%

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in health care costs would have the following effects for the Group:

Health care cost inflation

Central 
Assumption

9.25%
-1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2014 (Rm)

% Change

19.2

-

17.3 

-10.3%

21.6

+12.3%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2014/15 (Rm)

% Change

2.1

-

1.9

-10.9%

2.4

+13.2%

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 8.00% -1% +1%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm)

% Change

2.2

-

2.1

-2.2%

2.3

+5.2%
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

6.2.3 Summary of Defined Medical Benefit 
Expense for all Funds

defined medical benefit expense 
(post- retirement) included in 
employee cost:

11.4 20.3 Current service cost 20.3 16.4 

32.2 44.8 Interest cost 44.8 40.2 

(37.4) (54.3) Expected return on plan assets (54.3) (47.3)

- 1.0 Actuarial loss 1.0 -

(0.7) (0.2) Past service cost (0.2) (0.8)

5.5 11.6 11.6 8.5 

7. invenTories

- 1.1 Raw materials, components 1.1 0.9 

- 23.7 Work in progress 23.7 6.9 

2.4 3.6 Consumables 3.6 3.2 

- 0.9 Finished goods 0.9 0.7 

2.4 29.3 29.3 11.7 

The amount of inventories written off during 
the year is R Nil (2013:  R Nil)

8. Trade and oTher reCeivables

19.3 12.2 Trade receivables 12.2 32.0 

58.4 60.2 Trade receivables - related parties 60.2 70.9 

77.7 72.4 Total trade receivables 72.4 102.9 

1.8 24.8 Other receivables 24.8 3.1 

3.9 20.4 Other receivables - ralated parties 20.4 3.9 

0.4 0.5 Personnel loans 0.5 0.4 

1.6 2.6 Interest receivable on investments 2.6 1.6 

85.4 120.7 120.7 111.9 



125

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

As at 31 March 2014 the ageing analysis of 
trade receivables was as follows:

59.0 23.9 Neither past due nor impaired: 23.9 76.4 

12.0 32.0 30 - 60 days 32.0 17.2 

1.4 8.6 60 - 90 days 8.6 2.6 

Past due but not impaired:

2.1 2.3 90 - 120 days 2.3 2.7 

3.2 5.6 120 days and older 5.6 4.0 

77.7 72.4 72.4 102.9 

Neither past due nor impaired trade 
receivables relates to goods and services 
provided to debtors.  Management has made 
an assesment and they concluded that there 
are no indications of impairment.
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

97.8 98.2 Balance at the beginning of the year 98.2 98.0 

26.3 23.8 Impairment losses recognised on receivables 23.8 26.5 

- (0.1) Amounts written off as uncollectable (0.1) (0.2)

(26.1) (0.1) Amounts recovered during the year (0.1) (26.1)

98.0 121.8 balance at the end of the year 121.8 98.2 

Terms and conditions of the above financial assets:

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and 
are generally on thirty to ninety days terms.

Personal loans are interest bearing over periods that 
vary between one to twelve months in terms of terms and 
conditions of employment.

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking 
account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate 
over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such 
income will accrue to the Group.

For terms and conditions relating to related party 
receivables, refer to note 35.
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

9. Cash and shorT-Term deposiTs

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

203.5 179.0 Cash at banks and in hand 179.0 199.3 

490.0 520.0 Short-term deposits 520.0 490.0 

693.5 699.0 699.0 689.3 

Included in cash and short-term deposits is 
an amount of R20,1  million (2013:  R22,5 
million) in respect of cash allocated to the 
insurance reserve.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating 
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.  
Short-term deposits are made for varying 
periods of between one day and twelve 
months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Group, and earn interest 
at the respective short-term deposit rates.  

10. loans To/(from) subsidiaries

40.9 - Investment in subsidiaries - -

(154.4) - Loan from subsidiary:  Armscor Defence 
Institutes SOC Ltd

- -

(113.5) - - -

The short-term loan represents the current 
account which is utilised to manage the 
overall cash flow of the Group.  This loan is 
unsecured, interest bearing and repayable on 
demand.  The rate of interest levied is based 
on the rate of return earned by Armscor on 
surplus funds.

The carrying amount of the short-term loan 
and investments approximates its fair value.
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at the end of the year, armscor had the following subsidiaries

SOUTH AFRICAn SUbSIdIARIES (At 100% Holdings)

ISSUEd 
SHARE 

CAPITAl
R

ARMSCOR DEFENCE INSTITuTES SOC LTD* 4,000 

ERASMuSRAND PROPERTIES SOC LTD* 1 

OOSPARK SOC LTD* 1 

SPORTRAND SOC LTD* 1 

4,003 

*Dormant Subsidiary

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

11. ordinary share CapiTal

Authorised

1,000.0 1,000.0  § 1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R1 each 1,000.0 1,000.0 

Issued 

75.0 75.0  § Ordinary 75.0 75.0 

Share Capital is under the control of the 
executive authority.
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

12. deferred inCome

Deferred income relates mainly to cash, stock 
and assets received from the Department 
of Defence, of which the recognition of 
the income needs to be aligned with the 
incurring of the expenditure, or the fulfillment 
of the conditions of receipt.

86.0 128.4 Non-current liabilities 128.4 86.0 

36.8 50.5 Current liabilities 50.5 56.9 

122.8 178.9 178.9 142.9 

13. Trade and oTher payables

42.2 39.9 Trade payables 39.9 48.8 

18.4 33.8 Trade payables - related parties 33.8 51.6 

52.7 73.0 Other payables 73.0 77.0 

39.9 11.8 Other payables - related parties 11.8 40.0 

153.2 158.5 158.5 217.4 

62.9 54.9 Trade payables 54.9 102.8 

92.6 84.8 Other payables  84.8 116.9 

155.5 139.7 Current

Trade payables

139.7 219.7 

(2.1) 9.3 > 30 Days 9.3 (2.1)

(0.2) 9.5 > 60 Days 9.5 (0.2)

153.2 158.5 158.5 217.4 

Terms and conditions of the above financial 
liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and 
are normally settled on thirty day terms.

For terms and conditions relating to related 
parties, refer to note 35.

The carrying amount of the accounts payable 
approximates its fair value.



130

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

14. provisions OPEnInG 

bAlAnCE

AddITIOnS UTIlISEd 

dURInG THE 

yEAR

TOTAl

RECOnCIlIATIOn OF PROVISIOnS

2014

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 50.3 27.7 (21.8) 56.2

Provision for performance remuneration 43.2 48.6 (43.2) 48.6 

93.5 76.3 (65.0) 104.8 

2013 Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 51.8 18.9 (20.4) 50.3 

Provision for performance remuneration 40.3 42.4 (39.5) 43.2 

92.1 61.3 (59.9) 93.5 

2014

CORPORATIOn Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 37.1 40.9 (21.8) 56.2 

Provision for performance remuneration 31.9 59.9 (43.2) 48.6 

69.0 100.8 (65.0) 104.8

2013 Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 37.8 13.6 (14.4) 37.1 

Provision for performance remuneration 30.1 31.2 (29.3) 31.9 

67.9 44.8 (43.7) 69.0 

Performance remuneration for 2013/2014 will be paid upon completion of the performance evaluation.
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CORPORATIOn/GROUP

2014 2013

Rm Rm

15. deferred TaXaTion

The deferred taxation liability is attributable to the following

Fair value adjustment on investments 38.2 22.7

The movement between the balances of deferred taxation at the 
beginning of the year and the end of the year can be analysed as 
follows:

At the beginning of the year 22.7 12.0

Current year movement on fair value adjustment 15.5 10.7

-      Current year movement on fair value adjustment 15.5 6.7

-      Difference due to change in inclusion rate - 4.0

Closing balance 38.2 22.7

nORmAl TAXATIOn

Current tax

-      Current year 5.1 12.1

Deferred tax 15.5 10.8

-      Current year movement on fair value adjustment 15.5 6.8

-      Difference due to change in inclusion rate - 4.0

20.6 22.9

RECOnCIlIATIOn OF TAX EXPEnSE

Accounting profit before income tax 110.1 83.8

Non-taxable income (135.1) (93.9)

Non-deductible expenditure 22.6 9.0

Net capital gain 15.2 31.3

Taxable income 12.8 30.2

Current income tax at 40% 5.1 12.1

Total normal income tax 5.1 12.1
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CORPORATIOn/GROUP

2014 2013

Rm Rm

Reconciliation of income tax payable

Outstanding at beginning of year 2.8 (1.0)

Normal income tax for current year 5.2 12.1 

Income tax paid during the year (7.0) (8.2)

Penalties and interest levied by SARS 0.1 -

Income tax payable at the end of the year 1.1 2.9 

% %

Reconciliation of income tax rate

Current year's charge as a percentage of income before taxation 4.65 14.43 

Non taxable income 49.08 44.82 

Non deductible expenditure (8.20) (4.28)

Capital gains (5.53) (14.97)

Standard income tax rate 40.00 40.00 

Taxation disclosed above relates to tax payable by Armscor Medical Benefit Fund as Armscor is exempted from paying income tax.
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Fair value Fair value

2014 2013

Notes Rm Rm

16. finanCial insTrumenTs

Government and other bonds 6.1 42.3 26.1 

Shares - listed 6.2 421.4 405.5 

Deposits at banking institutions 6.3 159.1 103.5 

International investments 6.4 89.7 72.4 

712.5 607.5 

These financial assets are designated as fair value through profit or 

loss. They were designated as such at inception.

16.1 Government and other bonds

Carrying value 42.6 23.5

Fair value 42.3 26.1

Fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices of 
identical assets.  This is level 1 on fair value hierarcy.

16.2 Shares - listed

Carrying value 320.2 342.8

Fair value 421.4 405.5

Fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices of 

identical assets.  This is level 1 on fair value hierarcy.

16.3 deposits at banking institutions

Carrying value 159.1 103.2

Fair value 159.1 103.5

These relate to deposits held for a period longer than 3 months.

Fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices of 

identical assets.  This is level 1 on fair value hierarcy.

16.4 International investments

Carrying value 43.2 49.8

Fair value 89.7 72.4

Fair value is determined with reference to quoted market prices of 

identical assets.  This is level 1 on fair value hierarcy.
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

17. revenue
- 15.0 Sale of goods - Research & Development 15.0 10.5 

9.2 6.8 Services revenue - Armscor Corporate 6.8 9.2 

10.7 17.8 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 17.8 10.7 

- 320.4 Services revenue - Research & Development 320.4 277.8 

19.9 360.0 360.0 308.2 

18. CosT of sales
Sale of goods

- 8.9 Sale of goods - Research & Development 8.9 4.3 

Rendering of services

10.3 14.9 Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 14.9 10.3 

- 120.2 Services revenue - Research & Development 120.2 105.1 

10.3 135.1 135.1 115.4 

Total

- 8.9 Sale of goods 8.9 4.3 

10.3 135.1 Rendering of services 135.1 115.4 

10.3 144.0 144.0 119.7 

19. gross profiT
9.2 6.8 Armscor Corporate 6.8 9.2 

0.4 2.9 Armscor Dockyard 2.9 0.4 

- 206.3 Research & Development 206.3 178.9 

9.6 216.0 216.0 188.5 
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

20. oTher operaTing revenue
43.9 46.0 Armscor Corporate rental income 46.0 42.6 

22.0 14.9 Armscor Corporate other income 14.9 9.2 

- 0.4 Dockyard other income 0.4 -

- 7.3 Research & Development other income 7.3 13.0 

13.1 10.7
Armscor Medical Benefit Fund dividend 
income 10.7 13.1

53.9 44.1
Armscor Medical Benefit Fund profit on 
investment sold 44.1 53.9

26.8 59.2
Armscor Medical Benefit Fund fair value 
adjustment on investments 59.2 26.8

159.7 182.6 182.6 158.6 

Armscor Corporate relates to head office and AB Logistics results. 
The Corporation relates to aggregated results of Armscor Corporate, Armscor Dockyard and Armscor Research & Development.
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2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

21. alloCaTion for operaTing 
eXpendiTure (governmenT granT)

579.4 606.5 Transfer payment - Armscor Corporate 606.5 579.4 

168.7 210.4 Transfer payment - Armscor Dockyard 210.4 168.7 

- 53.8 Transfer payment - Research & Development 53.8 -

748.1 870.7 870.7 748.1 

22. operaTing eXpenses

648.4 698.5 Armscor Corporate 698.6 597.8 

170.5 212.5 Armscor Dockyard 212.5 170.5 

- 245.7 Research & Development 245.7 217.9 

21.1 36.5 Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 36.5 21.1

840.0 1,193.2 1,193.3 1,007.3 

23. profiT/(loss) from operaTions

(5.0) (21.6) Armscor Corporate (21.7) (19.0) 

(1.4) (1.4) Armscor Dockyard (1.4) (1.4)

- 21.7 Research & Development 21.7 24.5 

83.8 77.4 Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 77.4 83.8

77.4 76.1 76.0 87.9 

Is arrived at after taking into account:

Operating lease charges

Premises

0.1 2.4 -  Contractual amounts 2.4 2.3 

motor vehicles

- 0.2 -  Contractual amounts 0.2 0.2 

- 0.1 -  Contingent amounts 0.1 0.1 

Equipment

1.4 0.5 -  Contractual amounts 0.5 1.9 

1.5 3.2 3.2 4.5 
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2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

61.1 (445.6) Loans written off - -

(0.1) 0.1 
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and 
equipment 0.1 (0.1)

26.3 23.8 Impairment on trade and other receivables 23.8 26.5 

- (3.1) (Profit) on exchange rate differences (3.1) (2.1)

- 0.2 Amortisation on intangible assets 0.2 0.1 

6.9 0.2 Impairment and write off of property, plant and 
equipment

0.2 9.7 

2.7 3.4 Auditors remuneration 3.4 3.6 

9.8 23.5 Investment expenses 23.5 9.8

18.1 56.3 Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 56.3 30.2 

539.9 799.0 Employee costs 799.0 707.0 

44.2 85.5 Post-retirement benefits (included in employee cost) 85.5 58.6 

(7.6) (15.7)
Defined medical benefit expense (included in 
employee cost) (15.7) (8.5)

- 37.8 Direct employee cost reflected under Cost of Sales 37.8 35.9 

50.5 - Subsidiary support (transfer payment to facilities) - -

Excluded under operating income of Armscor 
Corporate and operating expenses of the 
Armscor Dockyard is an amount of R2,6 million 
(2013:  R2,4 million ) and Armscor’s Research 
and Development is an amount of R9,5 million 
(2013:  R9,5 million) relating to a service level 
agreement (SLA) between Armscor,  the Dockyard 
and Research and Development where Armscor is 
rendering human resources (HR) and information 
technology (IT) services on behalf of them.

24. invesTmenT revenue

30.1 37.3 Finance income - Armscor Corporate 37.3 30.1 

11.0 11.5 Finance income - Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 11.5 11.0

41.1 48.8 48.8 41.1

25. finanCe CosTs

5.9 - Group companies - -
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2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

26. profiT/(loss) afTer TaX

After elimination of inter-group 
transactions

(36.1) 455.6 Armscor Corporate 9.0 (192.9 )

3.8 4.1 Armscor Dockyard 4.1 3.7 

- 21.8 Research & Development 21.8 238.2 

60.9 68.4 Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 68.4 60.9

28.6 549.9 103.3 109.9 

The following figures are divisional 
contributions before elimination of 
inter-divisional transactions and 
revaluation of assets and excluding 
the loan write-off

Armscor Corporate 55.4 61.5 

Armscor Dockyard 4.1 3.8 

Research & Development 18.3 19.4 

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 89.5 60.9

167.3 145.6 

Inter divisional transactions include office rental, 
service level agreement and transfer payments.  
Armscor Corporation profit excludes loan write 
off gain of R445,6 million from Armscor Defence 
Institute SOC Ltd.  The revaluation of Armscor 
Corporate assets amounting to R819,5 million 
and for Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd for 
R264,2 million have been excluded from the 
above figures for 2013 as they were once off 
gains.
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CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

27. Cash generaTed from operaTions 

871.0 570.5 Profit before taxation 123.9 1,216.5 

 Adjustments for:  

18.1 56.6 Depreciation and amortisation 56.6 30.3 

(13.1) (10.7) Dividends received (10.7) (13.1)

6.9 0.2 Impairment and assets written off 0.2 9.7 

(44.2) (20.6) Loss on investment sold (20.6) (44.2)

(819.5) - Revaluation of assets - (1,083.7)

(26.8) (59.0) Fair value adjustments (59.0) (26.8)

61.1 (445.6) Loans written off - -

36.6 63.0 Acturial adjustments 63.1 36.5

- - Share of (Profit)/loss in joint venture 0.9 (0.8)

(0.1) 0.2 (Profit)/Loss on sale of assets 0.2 (0.1)

5.9 - Finance costs - -

(41.1) (48.8) Finance income (48.8) (41.1)

2.4 (10.3)
Movements in retirement benefit assets and 
liabilities (10.3) 5.1 

1.1 11.3 Movements in provisions 11.3 1.4 

 Changes in working capital:  

57.9 (8.7) Trade and other receivables (8.7) 56.2 

0.1 (17.6) Inventories (17.6) (4.1)

16.2 (59.0) Trade and other payables (59.0) 29.4 

53.6 36.0 Deferred income 36.0 73.7 

186.1 57.5 57.5 244.9 



140

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2013 | 2014

notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2014

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

28. ConTraCTual liabiliTies

254.0 178.5 

Projected outstanding commitments in 
respect of orders placed for expected 
deliveries 178.5 254.0 

Contractual commitments which may arise 
out of these contracts are covered in full by 
means of financial authorisations.  In other 
cases cover is obtained by means of back-
to-back orders amounting to R151,7 million 
(2013: R228,0 million)

29. CapiTal CommiTmenTs

Authorised capital expenditure

Capital expenditure approved but 
not yet contracted

50.1 51.8 Property, plant and equipment 51.8 66.4 

This committed expenditure relates to plant 
and equipment and will be financed by 
retained surpluses, existing cash resources, 
funds internally generated, etc.
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30. operaTing lease CommiTmenTs – group as lessee and lessor

lessee disClosure

The Group has entered into operational leases on certain motor vehicles and items of machinery and equipment. Most of the leases have 

expired and are running on a month to month basis.  The leases that haven’t expired have lease terms between one and twelve months 

remaining.  There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.  The portion of rental paid during the year which 

relates to contingent rentals is R170 229.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2014 are as follows::

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

0.6 1.2 Within one year 1.2 1.0 

- 0.6 After one year but not more than five years 0.6 0.4 

0.6 1.8 1.8 1.4 

lessor disClosure

The Group entered into operating lease in regards to office space and parking. The lease has expired and is on a month to month basis. 

The Group is in a process of entering into a new lease agreement with the existing tenant.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating lease as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

45.6 50.2 Within one year 50.2 45.6
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31. ConTingenT liabiliTies 

guarantees

Bank guarantees have been issued for Armscor in favour of a local contractor amounting to R6,9 million (2013: R7,0 million) and to a 
foreign contractor amounting to R29,4 million (uSD 2,8 million [2013:  R16,0 million uSD1,7 million]) for an advance payment received.

Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of Armscor in favour of the South African Revenue Services: Customs and Excise and other 
creditors amounting to R10,2 million (2013: R8,1 million) with regard to local guarantees.

alkantpan

At 31 March 2014 the Group had a contingent liability in respect of rehabilitation of the test range at Alkantpan.

In terms of the National Environmental Management Act (Act 107 of 1998), section 28 (1) which came into effect on 29 january 1999, 
Alkantpan must take reasonable steps to avoid, stop or minimize degradation of the environment. Certain options were investigated and, 
as no intention currently exist to cease activities at Alkantpan because Alkantpan is regarded as a strategic facility which is partially funded 
by the Department of Defence, Alkantpan has elected to manage the range in compliance with the Act and to continue with its day to day 
clearing actions.

A steering committee was formed between Alkantpan and the Department of Tourism, Environment and Conservation of which the first 
meeting took place on 5 September 2006. It was confirmed at this meeting that the committee is to guide and advise Alkantpan on the 
environmental way forward and to ensure legislative compliance to the Act.

Annual meetings are scheduled to monitor the process and provide feedback on the progress. The last meeting of the Alkantpan 
Environmental and Conservation Steering Committee was held on 12 August 2013. No new issues or risks were reported at the meeting 
held and it was reported that the current measures in place is sufficient to manage the range in compliance with the Act.

The cost incurred for rehabilitating the site during the period under review was an amount of R1 988 908 (2013:  R2 042 636).

research and development she requirements

At 31 March 2014 the Alkantpan, Gerotek, Protechnik, IMT and Hazmat divisions had contingent liabilities of R8 069 587 in respect of 
measures required to comply with the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993).  In terms of the Occupational 
Health and Safety Act, the organisation is required to provide for the safety and health of persons at work.
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32. finanCial risK managemenT obJeCTives and poliCies 

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, certain investments and accounts 
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The principle market risks to which the Group is exposed through financial instruments are:

 § Foreign exchange rate generating translation and transaction gain and losses

 § Interest rates

 § Credit risk

 § Liquidity risk

 § Investment risk

interest rate management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term loan and cash and cash 
equivalents. In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash from the transfer payment to fund its operations as well as to fund 
working capital and capital expenditure requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus funds are invested in a manner to achieve 
maximum returns while minimising risk.

Credit risk management

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing.

Trade account receivables comprise a widespread customer base. The granting of credit is controlled by well established criteria, which 
are reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.

At year end, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not been insured or adequately 
provided for. With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from 
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of call accounts. The Group 
maintains a sufficient level of liquidity to be able to meet all its obligations. The Corporation has no overdraft facility but has other facilities 
which include guarantees and letters of credit.
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maturity analysis of financial instruments

Value Current Over

year 1 year

Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 120.7 120.7 -

Cash and short term depositis 699.0 699.0 -

Financial instruments* 712.5 - 712.5 

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 158.5 158.5 -

* Financial instruments are held for long term investment basis.  There is no specific time line for maturity below 1 year.

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it 
maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratio’s in order to support its business. The Group manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objective, policies or processes for the year 
ended 31 March 2014. The Group does not have external imposed capital requirements. The Group does not make use of capital from 
outside providers other than trade and other payables and have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover its net debt.

CORPORATIOn GROUP

2013 2014 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

(153.2) (158.5) Trade and other payables (158.5) (217.4)

693.5 699.0 Cash and cash equivalents 699.0 689.3
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fair values (group)

CARRyInG AmOUnT FAIR VAlUE

2014 2013 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 120.7 111.9 120.7 111.9 

Cash allocated to insurance reserve 20.1 22.5 20.1 22.5 

Cash allocated to Dockyard post-retirement medical benefit 27.9 22.5 27.9 22.5

Cash and cash equivalents 651.0 640.7 651.0 640.7

Financial liability

Current liabilities (314.9) (370.7) (314.9) (370.7)

The carrying amounts for cash, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short- 

term nature of these instruments.

Related party payables and trade receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate 

is 6,5% (2013: 6,0%). The amounts are payable within 1 year.

interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk in market interest rates relates primarily to interest received on call accounts and fixed deposits.

interest rate risk table sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates with all other variables held constant.

Increase/decrease in basis points Increase/decrease in surplus for 

the year and equity

2014 + 50 + R45,9 million

- 25 -  R23,0 million

2013 + 50 + R36,2 million

- 25 -  R18,1 million
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investment risk

Investments in equities are valued at fair value and therefore susceptible to market fluctuations.

Investments are managed with the aim of maximising the Group’s returns while limiting risk to acceptable levels.

Continuous monitoring takes place to ensure that appropriate assets are held where the liabilities are dependent upon the performance 

of the investment portfolio and that a suitable match of assets exists for all liabilities.

foreign exchange risk

The Group does not hedge foreign exchange flactuations

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an instrument will fluctuate in South African rands due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to both foreign currency risk on investments that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional 

currency of Armscor and transactional currency exposures.  The currency giving rise to the risk is primarily uS dollars (uSD).

These investments are monitored to ensure that the exposure to foreign currency risk is maintained within internal diversification guidelines.

33. informaTion reQuired in Terms of seCTion 55(2) of The publiC finanCe managemenT 
aCT

An amount of R103 565 (2013: R169 968) relating to unrecoverable debts was written off during the year.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R393 892 (2013: R2 411) was incurred as a result of interest paid on late payments 

(R202), penalties on late deliveries (R393 455) and fines (R235).  Of this an amount of R Nil (2013: R Nil) was recovered after year end.

During the year under review Armscor continued to apply a 25% Black equity selection criterion as requirement, in accordance with the 

supply chain policy of the group.  Armscor engaged extensively with National Treasury on this matter during the course of the financial 

year, which culminated in an application made to National Treasury for exemption from the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act 

(PPPFA), 2000 and the Procurement Regulations, 2011.  The outcome of the application is still pending.  However, as this selection criterion 

is deemed to be in conflict with the PPPFA, the total value of contracts placed (R68,5 million) while applying this principle, is deemed to 

be irregular expenditure.

.
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FEES And
COmmITTEE

REmUnE-
RATIOn

bASIC
SAlARy

OTHER
bEnEFITS

AllOW-
AnCES

RETIREmEnT
And OTHER
COnTRIbU-

TIOnS

TOTAl

notes 10 11 12 
R R R R R R

directors’ Emoluments
Executive directors
31 mARCH 2014

jG Grobler - 1,261,119 222,461 103,404 235,369 1,822,353 

jS Mkwanazi - 1,767,513 510,805 271,792 288,487 2,838,597 
Subtotal  - 3,028,632 733,266 375,196 523,856 4,660,950 

31 mARCH 2013
jG Grobler - 1,171,209 297,473 103,404 212,678 1,784,764 

jS Mkwanazi - 1,645,011 390,152 259,542 257,020 2,551,725 
Subtotal  - 2,816,220 687,625 362,946 469,698 4,336,489 

non-Executive directors
31 mARCH 2014
EL Borole 244,481 - - - - 244,481 

Dr PP Dyantyi 244,481 - - - - 244,481 

Dr jL job 205,332 - - - - 205,332 

Dr RR Mgijima 205,332 - - - - 205,332 

R Mokoena 1 152,362 - - - - 152,362 

LW Mosiako 283,630 - - - - 283,630 

MM Motau 1 222,251 - - - - 222,251 

SA Msibi 244,481 - - - - 244,481 
Subtotal 1,802,350 - - - - 1,802,350 

31 mARCH 2013
EL Borole 254,268 - - - - 254,268 

Dr PP Dyantyi 302,539 - - - - 302,539 

Dr jL job 211,191 - - - - 211,191 

Dr RR Mgijima 217,050 - - - - 217,050 

R Mokoena 314,509 - - - - 314,509 

LW Mosiako 301,873 - - - - 301,873 

MM Motau 444,502 - - - - 444,502 

SA Msibi 257,531 - - - - 257,531 

Adv V September 2 11,252 - - - - 11,252 
Subtotal 2,314,715  -  -  -  - 2,314,715 

TOTAl 31 mARCH 2014 1,802,350 3,028,632 733,266 375,196 523,856 6,463,300 

TOTAl 31 mARCH 2013 2,314,715 2,816,220 687,625 362,946 469,698 6,651,204 

34. direCTors’/eXeCuTive members’ emolumenTs
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FEES And
COmmITTEE

REmUnE-
RATIOn

bASIC
SAlARy

OTHER
bEnEFITS

AllOW- 
AnCES

RETIREmEnT
And OTHER
COnTRIbU-

TIOnS

TOTAl

notes 10 11 12 
R R R R R R

managemenT board

Emoluments

Executive members

31 mARCH 2014

TT Goduka - 1,192,323 364,651 133,932 202,537 1,893,443 

D Griesel - 1,093,893 209,568 297,561 200,026 1,801,048 

SP Mbada - 1,122,348 236,770 169,452 213,838 1,742,408 

L Keyise 3 - 918,846 177,163 90,554 154,934 1,341,497 

jL Mzili - 1,036,740 68,399 131,604 163,719 1,400,462 

CVV Ramphele - 962,745 65,680 159,612 207,036 1,395,073 

LR Mathieson 4 - 357,632 311,209 19,868 66,954 755,663 

TC Raman 5 - 617,096 159,873 164,082 132,209 1,073,260 

Total - 7,301,623 1,593,313 1,166,665 1,341,253 11,402,854 

31 mARCH 2013

NRM Borotho 6 - 733,101 1,493,772 54,009 104,501 2,385,383 

TT Goduka - 1,104,954 225,844 133,932 188,702 1,653,432 

D Griesel - 1,010,913 253,865 300,226 186,127 1,751,131 

SP Mbada - 1,037,268 259,794 169,452 198,709 1,665,223 

KP Hanafey 7 - 1,053,687 267,707 126,767 173,322 1,621,483 

L Keyise 3 - 180,732 - 9,934 25,819 216,485 

jL Mzili 8 - 81,586 - 10,967 13,113 105,666 

CVV Ramphele 9 - 75,611 - 13,301 17,032 105,944 

LR Mathieson 4 - 178,816 - 9,934 32,459 221,209 

Total - 5,456,668 2,500,982 828,522 939,784 9,725,956 

non-Executive Audit Committee member, not member of board of directors

31 mARCH 2014

RD Marule 39,149 - - - - 39,149 

Total 39,149 - - - - 39,149 

31 mARCH 2013

RD Marule 39,149 - - - - 39,149 

Total 39,149 - - - - 39,149 
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noTes appliCable To noTe 34

1. On 14 August 2013 the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans informed the Armscor Board of Directors of her decision to 

terminate the services of both the Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson.  Subsequent to an appeal they were reinstated on 18 

September 2013 and remunerated.  When the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans lodged an appeal the reinstatement was 

suspended and the suspension was upheld by the court.

2. Resigned as Board member on 30 April 2012.

3. Appointed from 1 February 2013 as Management Board member (Chief Information Officer) and resigned on 3 February 2014.

4. Appointed as Management Board member (General Manager:  Research and Development) on 1 February 2013 and resigned 

on 31 july 2013.

5. Appointed as Management Board member (Acting General Manager:  Research and Development) from 1 August  2013 and 

permanently appointed on 1 April 2014.

6. Employment terminated on 7 October 2012.  Other benefits paid include a severance pay package.

7. Acting position as Management Board member expired on 31 january 2013.

8. Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Management Board member (General Manager: Marketing and Business  

Development).

9. Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Management Board member (General Manager:  Corporate Compliance).

10. Other benefits include bonus (13th cheque), performance related payments and leave capitalisations.

11. Allowances include sums paid by way of expense allowances, i.e. motor, cell phone and  acting allowance as well as long service 

awards.

12. Retirement benefits include contributions made to Armscor pension fund;  medical benefit fund;  medical aid;  unemployment and 

funeral scheme.

13. No emoluments are paid to Armscor Defence Institutes ex officio Directors: messrs jG Grobler, KP Hanafey (resigned as Director 

on 31 january 2013), NRM Borotho (resigned as Director on 7 October 2012), SP Mbada, jS Mkwanazi and LR Mathieson 

(resigned on 31 july 2013).

share options

No share options exist and therefore no share option gains are included in the amount of emoluments received as directors of the 

Corporation.
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direCtors’ serviCe ContraCts

Notice periods in respect of employment contracts of executive directors do not exceed one year. Non-executive directors are appointed 
for a three year period and not bound by employment contracts.

pensions

Pensions paid or receivable by executive directors are paid or received under defined contributory pension schemes.

35. relaTed-parTy disClosures

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd (“ARMSCOR”) is a statutory body, wholly owned by the State, established in terms 
of the Armaments Development and Production Act (Act No 57 of 1968), and continues, its existence through the Armaments Corporation 
of South Africa Ltd Act (Act No 51 of 2003).

To execute it’s mandate, Armscor received a Government grant of R870,7 million (2013: R748,1 million) from the State through the 
Department of Defence (DOD) as well as a secondary transfer payment (in terms of a separate Memorandum of Agreement) for services 
rendered from the Department of Defence to the value of R84,4 million (2013:  R87,1 million).

Loans from subsidiaries as detailed below are set out in note 10 of the financial statements.

2014 2013

SUbSIdIARIES R R

Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd (Loan to) 4,000 4,000 

Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd (Loan from) 1 1

Oospark SOC Ltd (Loan from) 1 1

Sportrand SOC Ltd (Loan from) 1 1

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into by the Group with related parties for the 
relevant financial year.

Sales of goods 
and services to 
related parties

Purchases of 
goods from 

related parties

Amounts owed 
by related 

parties

Amounts owed 
to related 

parties

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Department of Defence 127.0 213.7 14.9 33.5 19.5 46.1 167.3 187.7 

State controlled entities

Major national public entities (Schedule 2 and 3 
public entities) 305.4 171.2 52.8 465.6 38.6 29.1 30.7 11.3 

National Government 44.7 39.6 0.3 7.7 22.8 8.0 0.5 44.3 

Government grant and the secondary transfer payment received from the Department of Defence are not included in the figures above.
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terMs and Conditions oF transaCtions with reLated parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, 

interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or 

payables. For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has made provision for doubtful debts of R113,7 million (2013: R90,0 million) 

relating to amounts owed by related parties.

In accordance with Armscor’s mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the Department of Defence. These transactions are set out 

in annexure A of the financial statements.

GROUP

2014 2013

Rm Rm

Reconciliation of transfer payments received from the Department of Defence

-   Primary transfer payment recognised in comprehensive income 870.7 748.1 

-   Secondary transfer payment received 84.4 87.1 

-   Funds received for Maritime domain awerness centres transferred to Deferred 

    income due to outstanding conditions 16.2 18.1 

-   Funds recieved for Dockyard transferred to Deferred income due to outstanding conditions 79.3 72.3 

-   Deferred Income recognised as transfer payment (54.7) (23.2)

Total transfer payments reflected - department of defence 995.9 902.4 

Assets and stock transferred to the Dockyard with an effective date of 1 April 2010 has been fair valued at R42,7 million and accounted 

for as deferred income, with the purpose of recognising it in line with the utilisation of the assets and stock.  During the financial year an 

amount of R4,8 million (2013:  R6,3 million) was recognised as income in accordance with the utilisation thereof, of which R4,4 million 

(2013:  R6,3 million) relates to assets and R0,4 million (2013:  R0,0 million) relates to stock.

direCtors

Directors’ interests in related parties: No interests in related parties have been declared by Armscor Directors.

Two of Armscor’s Executive Directors and two Armscor Management Board Members are ex-officio directors of the Armscor Defence 

Institutes’ Board of Directors at 31 March 2014. One Armscor Executive Director is also ex-officio director on the Boards of Erasmusrand 

Eiendomme SOC Ltd, Sportrand SOC Ltd and Oospark SOC Ltd.  These companies are dormant.
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key ManageMent personneL

Information on the remuneration of all key management personnel is disclosed in note 34.

36. purChase of armsCor defense insTiTuTe soC lTd (adi) asseTs and liabiliTies

On 1 April 2013 ADI sold its assets and liabilities to Armscor SOC Ltd as a going concern. The sale transaction was motivated by the group 

strategic positioning of the business.  The sale was settled by way of a loan.  The assets and liabilities were acquired at their respective 

carrying values.  Assets and liabilities acquired at 1 April 2013 were as follows:

2013
Rm

Assets

Non-current assets 409.2

Property, plant and equipment 384.3

Intangible asset 0.3

Other non current assets 24.6

Current Assets 186.2

Loan to parent company 154.4

Non-current assets held for sale 0.1

Inventories 9.2

Trade receivables 26.5

Cash (4.0)

liabilities

Non-current liabilities -

Current liabilities 149.8

Loan to parent company 40.9

Trade payables 64.3

Deferred Income 20.1

Provisions 24.5

net asset value transferred 445.6

The purchase price/loan from Armscor Defence Institute SOC Ltd of R445,6 million was subsequently written off. There were no additional 

contingent liabilities and contingent assets assumed or acquired during the acquisition except for the already existing contingent liability. All 

initial accounting for the sale of assets and liabilities were completed.
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anneXure To The annual finanCial sTaTemenTs

for The year ended 31 marCh 2014
(unaudited)

ToTal value of aCQuisiTion aCTiviTies

Government grants for operating expenditure are obtained to undertake acquisition actions. In accordance with Armscor’s mandate, 

acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the following organisations:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Department of Defence

- Special Defence Account 5,170.2 3,580.8 4,573.8 4,518.0 5,505.0 

- General Defence Account 2,647.7 2,288.6 1,815.2 1,441.0 1,308.2 

SA Police Service 94.7 71.8 96.5 101.3 108.0 

Other 60.9 72.6 93.7 66.3 106.9 

7,973.5 6,013.8 6,579.2 6,126.6 7,028.1 



ACRONYMS AND  
ABBREVIATIONS
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AbET Adult Based Education and Training

AET Adult Education and Training

AFb Air Force Base

bbbEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

bod Board of Directors

CISS Close-in Surveillance System

CPd Continuous Professional Development

CSI Corporate Social Investment

dEd Docking and Essential Defects

dERI Defence Evaluation Research Institutes

dFR Department of Foreign Relations

dIP Defence Industry Participation

dmA Defence Matériel Acquisition

dmd Defence Matériel Disposal

dOd Department of Defence

dti Department of Trade and Industry

ECSA Engineering Council of South Africa

Edm Engineering Development Model

ERP Enterprise Resources Planning

EW Electronic Warfare

GbAdS Ground Based Air Defence System

GPS Global Positioning System

ImT Institute for Maritime Technology

InCOSE International Council on Systems Engineering

lIFT Lead-In Fighter Trainer

mAAC Military Attaches and Advisory Corps

mOU Memorandum of understanding

nSTF National Science and Technology Forum

PmbOk Project Managment Body of Knowledge

SAbS South African Bureau of Standards

SAdC Southern African Development Countries

SAdI South African Defence Industry

SAmHS South African Military Health Services

SAn Storage Area Network

SAnAS South African National Accreditation System

SAndF South African National Defence Force

SARS South African Revenue Services

SdP Special Defence Package

SlA Service Level Agreement

TdP Talent Development Programme

UbRd ultrasonic broken-rail detector

WAn Wide Area Network

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
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